AGENDA
HAYDEN TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
THURSDAY, AUGUST 6, 2015
7:30 P.M.
HAYDEN TOWN HALL - 178 WEST JEFFERSON AVENUE

WORK SESSION 7:00 P.M. —7:30 P.M.

1.

STAFF REPORTS

REGULAR MEETING — 7:30 P.M.

l1a. CALL TO ORDER

1b. OPENING PRAYER

le. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
1d. ROLL CALL

2.

CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES
A. Regular Meeting July 16, 2015

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS
A. Consideration of payment bill vouchers dated August 3, 2015

PUBLIC COMMENTS

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS

CONSENT ITEMS

A,

Appointment of Municipal Judge and Assistant Municipal Judge

. Resolution 2015-16 Routt County/Town of Hayden IGA Coordinated Election

November 3, 2015

B
C. Resolution 2015-18 Waiver for Mammoth Network/HSD RE-1
D.

E. Resolution 2015-21 Purchase of Walker Ditch Water Rights

Resolution 2015-19 Lease Agreement with West Routt Fire District

OLD BUSINESS

A,

Public Hearing: Ordinance 666 An Ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of Hayden,
Colorado, Permitting, regulating and licensing the cultivation of retail and medical marijuana
under limited circumstances and making conforming amendments to subsection 8.08.080.A.,
to Sections 8.35.010, 8.35.040, 16.03.040.1.3 and 16.03.040.J.3, and to Titles 5 and 16 of the
Hayden Municipal Code

Decision: 2™ Reading Ordinance 666 An Ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of Hayden,
Colorado, Permitting, regulating and licensing the cultivation of retail and medical marijuana
under limited circumstances and making conforming amendments to subsection 8.08.080.A.,

to Sections 8.35.010, 8.35.040, 16.03.040.1.3 and 16.03.040.1.3, and to Titles 5 and 16 of the
Hayden Municipal Code
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Page 35

Page 41
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NOTICE: Agenda is subject to change. If you require special assistance in order to attend
any of the Town's public meetings or events, please notify the Town of Hayden at (970) 276-3741
at least 48 hours in advance of the scheduled event so the necessary arrangements can be made.



10.

11.

12.

Public Hearing: Ordinance 669 An Ordinance amending Chapter 10.04
“Model Traffic Code™ for the regulation of traffic by the Town of Hayden, Colorado
and providing penalties for the violation thereof; and, setting a public hearing time

Decision: 2™ Reading of Ordinance 669 An Ordinance amending Chapter 10.04
“Model Traffic Code™ for the regulation of traffic by the Town of Hayden, Colorado
and providing penalties for the violation thereof; and, setting a public hearing time

NEW BUSINESS

A.

C.

D.

Decision: 1* Reading Ordinance 668 Referred Ballot Question at the November 3, 2015
General Election regarding whether the Town may impose an excise tax on the wholesale
of marijuana and amending Hayden Municipal Code and setting a public hearing time

Decision: Resolution 2105-20 Referred Ballot Question at the November 3, 2015 General Election
regarding whether the Town may impose an excise tax on the wholesale of marijuana

Decision: Acceptance of 2014 Annual Audit Report and 2014 Single Audit Report

Decision: Appoint a Hayden Town Council Member to bid at the Junior Livestock Auction

PULLED CONSENT ITEMS

STAFF AND COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS (CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY)

EXECUTIVE SESSION
For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not involving: any specific
employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open session; any member of this body or any
elected official; the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of an elected official;
or personnel policies that do not require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees.

ADJOURNMENT

Page 89

Page 95
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Pagel06



Town af Hayden, Colorado Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page: 1

Input Date(s); 07/29/2015 - 07/29/2015 Aug 03, 2015 04:.00pm
Vendor Vendor Name invaoice No Description Inv Date  NetlInv Amt Amount Paid Date PD
1000 A-1LIQUOR 552130 Hayden Daze Q72012015 1,519.06
Total 1000 1,510.08 .00
7480 Accutest Mtn, States, Inc DE-63915 Water Tesling 07/01/2015 88 00
Tatal 7480 88.00 .00
12188 Always Mountain Time LLC -1150545023 Stokes Guich 0513112015 100.00
-1150545024 Stokes Guich 0513112085 100.00
Total 12188 200.00 .00
2440 Atmos Energy JUL2015 Town Hall Gas_R252006 (.80) 071412015 2514
Town Hall Gas_R252008 (.20) 6.28
PD Gas_08K684037 40.67
Shop Gas_G0014687 43.76
Parks Gas_T820876_15192591 61.59
Water Plant Gas_T768776 B6.56
Golden Meadows Gas_W816504 217
Crandell Pump House Gas_R331736 30,50
Sewer Plant Gas_R910225 4577
Aitport Lift Station Gas_6408226 27.44
Dry Creek Lift Station Gas_08K458739 19.83
Total 2440 395.25 .00
1200 Bear Rwer Valley Co-Op 79287 Big Mower tire service 07/21/2015 25.00
Total 1200 25.00 .00
12178 Bingham, Dallas and Tamara 07092015 Utility Oeposit Refund 07/09/2015 40,19
Total 12178 40.19 .00
6330 Black Mountain Glass Company 38984 PD Vehicle Repair 0711712015 45.00
Total 6330 45.00 .00
4510 Biue Earth Labs LLC 15-0167 Water Plant REM 0712012015 2436.59
Total 4510 2,436.59 .00
1310 Boy-Ko Supply Co 52610 Parks Supplies 071242015 92.24
Total 1310 92.24 .00
7510 Caterpillar Financial 16492781 Loader Lease 071712015 2,350.07
Total 7510 2,350.07 .00
5440 Central Electric LLC 11615 PD Electrical Service 0411612015 563.00
Total 5440 563.00 .00
3770 Centurylink 0029JUL1S Water Phones_0029 07/01/2015 118.48
1344721803 PD Phones 77563308 07/03/2015 025

2535JUL15 PD Phones_2535 07/04/2015 309.58




Town of Hayden, Colorada Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page: 2

Input Date(s): 07/29/2015 - 07/29/2015 Aug 03, 2015 04:00pm
Vendor Vendor Name Invaice No Description Inv Date  Netlnv Amt Amount Paid  Dale PD

Totat 3770 458 1 00

9230 Chaosink 7942 Parks & Rec Staff Uniforms 0741712015 28520

7943 Hayden Daze Disc Goif 07/17/2015 38250
Tota! 8230 667,70 0o

1645 Charnter Communicalions 1237JUL15 PD Charter Internet_1237 07/07/2015 84.95
Total 1645 84.95 i)

12074 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 1084480 Accounting services 07/16/2015 532585
Total 12074 532585 Lid]

10690 CO Dept of Public Health & Env 900024923 Drinking Water Annual Fee 07115/2015 46500
Total 10690 485 00 .00

12179 CO Dwision of Water Resources Z 14CW3039 Dry Creek Well Permit Application 07/02/2015 16000
Total 12179 100.00 .00

11897 Colding, Brian & Sarah 07162015 Uty Depaosit Refund 07/118i2015 2180
Total 11897 21.80 il

9410 Colorado Building Supply Inc. B78527 Parks Hardware 06/16/2015 1.40

B73530 Parks Kitchen 06/16/2015 329

B78536 Parks Tools 061612015 10.49

Parks Refund 134.85 -

B78558 Town Hall lrrigation 06/17/2015 96.96

B78561 Parks REM 06/17/2015 12.79

B78584 3rd St Imig Box Vandalism 06/18/2015 8.63

B78600 Streets Paint Supplies 06/18/2015 B.46

B78628 Town Hall Building Repairs 06/19/2015 11.51

B78639 Town Hall Building Repairs 06/18/2015 2617

B78642 Parks Hardware 06/19/2015 792

878645 Parks Trimmer Line 06/22/2015 1558

B78684 Streets Paint Supples 06/23/2015 1262

B78686 Parks R&M 06/23/2015 237

B78688 Parks Credil 06/23/12015 237-

B78691 WTP Pans 06/23/12015 1.40

B78692 Streets Paint Supplies 06/23/2015 598

B78637 Streets R&AM 06/23/2015 79

B78700 Parks Weed Conlrol Parts 08/23/2015 79

B78722 Streets Paint Supplies 06/24/2015 328

B78732 Sireets Paint Supplies 06/24/2015 2,49

B78734 Streets Paint Supplies 061242015 20,98

B78748 Streets Paint Supplies 06/25/2018 6.49

B78750 Dist R&M 06/25/2015 2.76

B78751 Dist. R&M 06/25/2015 258

B78784 Fields Triple Crown 06/26/2015 167 84

B7879% Town Hall Building Repairs 06/26/2015 10 56

B78832 E. Elem. Ballfield 06/29/2015 26.60

B78836 Streets Sandpaper 06/30/2015 578

B78861 Streels Paint Supplies 06/30/2015 7 49

B78862 Streets Paint Supplies 06/30/12015 1.58




Town of Hayden, Colorado Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page: 3

Input Date(s): 07/29/2015 - 07/29/2015 Aug 03, 2015 04:00pm
Vendar Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date  Netlnv Amt Amount Paid  Date PD
B7887% Parks Swivel Hasp 06/30/2015 7.49
Streets Paint Sugplies 21.62
B78874 Sireels Paint Supplies 07/01/2015 2.37
B78878 Woater Distribution Fogger 07/01/2015 11.49
B78901 Parks Hardware 07/01/2015 krR:}
B78903 Streets PVC 07/01/2015 398
B78916 Dry Creek Break 07/02/2015 37.14
B78933 Parks PVC Coupler 07/02/2015 349
B78973 Parks - Pairt Supplies 0710712015 1084
B78380 Parks Fluorescent Tubes 07/07/2018 51.48
B78986 Streets Paint Supplles 07/07/2015 6.49
B79000 Parks - Lightbulbs 07/08/2015 2.79
C18265 Parks Weed Controt Parts 07/10/2015 528
C18297 Streets Paint Supplies 07113/2015 19.98
C18319 Streels Paint Supplies 07132015 105.97
C18327 Streels Paint Supplies 0714/2015 10.84
Total 9410 687.52 .00
1850 Connell Resources Inc -Steambl 1 Street Repairs 05/22/2015  10,490.00
Total 1850 10,490.00 .00
12180 Cooper, Kevin 07222045 Uhility Deposit Refund Q772212015 17.15
Total 12180 17.15 .00
12100 Duckels Construction, Inc PAY AP #5 Seneca Hills Construction PA #5 07/20/2015 148,576.77
Tota' 12100 148,576.77 .00
4890 FedEx 5-095-98160 Water Sample Shipping arhe2mMs 29.59
5-104-45768 Water Sample Shipping 07/23/2015 20.33
Total 4890 58.92 .00
12181 Fronter Structures, Inc 542 Street Patch 0711712015 1,942.00
Total 12181 1,942.00 00
12127 Garfield & Hecht, PC 129285 Legal Services 06/30/2015 136.00
Total 12127 138.00 .00
12182 Gould, Raobert 07092015 Utidity Deposit Refund 07/09/2015 57.93
Total 12182 57.93 00
12183 Graf. Jody 07092015 Utility Deposit Refund 07/08/2015 75.00
Total 12183 75.00 .00
12109 Haskins Cleaning JUNZ2015 Town Hall Cleaning June 07/20/12015 200,00
Tota! 12108 200.00 .00

1360 Hinton Burdick CPAs & Advisors 132993 Final Bifiing 2014 Audit 05/31/2015  11,150.00




Town of Hayden, Colorado Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page 4

Input Date(s); 07/29/2015 - 07/29/2015 Aug 03, 2015 04.00pm
Vendar Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date  Netinv Amt AmountPald Date PD

Total 1360 11,150 00 00
2640 Holloran LLC, Michael J 07202015 Lega! Services Ballol Queastions 07/20/2015 7292
Legal Services Code Enforcement 7292
Legal Services Bid Dacs 58 33
Legal Services Bid Docs 1531.25

Total 2640 173542 00
9740 Identity Graphics LLC 7168 Baseball Sign 07/13/2015 138 00
PWWrestling 144.00
Hayden Daze Cornhole 120.00
7187 Hayden Daze Cornhole 07/116/2015 120.00

Tola! 9740 5§22.00 00
4535 InSite Media, Inc 1808 Hayden Daze 07i21/2015 43000
Sacial Media Monlhly 365.00

Total 4535 795,00 00
4035 J & S Contractors Supply Co. 0054502 IN  Sireets Yelow POZ LOC Post 07/07/2015 1,768 8O

Tota! 4035 1,768 BO 00
12184 Jefferson Properties, LLC 07222015 Utility Deposit Refund 07/22/12015 1401

Total 12184 140 .00
11077 Johnson, Lorraing 06162015 CML Conlerence 06/16/2015 183.70

Total 11077 183.70 .00
12096 JVA, inc 56075 Waler Treatment Plant Improvements 06/22/2015 1,116.00
5680768 Reclaimed Water Permitting 06/22/2015 1,232.00
56077 Seneca Hill Tank/Waler Sys Improv 06/22/2015 5,095.00

Total 12096 7.443.00 00
4465 LL Johnson 1085144-00 Field Chalk Valve 06/30/2015 816.80
5167123-00 Field Maintenance 06/24/2015 408.69

Total 4465 1,225 49 00
9060 Mid-American Research Chemical 05554361  Distribution Repair - Paint 06i26/2015 222 96

Total 9060 222 96 00
2960 MJK Sa'es & Feed Inc 13277 WTP - R&M Bentonite/Pond Seal 0711312015 595
13449 Fields Line Marker 07/23/2015 BG 34
184436 Streets Paint Supplies 07/09/2015 8194
184685 Streets Garage Tint 07132015 79.99

Total 2960 254 22 00
10620 Mountain Air Spray Co B577 Mosquito Labor 07/22/12015 2,756.00
Maosqguilo Chemical 2,204.80




Town of Hayden, Colorado

Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name
Input Date(s): 07/29/2015 - 07/29/2015

Page

5

Aug 03, 2015 04:00pm

Vandar Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date  NetlnvAmt AmountPaid Date PD
Total 10620 4.960.80 00
10080 Neve's Uniforms inc LN-313898 POD - Light Holders 05/12/2018 41.89

LN-314129 PD - Uniform Pants 051412015 91.95
LN-314130 PD - Uniform Shirts 05/14/2015 80.89
LN-316602 PD - Uniform Pants 06/29/2015 64.94
Total 10080 27967 .00
5010 Newman Traffic Signs TI-0287767 Signs 07114/2015 45563
Total 5010 455.63 .00
1780 Peak Performances Imaging Sol. 45275 Laserfiche Traning Q07/06/2015 225.00
Total 1780 225.00 Q00
310 Pearson Communications P1005 Distribulion Radio Repair 07/06/2015 50.00
Total 3110 5000 00
1350 Pinnacol Assurance 17675934 Legislative Work Comp 07/20/2015 2916
Court Work Comp 14 58
Executive Work Comp 14.58
Administration Work Comp 116.64
Police Work Comp 1.166.40
Streets Work Comp 903.96
Rec Wark Comp 87.48
Parks Work Comp 145.80
Water Work Comp 233.28
Water Adm Work Comp 29.18
Sewer Work Comp 145.80
Sewer Adm Work Comp 29.16
Total 1350 2916.00 .00
8170 Public Agency Training Council 195527 Sex Crimes Seminar 07132015 295.00
Total 8170 295.00 .00
6180 Resource Engineering Inc 15156 Water Rights Analysis 06/30/2015 7150
Total 6180 7150 .00
12068 RG & Associates, LLC 1011007 General Planning 07/06/2015 2,737.25
1011008 Dev passthrough 07/03/12015 821.25
Tota' 12068 3,558.50 00
5820 Richards, Bryan 5477608 Clothing Allowance 0712172015 136.81
Clothing Allowance 13681
Total 5820 27362 .00
10610 SAFEbullt, Inc 0020451-IN  Building Permits 06/3012015 50.00




Town of Hayden. Colorado

Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name
Input Datels), 07/28:2015 - 07/29/2015

Page

6

Aug 03, 2015 04:00pm

Wendor Vendor Name Invoica Na Description Inv Date  Net Inv Amt Amount Paid  Date PD
Total 10610 6000 00
7090 Samuelson's - Craig 32730 Streels - Paint Supplies 07/08/2015 164 85
32863 Elem, Baseball Hydrant 07/09/2015 59.88
33475 Streets - Paint Supplies o715/2018 201.18
Tolal 7030 42591 Rl
12185 Sigma Services 07282015 Utility Deposit Refund 0712812015 2903
Total 12185 2903 i}
1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY IN AUG2015 ADMINLTD 0711712015 56.14
PDLTD 132 B8
STREETS LTD 4582
PARKS LTD 19.48
WATERLTD 50 41
WTR ADMLTD 2005
SWRLTD 44 68
SWR ADM LTD 2005
Total 1655 389.51 00
10930 Standard Plumbing Supply Co ERTWO08 E Elem Farm Hydrant 07/09/2015 113.79
Tolal 10930 113,79 .00
10530 Siaples Advantage 3271647334 Rec Supplies 07/09/2015 2367
Admin Office Supplies 31.99
PD Supplies 115,32
Total 10530 170.98 00
12186 Stripe A Lot 798 Street Paint Striping 07i05/2015 2931.00
Total 12186 2,831.00 00
12187 Strong. Susan & Garrity, Adam 07222015 Utility Deposit Refund 071227215 33.18
Total 12187 33.18 i}
3640 Thatcher Company 1365118 Soda Ash 06/26/2015 1,105.60
Total 3640 1,105.60 0o
12121 Ultramax 153623 Ammunition 74205 452 00
Total 12321 852 00 00
7600 Univar USA Inc DVa88070 Sodium Fluonde 07no2Ms 988 00
Total 7600 988 00 00
3810 Upper Yampa Water Conservancy 100% Yamcolo Water Storage 1/2 pymt O7NS/2015 11.472.00
990 Stagecoach Waler Storage 071512015 7.000.00




Town af Hayden, Colorado

Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name
Input Date(s): 07/29/2015 - 07/29/2015

Page:

7

Aug 03, 2015 04:00pm

Vendor Vendor Name Invaice No Description Inv Date  Netlnv Amt Amount Paid  Date PD
Total 3810 18,472 00 .00
7070 USA BlueBook 684975 WTP - Lab Equipment 06/30/2015 152.86
690606 Woater Testing 07/08/2015 48,11
691385 Water Testing D7/08/2015 468.07
Tetal 7070 669.04 .00
3880 Wagner Equipment Co '04C0283452 Callection Hose Assembly 07/111/2015 36 B6
'04C0283539 Streels - Switch Parts 0717/2015 16.09
Total 3880 52.95 00
6170 Walmart Community 19000007651 PD Office Supplies 07/08/2015 139.36
Town Council 4416
Town Hall Office Supplies 8.70
Total 6170 192.22 .00
10400 Welis, Sandra 07202015 Meal Reimbursement 07/20/12015 21.98
Total 10400 21.98 .00
12188 Woods, Jordan 07312015 Utsty Deposit Refund 07/31/2015 47.41
Total 12189 47.41 .00
12190 Woodward. Butch 07092015 Wity Deposit Refund 07/09/2015 5283
Total 12199 52.83 .00
6085 Xerox Corporation 080411668 ADMIN COPIER/PRINTER Q71112015 273196
080411669 ADMIN COPIER/PRINTER 071112015 235.63
Total 6085 509.59 .00
4010 Yampa Valey Electric JUL2015  PD Electric 660020401 Q7/21/2015 526.02
Parks Electric 86374
Water Plant Electric 660007802 2,150.51
Golden Meadows Electric 780008803 882.00
Key Pump Electric 730009402 31.38
Washington Street Electric 700008001 4318
Airport Lift Station Electric 660013202 188 46
Seneca Hill Tank Electric 660021401 45.64
Community Tree Electric 760016002 3254
Shop Electric 760016201 213.49
Sewer Plant Electric 760007702 4,979.94
Rec Electric 740003406 {.20) 94.18
Town Hall Electric 740003406 (.80) are.7
Dry Creek Lift Station Electric 720021002 168.93
Parks Electric 720015501 52.58
Crandell Pump House Electric 720009902 838.53
Hospital Hill Electric 720008901 30.57
Total 4010 11,318.40 .00




Town of Hayden, Colorado Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page: B
Input Date(s). 07/29:2015 - 07/129/2015 Aug 03. 2015 04 00pm

Total Paid -
Total Unpaid: 253,955.04

Grand Tolal. 253,955.04
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Town Council Agenda Item
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Consideration of a motion appointing a Municipal Judge and an
assistant Municipal Judge.

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda

PRESENTED BY: David Torgler

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: Not preferred
BACKGROUND REVIEW:

The Hayden Town Charter provides for the appointment of a Municipal Judge and an assistant
Municipal Judge.

Section 7-3. Municipal Judge.

The Town Council shall appoint a Municipal Judge for a two-year (2-year) term. The Municipal
Judge may be removed during his or her term of office only for cause. A judge may be removed
by a majority vote of the entire membership of the Town Council for cause if:

(a) The judge is found guilty of a felony or any other crime involving moral turpitude; or

(b) The judge has willfully or persistently failed to perform his or her duties; or

(c) The judge has a disability which interferes with the performance of his or her duties,
which disability is or is likely to become of permanent character.

The Town Council may appoint additional assistant or acting municipal judges as deemed
appropriate from time to time. Municipal Judges shall be licensed to practice law in Colorado.
Municipal Judges shall be compensated on a basis established by the Town Council provided
that compensation shall not be based directly on the number of cases handled or heard by the
Judge or the outcome of the same.

Colette Erickson was appointed as Hayden’s Municipal Judge on August 4, 2011 for a two-year
term and reappointed in 2014 for a second term. Mark Fischer has previously served as
Hayden’s assistant or acting municipal judge, though he has not been called to duty since Judge
Erickson was appointed,
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Checking with Judge Erickson, she is enjoying serving as Hayden’s municipal judge and hopes
that the Town Council would like for her to continue in this role. Judge Erickson supports the
appointment of Mark Fischer as an assistant municipal judge.

Mark Fischer would like to be appointed as an assistant municipal judge so that he can perform
weddings this summer, and to fill in for Judge Erickson if necessary.

RECOMMENDATION:

To make a motion re-appointing Colette Erickson as the Town’s Municipal Judge for a two year
term effective beginning August 6, 2015.

To make a motion appointing Mark Fischer as an assistant Municipal Judge for the Town of
Hayden for a term effective immediately through August 6, 2017,

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:

I concur with the above recommendations.
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Town of Hayden

Town Council Agenda [temn
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Resolution 2015-16 / 2015 Coordinated Special Election IGA
AGENDA SECTION: Consent Item
PRESENTED BY: David Torgler
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: No
BACKGROUND REVIEW: In order to participate in the November 3, 2015 coordinated
election, we must reactivate an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Routt County
which was originally executed on August 28, 2007. The IGA is attached for your review
and needs to be reactivated via resolution and must be approved by the Routt County
Commissioners by August 25, 2015.
RECOMMENDATION: Move to approve Consent [tems

MANAGER RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS: 1 concur with the reconmmendation.
This is required to participate in the coordinated election.
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b

RESOLUTION 2015-16

A RESOLUTION REACTIVATING THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF HAYDEN AND ROUTT COUNTY FOR THE PURPOSE
OF PARTICIPATING IN THE COORDINATED ELECTION TO BE HELD ON
NOVEMBER 3, 2015

RECITALS

. The Town Council of the Town of Hayden has determined it to be in the best interest of the

Town to place openings for candidates for office on the ballot of the election to be held on
November 3, 2015 and to participate in the “coordinated election” as defined in the Uniform
Election Code of 1992, as amended; and

Participation in this coordinated election requires that an Intergovernmental Agreement
between the Town of Hayden, Routt County, Colorado and the Routt County Clerk and
Recorder originally executed on August 28, 2007 which sets forth the specific terms and
conditions regarding the conduct and finance of a coordinated election, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit A and is further defined in Attachment 1, Production of
“Amendment 1 Notice” be reactivated; and

The Town Council of the Town of Hayden deems that it is in the best interest of the
community to reactivate the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of Hayden,
Routt County, Colorado and the Routt County Clerk and Recorder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hayden,
Colorado, that:

£

The terms and conditions of the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of Hayden,
Routt County, Colorado and the Routt County Clerk and Recorder are approved.

The Mayor and Councilmembers acknowledge and authorize the terms of said
Intergovernmental Agreement on behalf of the Town of Hayden all in order to participate in
the November 3, 2015 coordinated election.

PASSED, APPROVED AND RESOLVED THIS 6™ DAY OF AUGUST, 2015.

James M. Haskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

This lnt%overnmental Agreement {Agreement) is made and entered into this

day of 2015 by and between Routt County, Colorado ("County"”)
and Routt County” Clerk and Recorder ("County Clerk"} and the Town of Hayden
(“District"}, collectively referred to herein as the "Parties,” for the administration of their
respective duties concerning the conduct of the coordinated election to be held on
November 3, 2015 ("Election”).

RECITALS

A. Pursuant to Colorado Constitution Article XIV, Section 18(2)(a), and Section
29-1-203, C.R.S., as amended, the County Clerk and the District may cooperate or
contract with each other to provide any function, service or facility lawfully authorized to
each, and any such contract may provide for the sharing of cost, the imposition of
taxes, and incurring of debt; and

B. The County Clerk and the District are authorized to conduct elections as
provided by law; and

C. The District has determined that it is in the best interests of the District to
conduct its election to be held on November 3, 2015 (Election) as a "coordinated
election" as such term is defined in the Uniform Election Code of 1992, as amended
("Code") and the Code contemplates the entry into and performance of an
intergovernmental agreement to cooperate in the conduct and financing of the Election;
and

D. The County Clerk and the District have determined that it is in the best
interests of the County, the District, and respective inhabitants to cooperate and
contract concerning the Election upon the terms and conditions contained herein.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the promises
herein contained, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto
agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
PURPOSE AND GENERAL CONDITIONS

1.01 Goal. The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the tasks to be
completed by the County Clerk and the District to conduct and finance the Election.

1| page
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1.02 Designated Election Official, Other Election Personnel. Except as
otherwise provided in this Section 1.02, the County Clerk shall act as the Designated
Election Official {("Official") for the conduct of the Election for the District for all matters
in the Code which require action by the Official.

The District designates Shiiron JDh"ED] as it's Election Officer ("Officer") who shall
act as the primary liaison between the District and the County Clerk. To the extent the
Code requires that a "designated election official* with the District conduct a task, the
Officer will act as such. Nothing herein shall be deemed or construed to relieve the
County Clerk or the Board of Directors from their official responsibilities for the conduct
of the Election.

1.03 Jurisdictional Limitation. The District encompasses territory within Routt
County. This Agreement shall be construed to apply only to that portion of the District
within Routt County.

1.04 Term, Renewal, and Activation.

A. Although this Agreement is specifically written to deal with the November 3,
2015 election, it is intended to be effective through December 31, 2015, and
automatically renewed for successive one year periods thereafter, unless ferminated in
writing by notice given by the Party seeking termination to the other Party on or before
November 15 prior to the December 31% deadline on which the Agreement shall be
terminated. The dates cited for the Election shall change to the proper November date
as needed for the year in which the future coordinated election may occur. The intent
of this automatic renewal provision is to put in place the intergovernmental agreement
contemplated by the Code by the time required by the Code without extensive annual
renegotiations.

(1) As soon as possible but no later than the date specified for such
action in the Election Calendar published by the County Clerk for the applicable election
date, the Official will submit a written mail ballot plan to the Secretary of State which will
include the requirements outlined in the Secretary of State's Rules and Regulations.
The written plan will become a part of the Agreement as an attachment since the
Election will be held as a mail ballot election (Attachment 2).

B. Although the Agreement automatically renews, actual use of the Agreement
for any election by the District shall be conditioned upon:

(1) A determination, by Resolution of the governing body of the District,
that an election is required and that such election should be held as a coordinated
election,

TAELECTIONUGA 's\Election|GA.2015 {July 22, 2015) 2 | Page
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(2) Notice of (1) being delivered to the County Clerk no later than the date
specified for such action in the Election Calendar published by the County Clerk for the
applicable election date.

(3) Acceptance of the notice indicated in (2) by the County Clerk and
determination by the County Clerk that the County Clerk shall undertake its duties
under the Agreement, with notice of such determination to be delivered to the District
within five (5) days of the County Clerk's receipt of the notice indicated in (2).

Following the completion of (1), (2), and (3) above, the election procedures in the
Agreement shall be activated.

ARTICLE I
DUTIES OF THE COUNTY CLERK

2.01 County Clerk Duties. The Coordinated Election shall be conducted under
the provision of C.R.S. Title 1. The County Clerk shall be responsible for the conduct of
the Coordinated Election, adhering to all applicable provisions of the Code which are
necessary or appropriate.

A. Production of a mailed Notice of the Ballot issues and or questions
("Amendment 1 Notice") required by the Colorado Constitution, Article X, Sec. 20 in
accordance with Attachment 1.

B. Arrange for the printing, and have printed, ali official ballots.

C. The Official shall determine the cost allocation for each participating entity in
the Election. The District shall reimburse its proportional share of the actual cost either
to the County Clerk or to the vendor directly in accordance with the directions of the
County Clerk.

D. Appoint, provide written material to, as required by law, train and pay a
sufficient number of qualified election judges ("Election Judges") to adequately serve
the number of electors anticipated to vote at the Election.

E. Conduct such formal training sessions for the Election Judges as are deemed
reasonably necessary by the County Clerk and/or required by the Secretary of State.

F. Bill the District a reasonable fee for the cost of Election Judges, including
training sessions, provided such cost shall be prorated by multiplying the number of
judges for a given polling place by the reasonable fee and dividing the result by the
number of jurisdictions utilizing each polling place.

G. Charge the District for all staff time solely related to the District for the
preparation and conduct of the Election at each staff member's current pre-tax hourly
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rate. Charge the District its proportional share of the actual cost of staff time not solely
related to the District for the preparation and conduct of the election.

H. Conduct and oversee the process of counting the ballots and reporting the
results. The process to include appointment of a Duplication and Verification Board.

I. The Canvass of Votes ("Canvass") will be conducted by the County Clerk.
The County Clerk shall generally oversee the conduct of the Board of Canvassers.

{1) The County Clerk shall appoint the Canvassers.

(2) Such Canvass shall be completed by the date specified for such
action in the Election Calendar published by the County Clerk for the applicable election
date and official results of the Canvass will be provided to each political subdivision
(District) participating in the Coordinated Election.

(3) Each District will be responsible for issuing its own Certificates of
Election for candidates and issues.

J. Store all voted ballots for a minimum of 6 months and all other election
materials for a minimum of 25 months in such a manner that they may be accessed by
the District, if necessary, to resolve any challenge or other legal questions that might
arise regarding the Election.

K. Keep a careful and accurate and contemporaneous accounting of time,
supplies and salaries chargeable to the District.

L. Adhere to all applicable provision of the Code which are necessary or
appropriate to the performance of the above duties.

M. The Official shall publish the Notice of Election required at least no later than
the date specified for such action in the Election Calendar published by the County
Clerk for the applicable election date.

N. In the event the Election is canceled, the County Clerk shall post notice of the
Cancellation of Election on the County’'s designated Notice Boards.

O. Requests for absentee and replacement ballots shall be transmitted and
processed by the County Clerk at 522 Lincoln Ave., PO Box 773599, Steamboat
Springs, CO 80477.

ARTICLE Wl
DUTIES OF THE DISTRICT

3.01 District Duties. [n consideration of the foregoing, the District agrees to
perform the following tasks and activities:
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A. Provide to the County Clerk all required Amendment 1 Notices concerning
the District's ballot issues and questions in the manner according to Code and the
attached Amendment 1 Notice Agreement.

B. In accordance with Colorado Law, the ballot contents must be certified to the
County by the District, in its exact and final form, no later than the date specified for
such action in the Election Calendar published by the County Clerk for the applicable
election date. Such ballot contents must be delivered to the County Clerk's office at
522 Lincoln Ave., Steamboat Springs, CO. The District shall proof the layout and text
of the official ballots no later than 50 days prior to the date of the election and before
the authorization for the printing of ballots or the District shall proof and provide written
notice acknowledging the layout and text of the sample and official ballots within one
business day of receipt of the ballot proofs from the County Clerk, whichever occurs
first,

C. Accept the established Election Voter Service and Polling Center(s) as the
official service centers(s) for the Election.

D. The District andfor Officer shall prepare and publish any legal notices of
election which are required to be given to the electorate of the District according to
statutes and ordinances governing their elections other than 2.01 (R) or as otherwise
required by law. A copy of all legal notices published by the District shall be submitted
to the Official.

E. Pick up Election materials from the County Clerk when requested following
the Election.

F. Store all Election materials, not stored by the County Clerk, for that time
required by the Code.

G. Pay the District's proportional share of actual costs of services, supplies, and
mileage to the County Clerk upon receipt of the itemized statement or pay directly
vendors or contractors as directed by the County Clerk.

H. The petition process for the District shall be entirely the responsibility of the
District, and shall be done in compliance with applicable Colorado statutes, ordinances
or charter provisions. This process includes, but is not limited to: approving the
candidate or initiative petitions to be circulated within the District; receiving the
petitions, and verifying the signatures of the petitions within the District.

I. The process of receiving and filing of written comments will be the solely the
responsibility of the District.
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J. Certificates of Election of candidates and issues will be issued by the District
or Officer upon receipt of the official results from the County Clerk. Any additional
Certificates of Election which are required by law to be forwarded to another division of
government shall be the responsibility of the District.

K. Anytime prior to cenrtification of the ballot, the District shall determine the
order of names on nonpartisan ballot by a lot drawing, following notification of
candidates of time and place of lot drawing.

3.02 Canceliation of Election by the District. In the event the District, at
some time after activation of this Agreement pursuant to section 1.04B. hereof, resolves
not to hold the Election, then notice of such resolution shall be provided to the County
Clerk immediately. The District shall promptly pay the County Clerk the full actual costs
of the activities of the County Clerk relating to the election incurred both before and
after the County Clerk's receipt of such notice. The District shall publish notice,
according to Code, of such cancellation in at least two newspapers of general
circulation in Routt County. The Officer shall post notice of the cancellation at all
buildings of the District. The District shall not cancel the election after the 25th day
before the Election.

ARTICLE IV
PROPORTIONAL SHARE OF ACTUAL COSTS

4.01 The Official shall determine the cost allocation for each political subdivision
(District) participating in the Coordinated Election. The District shall reimburse the
County for such election costs allocated to the District. Such reimbursement shall be
made to the County within thirty days from the receipt of billing. (Example - each
District will pay for the ballots based on their number of eligible voters including the
consideration for the number of lines printed on the ballot.)

ARTICLE V
MISCELLANEQUS

5.01 Notices. Any and all notices to be given by this Agreement are deemed to
have been received and to be effective; (1) three (3) days after the same shall have
been mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested; (2) immediately upon hand
deliver; or (3) immediately upon receipt of confirmation that a fax was received; to the
address of the Parties as set forth below or to such Party or addresses as may
hereafter be designated in writing.

To County Clerk:  Kim Bonner
Routt County Clerk & Recorder
Box 773599 / 522 Lincoln Ave.
Steamboat Springs, CO 80477
kbonner@eco.routt.co.us
Fax: 970-870-1329
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To District: Town of Hayden

Attention:  Sharon Johnson
PO Box 180
Hayden, CO 81639

5.02 Integration. The Parties acknowledge this Agreement constitutes the
sole agreement between them relating to the subject matter hereof and that no Party is
relying upon any oral representation made by another Party or employee, agent or
officer of the Party.

5.03 Amendments. This Agreement can be amended only in writing and by
signatures of both Parties.

5.04 Actual Costs Defined. "Actual Cost" includes, but is not limited to, the
costs of fabor (including fringe benefits), printing and materials itemized, identified, and
consumed for the conduct of the Elaction.

3.05 Damages for Negligence or Error. In the event a court of competent
jurisdiction finds the Election for the District was void or otherwise fatally defective due
to a cause arising from the negligence or other error of the County Clerk, then the
County Clerk shall, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, refund or pay all
amounts paid to the County Clerk, vendors or contractors designated by the County
Clerk and other itemized costs for the Election paid by the District.

Likewise, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, if the cause arises from
the negligence or other error of the District, the District shall pay the County Clerk its
reasonable court costs, attorney's fees and lost County Clerk staff time arising from
litigation relating to the Election.

The District agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the County Clerk
from any and all loss, costs, demands or actions arising out of or related to any actions,
errors or emissions of the District in completing its responsibilities relating to the
Coordinated Election.

5.06 Attorney Fees. In the event either of the Parties brings suit to enforce or
interpret any portion of this agreement, the party prevailing in such action shall be
entitle to recover all costs incurred in such action, including without limitation
reasonable atiorney's fees.

5.07 Conflict of Agreement with Law, Impairment. In the event any provision
in this Agreement conflicts with the Code, other statute, or valid prior Resolution duly
adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, this Agreement shall be modified to
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conform to such law or resolution. No subsequent resolution of the Board of County
Commissioners not of the District shall impair the rights of the County Clerk or the
District hereunder without the consent of the other party to this Agreement.

5.08 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. The
statutory time requirements of the Code shall apply to completion of the tasks required
by this Agreement. A calendar with specific dates will be attached to conform with the
Code and Agreement (Altachment 3).

5.06 Good Faith. The Parties shall implement this Agreement in good faith,
including acting in good faith in all matters that require joint or coordinated action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed this Agreement
to be effective as of the date first written above.

ATTEST: Town of Hayden
By:
Shoron Johnsen W&deﬁ-Bea%d—ef—Dweetors
Town Clerk, ofor
ATTEST: Routt County:
By:
Kim Bonner Chairman,
Routt County Clerk & Recorder Board of Routt County Commissioners
ATTEST: Routt County Clerk and Recorder:
Kim Bonner
TAELECTIONAGA's\ElectionlGA.2015 (July 22, 2015) 8 | Page



ATTACHMENT 1
Production of "Amendment 1 Notice" (TABOR)

WHEREAS, by the previous Intergovernmental Agreement entered into for the
November 5, 2013 election by and between the County Clerk and Recorder of Routt
County ("County Clerk") and the Town of Hayden ("District"), collectively, the "parties,"
the Parties agreed to cooperate and contract for the purpose of conducting a
coordinated election; and

WHEREAS, Colorado Constitution Article 10, Section 20 requires the production
of a mailed notice of the ballot issues to be determined for the District that are subject
to the requirements of said constitutional section ("Amendment 1 Notice"); and

WHEREAS, the Amendment 1 Notices of several jurisdictions are to be sent as a
package where jurisdictions overlap ("Amendment 1 Notice Package"); and

WHEREAS, the need to produce the Amendment 1 Notice Package requires
there be county-wide coordination of the production and mailing of the Amendment 1
Notice Package {o effectuate the purposes of said constitutional section; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to set forth their respective responsibilities in the
production and mailing of the Amendment 1 Notice Package for the coordinated
election on November 3, 2015.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. The County Clerk shall perform the following services and activities for the
District's election:

A. Determine the "least cost” method for mailing the Amendment 1 Notice
Package, and determine the portion of such cost to be applied to the District.

B. Combine the text of the Amendment 1 Notice produced by the District
with those of other districts to produce the Amendment 1 Notice Package.

C. Address the package to "All Registered Voters" at each address of
one or more active registered electors of the District. Nothing herein shall preclude the
County Clerk from sending the Amendment 1 Notice of the District to persons other
than electors of the District if such sending arises from the County Clerk's efforts to mail
the Amendment 1 Notice Package at "least cost.”

D. Determine the order that the Amendment 1 Notice submittal of the
District and of other jurisdictions shall be placed in the Amendment 1 Notice Package;
provided, however, that the materials supplied by the District shall be kept together as a
group and in the order supplied by the District in compliance with 2 (D).
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E. Mail the Amendment 1 Notice Package, address as required by law no
later than the date specified for such action in the Election Calendar published by the
County Clerk for the applicable election date.

F. Provide an office address and telephone number for incorporation into
the Amendment 1 Notice. Said information will be agreed upon in writing 42 days prior
to the election. The designated office will be open during the County Clerk's regular
business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday. The County Clerk or
the County Clerk's Deputy shall respond to alf correspondence and calls the County
Clerk's office receives within its expertise relating to election procedures, but shall refer
calls concerning the substance of the ballot issues and ballot questions and the
operations of the District to its Officer pursuant to 1.02 of Intergovernmental Agreement.

G. Write, print, and incorporate any notice to be included in the
Amendment 1 Notice Package that may inform the elector of the polling place or that
may provide other information as may be required by law.

H. Provide the District an itemized statement of the costs of performing
the tasks performed by the County Clerk.

2. The District shall perform the following services and activities for the District's
election:

A. Adopt a resolution/ordinance designating the County Clerk as the
Election Official for the District's election for the purposes of completing the tasks to be
performed by the County Clerk on behalf of the District. File a copy with the County
Clerk.

B. Designate an "Election Officer" to act as liaison between the District
and County Clerk.

C. Determine the ballot issues to be voted upon at the election.

D. Include, within its Amendment 1 Notice, ballot titles in the order of
preference: "NOTICE OF ELECTION TO INCREASE TAXES / TO INCREASE DEBT /
ON A CITIZEN PETITION / ON A REFERRED MEASURE."

1. Prepare the text of the Amendment 1 Notice. Such Amendment
1 Notice shall include any District voter approved additions, and;

a) The Election Date, hours, ballot title, text, and local election office
address and telephone number.
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b} For proposed district tax or bonded debt increases, the estimated or
actual total of district fiscal year spending for the current year and each of the past four
years, and the overall percentage and dollar change.

¢} For the first full fiscal year of each proposed district tax increase,
district estimates of the maximum dollar amount of each increase and of district fiscal
year spending without the increase.

d) For proposed district bonded debt, its principal amount and maximum
annual and total district repayment cost, and the principal balance of total current
district bonded debt and its maximum annual and remaining total district repayment
cost.

e) Two summaries, up to 500 words each, one for and one against the
proposal, of written comments filed with the Official 30 days before the election. No
summary shall mention names of person or private groups, nor any endorsements of or
resolution against the proposal. Petition representatives following these rules shall
write this summary for their petition. The officer shall write this summary for their
petition. The officer shall maintain and accurately summarize all other relevant written
comments.

E. Inform the County Clerk of any voter-approved additions to the
Amendment 1 Notice for the District and incorporate such addition in the Amendment 1
Notice supplied to the County Clerk.

F. All pros and cons regarding the District elections will be filed with the
officer for public inspection. Copies of any written comments concerning a District
ballot issue will be provided to the County Clerk within 72 hours or receipt of such
comment and in their entirety on the 30th day prior to the election, whichever is earlier.

G. Summarize written comments concerning ballot issues following
receipt of such comments received from the public as necessary for use in the
Amendment 1 Notice.

H. Prepare the layout of the Amendment 1 Notice for the District
according to law.

I. Determine the ballot title and text.

J. Respond to inquires as follows: The County Clerk shall refer
correspondence and calls concerning the substance of the ballot issues or the
operations to the District's Election Officer. The Officer shall reply to the originator of

such substance and operation questions within a reasonable time after being notified of
the same by the County Clerk,
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1. The Officer shall be reasonably available to the County Clerk to
advise and give aversight as may help in the conduct of the election.

K. Provide the District's completed Amendment 1 Notice to the County
Clerk in camera ready form utilizing 6 point ‘elite’ or similar lettering, and a one inch
margin on both sides of the paper. Regardless of the total number of pages, the
submission {o the County Clerk shall be on one side of each page. Whenever possible
submission shall be made by Internet e-mail in text format to the County Clerk
(kbonner@co.routt.co.us). Alternatively, submission should be made on a data

CD in the same format. This submission, which shall be in the form that shall be
printed by the County Clerk without special written dispensation from the County Clerk
{such dispensation may be withheld for any or no reason), and shall be provided to the
County Clerk on or before the 45" day preceding the election.

L. Perform such acts as may be required by law, including circulation,
approval, review, and all other activities, relating to any petition that may concern the
District. The Election Officer shall interact with any district petition representative,
including but not limited to, working to ensure that the Officer receives the summary of
written comments for their petition with time required by law.

M. The District's Officer shall publish the full text and title of baliot issues
as provided by C.R.S. 1-40-124 (2).

N. Pay the costs shown in the itemized statement provided to the District
by the County Clerk either directly to the County Clerk or to such vendors or
subcontractors as the County Clerk may designate.

Q. District shall be responsible for all out-of-county mailing required.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties hereto have executed this addendum to
the effective the day of , 2015.

ATTEST:

Authorized Signature

Town of Hayden

ATTEST:

Kim Bonner
Roautt County Cierk and Recorder

ATTEST:

Routt County Board of Commissioners



IGA Attachment 2
Coordinated MailBallotPlan

Instructions Colorado Secretary of State

The County Clerk must submitthis proposed planforconductingthe 2015 coordinated mail ballot election
nolaterthan90 days before the election.

Please complete each section by checking the pertinent boxes and entering your county's specific
informationinthe spaces provided. Once you have completed the plan, youmay emailittothe Secretary of
Stateat: ballot.access@sos.state.co.us.

Ifyouhavequestions, contactDan Volkoshat303-894-2200, ext. 6337, ordan.volkosh@sos.state.co.us.




OFFICE OF THE CLERK & RECORDER Kim BONNER, CLER-K & RECORDER

Tina FRY, CHIEF DEPUTY

IGA Attachment 2/Coordinated Election Calendar November 3, 2015

July 24, 2015

August 5, 2015

August 25, 2015

September 4, 2015

September , 2015

September 18, 2015

September 19 & 20, 2015

September 22, 2015

October 2, 2015

Qctober 12, 2015

Qctober 23, 2015

Ocl 26 — Nov 3, 2015

October 26, 2015

October 27, 2015

November 3, 2015

November 20, 2015

Deadline for political subdivisions to provide writlen notice of participation

in November Election (100 days before the General Election).
CR.5. 1-7-116(5), 1-1-106(5)

*Last day to submit a mail ballot plan to the SOS. C.R.S. 1-7.5-105(1), Rule
7.1.1

‘Last Day to designate Voter Service and Polling Centers and Drop Off
Locations for 2015 Coordinated Election. Rule 7.9

Deadline for political subdivision to sign Intergovernmental Agreement

with County Clerk (No later than 70 days before the General Election).
CR.S. 1-7-116(2)

Deadline for political subdivision to certify the baliot order and content
with the County Clerk (No later than 60 days before the General.
Election). C.R.S. 1-5-203(3)(a)

Public Logic and Accuracy Test. (Date to be determined)

Last day to file pro/con comments pertaining to local ballot issues with

the political subdivision in order to be included in the issue mailing.
ART X, § 20 (3)(bXv}, C.R.S. 1-7-901(4)

Deadline to send mail-in ballots to overseas military voters (45" day
before the election). C.R.S. 1-8.3-110{1)

Last day for political subdivision to deliver baliot issue (profcon
comments) notices to the County Clerk & Recorder (No later than 42
days before the General Election). C.R.S. 1-7-904

Last day to mail notice of election ballot issues (At least 30 days before a
ballot issue election). ART X, § 20 {3)(b), C.R.S. 1-1-106(5)

First day mail-in ballots may be sent to voters (22 days before the
General Election). C.R.5. 1-7.5-107 (3)(a))

Equipment Inventory lists due to the SOS. C.R.S. 1-1-106.5 Rule 11.2.3

Voter Service and Polling Centers Open for General Election (15 days
before the election). CR.S. 1-5-102.9(2)

*Last day to register to Vote through the mail, a voter registration
agency, local driver's license facility or online to receive a ballot for the
Coordinated Election C.R.S. 1-2-201(3)(b){Il)

*First day Voter Service & Polling Center Open

Last dax to file an absentee ballot application to receive the ballot by
mail (7" day preceding the election). C.R.S.1-7.5-116(3)

COORDINATED ELECTION DAY All ballots must be in the hands of the
County Clerk by 7:00 p.m. Election Day.

Deadline to complete canvass for the General Election,

522 Lincoln Avenue, P. O, Box 77 28 .Steamboat Springs, CO 80477



1.County Contact Information:

Please selectyourcounty: |Routt County
County Clerk:

| KimBonner

County contact person:

| VickiWeber

Normalbusiness hours:

{8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday

Phone Number(nodashes): | (970) 870-5556

Email: |elections@co.roun.co.us

Physical Address: 1 522 Lincoin Ave, Steamboat Springs, CO 80487

2. Select the Election Date: |11/03/15

3. Adherencetostatutesandrules

— The County will conduct the election according to all relevant provisions of Title 1, C.R.S. and the Secretary of State's
Election Rules.

4. Eligible electors

15,110 #ofElectors ActiveStatus
3,249 #ofElectors Inactive Status

18,359 #ofElectors Total Active and Inactive

{Pleaseuseyourcurrentnumbersasof today.)

g Between 22and 18days before theelection, the Countywillmail ballots to each activeregistered
elector. [Section 1-7.5-107(3),C.R.8 ]

Nolater than 45 days before the election, the Countywill transmit a mail ballot packet to each active

& registered UOCAVA elector. The County will transmit the packetinthe method requested by the
elector, The Countywillalsoprovide accesstotheonline ballotdelivery system bythis date. [Section
1-8.3-110,CR.S]

5. Voterservice and pollingcenters [Section 1-7.5-107(4.5)(a)(l}, C.R.S.]

Forthe purposeofcalculatingVSPCs, the numberof active electors equals the number of active electorsinthe Countyonthe
date ofthe 2012 general election combined withthe number of “inactive-failed to vote™ electors on the same date.

Thenumberofactive electorsforyourcountyis: | 15,873 |

Howtodeterminetherequisitenumberof VSPCsforyourcounty:

County Size VSPCs

Musthave 1 VSPCforevery motorvehicle officeinthe county. Thecountymusthave atleast

Atleast 25,000 active electors one.

Fewerthan 25,000 active electors |Musthave atleast1 VSPC, but may add more.

Totalnumberof VSPCsyourcountywillhaveopen: |1
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Please provide the location and address of each VSPC. If possible, please provide the date that each VSPC will open for
operation. Check thefar-rightboxifthe VSPC willonlybe openon Election Day:

Election
Name: Location Address: Dates of Operation: LocationHours: DayOnly
123 Main Street October26to 8:00A.M, tp 5:0_0 PM Monday
: through Friday; 8:00 A.M. to
TownHall: Room234 November3, , s D
Anywhere, CO, 80290 excludingSundays 12:00P.M. Saturday;7.00A.M.to
ol 7:00P.M. on Election Day
Routt County | 522 Lincoln Avenue October12to i?qu}:‘”,;:i%:fﬁpu‘_’gd“Amd;y
Courthouse | CountyClerk & Recorder's Office November 3, . S Y o b E]
Steamboat Springs, CO 80487 excluding Sundays el it e D AUANL L B
' 7:00P.M.onElection Day

The County chose each VSPC location according to sections 1-5-102.9(1)(c)(l) and 1-7.5-107(4.5)(d), C.R.S.

2 Alistatutorilyrequired VSPCs complywith the accessibilityrequirementsin Election Rule 7 andthe Countywill submit
X anannual accessibility assessment, if applicable.

Eachstatutorilyrequired VSPCwillbeopen,ataminimum, duringreasonablebusinesshoursforthe 8days beforethe
election (excluding Sunday). "Reasonable business hours" means atleast eight hours per day Monday through Friday
and at least four hours on Saturday. [Section 1-7.5-107(4.5)(c), C.R.S.; Election Rule 7.9. 1]

Each statutorily required VSPC will be open from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. on election day.
[Section 1-7-101, C.R.S. and Rule 7.9.1{b)]

Each VSPC will provide: [Section 1-5-102.9(3), C.R.S. and Election Rule 7.9]

o Theabilityto registertovote;

» Theabilitytocastaballot(In-personveting); Please note; Counties mustofferthe abilityto castanin-person ballot
by both paper and a directrecording electronic voting machine.
e Theabilityfor aneleclortoupdate his orher address;
» Theabilityforanelectortochange hisorhername:
¢ \oling booths;
¢ Secure computer access to the statewide voter registration database:
» Facilities andequipmentthatare compliantwith the federal"Americans with Disabilities Actof 1990;"
» Directrecord electronic voling machines or other voling systems accessible to electors with disabilities:
» Originalandreplacementballotsfordistribution;
» Mailballotsfor eligibie electors whorequestthem:
» Theabilitytoaccept mail ballotsthat are deposited by electors; and
+ Theabilityof apersontocastaprovisional ballot.
At each polling location, the County will post all information required under section 1-5-504.5, C.R.S.



6. Stand-alone drop-off locations [Sections 1-5-102.9and 1-7.5-107, C.R.S.]

Drop-offlocations arewhere electors maydeposittheircompleted mail ballots. Each stand-alonedrop-offlocation mustbe
located separately from the county's VSPCs, unless the stand-alone drop-off location is a 24-hour secure drop box. Drop-off
locations must be located throughout the county to provide the greatest convenience to voters. [Section 1-5-102.9(4), C.R.S.]

How lo determine therequisite number of drop-offlocations:

All counties Must provide one stand-alone drop-off location for every 30,000 active eleclors.

Basedonthe number of active electors reflected in Part 5 of this plan, the County will

havethefollowing numberof stand-alone drop-offiocations: 5

Please provide the location and address of each stand-alone drop-off location. If possible, please provide the date that
each drop-offlocation will open for operation. If the location will be open 24 hours, please check the box on the right:

Checkbox
if open
Name: Location Address: Dates of Operation: LocationHours: 24 hours
E
X
A 123 Main Street 8:00A .M. 10 5:00 P.M., Monday through
M {Town Hall Room234 Sg\t’c;?ne;:r[);hrough Friday; 8:00A.M.t0 12:00 P.M. on Saturday; D
P Anywhere, CO, 80290 7:00 A.M.t0 7:00 P.M. onElection Day
L
E
522 Lincoln Ave (alley
Routt County |between courthouse & - |ciober12through
annex) N 24hoursaday
Courthouse Steamboat Springs, CO ovember3, 2015 -
80487
October 12through .
Clark Store g?;rKSCRgR 129 November3, 20 13 8:00AM to 4:00PM, Monday through Friday ]
Hayden 178 W JeffersonAve October12through .?.ﬁgggat; 4:00PMMonday through D
Town Hall Hayden, CO November3, 2015 8:00AM to 12:00PM Fridays
Oak Creek 18?ng3"°¥ Crawford  |October12through =
VI B . .
Town Hall OakCreek, CO November3, 2015 §:00AM to 4:00PM Monday through Friday
YampaTown | 56 Lincoln St. October12through . . .
Hall Yampa,CO November3, 2015 8:00AM to 4:00PM Monday through Friday (]

Each statutorily required stand-alone drop-off location will be open, at minimum, during reasonable business hours
X} the four daysimmediately before election day. "“Reasonable business hours” means at least eight hours on Monday

andatleastfourhourson Saturday. [Section 1-7.5-107(4.3), C.R.S.andElectionRule 7.5.1(d))

IE Eachstatutorilyrequired stand-alone drop-offlocation will be openfrom 7:00a.m. until 7:00 p.m. onelectionday.
[Election Rule 7.5.1(d)]

7. Ballot delivery and processing

X
X
X

The Countywill notifyits local postal representative of the election and supply a mailpiece design analyst with the design
of the mail ballot packet toensure that it meets postal standards.
Ballots will contain the warning specified in section 1-7.5-107(3)(b), C.R.S.

Toprotectthevoter's privacy, the Countywillinclude asecrecy sleeveinthe mail ballot packet. The sleeve will be the
same sleeve transmitted underPart9 ofthis plan. [Section 1-7 5-104.5,C.R.S))
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Toensurethatundeliverable mail ballot packets are returnedto the County, the Countywillmark mailballot packet
envelopes with: “DO NOT FORWARD. RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED," “RETURN POSTAGE GUARANTEED," or any
othersimilarlanguage thatis in accordance with United States Postal Service regulations. [Section 1-7.5-107(3)a), CR.S ]

The County will foltow the proceduresin section 1-7,5-107(3.5), C.R.S., regarding voters who have been marked "1.D.
required.”

TheCountywillfollowthe proceduresin Election Rule 7.5forreceiving, stamping, and logging ballotseachdayas they
comein.

The County willissue replacementballots according to section 1-7.5-107(3)(d), C.R.S.

XNHXX X X

The County will follow the procedures in section 1-7.5-107.3, C.R.S. and Election Rule 7.8 during signature verification.

Please provide the address of your central count location:
| 522 Lincoln Ave, Steamboat Springs, CO 80487 |

8. Ballotand voting equipmentsecurity
The Caunty will file the security plan required under section 1-5-616(5}, C.R.S. and Election Rule 20. The County will follow
|Z] the proceduresinRule 20to ensure security of all voting equipment.

TheCountywillnotleave ballots unattended during processing. Afterprocessing, the Countywill store ballotsinasafe,
<~ secure area under the supervision of the County Clerk, or the County Clerk's designee. [Election Rule 20.9.4]

9. Secrecy Sleeve and Voter Instructions [Section 1-7.5-106(1), C.R.S. and Election Rule 7.1]
CHOOSE ONE:

The County will use the Secrelary of State-approved secrecy sleeve and instructions. The County will include a copy of the
secrecysleeveandinstructions--containingall County-specificinformation--inthe emailtransmission ofthisplan. Ifthe
Countydoesnotusethe"Combined”sleeve, the Countywillsubmitbothan"IDRequired"anda"NoIDRequired"sleeve.

-OR-

D TheCountywilluseitsownsecrecysleeve and volerinstructions. The Countywillsubmitacopyofthe sleeveand
instructionsin the email transmission of this plan,

Please indicate all deviations from the Secretary of State's secrecy sleeve and instructions:

10. Ballot Stubs

D Please check this box only if the County will use ballot stubs under section 1-5-407(1)(b}, C.R.S.

11. Outside Company Information

If you engage an outside company to create your ballot or program the election database for your voting system, please
providethefollowinginformationformthe company:

Companyname: I N/A

Company address: | N/A

Contact person's telephone number; | N/A

|
|
Contactperson's name: J N/A ]
|
|

Contactperson’'semail address: |NIA
If youengage an outside company toprint, insert, and/or mail your bafiots, please provide the followinginformation for
the company:
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Companyname: ] Integrated Voting Solutions, Inc

Company address: { 4105 Holly Street, Unit 3, Denver, CO 80216

Contactperson's name: [ Marie Cramer

Contact person's felephone number:; I 303-601-0182

Contactperson'semail address: | marie@integravote.com

JE I N N R

Addresswhere the companywill print ]
and insert ballots, if applicable: 4105 Holly Street, Unit 3, Denver CO 80216

Addressof USPSfacilitywherethe | gy 7560 E 53rd Place, Denver, CO 80266
companywilldeliverballots,ifapplicable:

12. Miscellaneous

Ifthe County has additional informationit wouldlikeustoconsider, please provide theinformationbelow.

]

Please complete the timetable on the next page.

]



Written Timetable
Pleasecompletethetimetablebysupplyingthe pertinentdates ordateranges

Dates populatedfrom election

[Section1-10-102(1),C.R.S.]

dale entered onpage 2 YourDate
Date ballots will be transmitted to UOCAVA electors (No later
than45 daysbefore the election)[Section1-8.3-110,CR.S] | Nolaterthan09/19/15 Sep 18,2015
Date Countywill mailballots (no soonerthan 22 daysbefore
the electionand no laterthan 18 days before the election) -?g:‘,’lvgﬁln; 0/i2/d5/and 10/13/2015
[Section 1-7.5-107(3}, C.R.S]
Date County will publish notice of election (no later than 20
days before the election) [Section 1-7.5-107(2.5), C.R.S ] Nolaterthan10/14/15 Oct11,2015
Date county will begin counting ballots (no soonerthan15 . ]
days before the election) [Section 1-7.5-107.5, C.R.S.] No socner than 10/19/15 | Oct19, 2015
Election Date Tuesday, November3,2015 |Nov3,2015
ID_eadIIne for County to mail signature discrepancy and I.D.
deficiency cure letters to affected electors (no laterthan 2 o , : :
daysafter election day)[Sections 1-7.5-107(3.5)(d)and fio/02 NOVS ;205
1-7.5-107.3(2)a), G.R.S.]
Deadline for electors with signature discrepancies or 1.D.
deficiencies to submit necessary cure documentation to the
County(within 8 days afterthe election) A5 AU
[Sections 1-7.5-107(3.5)(d)and 1-7.5-107.3(2)(a), C.R.S.]
Deadline for. Gounty to receive ballots from UOCAVA electors :
(close ofbusinessonthe 8thday afterthe election) 11/11/15 :} Nov12,2015
[Section 1-8.3-113(2), C.R.S]] '
Deadlinefor Countyto verifyand countall provisional ballots
(within 14 days afterthe election)[Section 1-8.5-105(5), C.R.5 ] | 11/17/19 Al
\Deadlineforthe canvassboardto complete its duties (nolater _
thanthe 17th day afterthe election) 11/20/15 Nov20,2015

|
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Town Council Agenda Item
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Resolution 2015-18 approving a limited waiver of right to require a
franchise agreement for the extension of broadband services to Hayden
School District facilities using Town of Hayden property.

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda
PRESENTED BY: David Torgler

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: No
BACKGROUND REVIEW:

Section 9-4. Public Utility Franchises of the Town of Hayden Home Rule Charter (a) states no
public utility, including telecommunications, may use or occupy Town property without
obtaining a utility franchise or permit authorized by an ordinance adopted by the Town Council.

The Town’s franchise agreement, adopted by Ordinance 663, with Yampa Valley Electric
Association allows for other utilities and telecommunication franchises to use YVEA's
infrastructure to extend services to properties in the Town limits, provided those companies have
franchise agreements with the Town to pay for their private use of the public’s property; or, that
the Town has granted a franchise waiver to the company. Mammoth Networks and the Hayden
School District desire to extend a broadband connection from the Eagle Network node located at
the rear of Town Hall to the Hayden School District facilities at 495 W. Jefferson Avenue using
YVEA’s infrastructure, e.g. poles and underground conduit. Mammoth Networks has requested a
franchise waiver for this limited use,

The franchise agreement is limited in scope to serve the Hayden School District and has been
approved by the Town Attorney, Mammoth Networks and YVEA.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve Resolution 2015-18.
MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:

Inasmuch as this franchise waiver is limited and benefits the school district a franchise waiver
seems like a housekeeping matter which is why Resolution 2015-18 is on the consent agenda.
Mammoth Networks is trying to have the broadband connection extended to the school district
before the start of the school year and approval of the franchise waiver will help them to meet
this goal.
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RESOLUTION 2015-18

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LIMITED WAIVER OF RIGHT TO REQUIRE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR THE EXTENSION OF BROADBAND SERVICES TO
HAYDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT FACILITIES USING TOWN OF HAYDEN PROPERTY

!\J

RECITALS

. The Town of Hayden owns property including rights-of-way within the Town limits.

Pursuant to Town of Hayden Ordinance 667 Yampa Valley Electric Association, Inc.
(YVEA) and the Town have entered into a Franchise Agreement (Agreement)
allowing for the placement of YVEA utility infrastructure on Town property
including within rights-of-way.

YVEA may allow other entities who have been granted franchises from the Town of
Hayden, other than for electric service, to utilize the poles and overhead structures of
YVEA within the Town upon reasonable terms and conditions to be agreed upon by
the Town, the Cooperative and such other entities.

Visionary Communications, Inc., dba Mammoth Networks has entered into an
agreement with YVEA to use YVEA facilities for the placement of lines, attachments
and apparatus for the sole purpose of providing the Hayden School District at 495 W.
Jefferson Avenue, with broadband connectivity (the Project).

Mammoth Networks does not have a franchise agreement with the Town of Hayden
for the Project, nevertheless YVEA and the Town Council desire that Mammoth
Networks complete the Project without the necessity of first obtaining a franchise
from the Town of Hayden.

The Hayden Home Rule Charter, Article 8, Section 8-2 Contracts, stipulates that
except as otherwise prescribed by the Town Council, the Town Council shall approve
all contracts for the Town.

The Town Council of the Town of Hayden agrees with YVEA that it is in the best
interest of the community to waiver from the Agreement and approve the Limited
Waiver of Right to Require Franchise Agreement attached hereto as Attachment A to
Mammoth Networks.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HAYDEN TOWN COUNCIL AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That the Town Council hereby approves the Limited Waiver of Right to Require

Franchise Agreement attached hereto as Attachment A.

Section 2. That the Town Council approves the Limited Waiver of Right to Require Franchise

Agreement attached hereto as Attachment A only for the purpose or purposes as



stated in Attachment A and for no other purpose or purposes without the prior written
consent of the Town Council.

Section 3. The Town Council hereby authorizes the signature of the Mayor on the approved
Limited Waiver of Right to Require Franchise Agreement.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and adoption.

INTRODUCED, PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED THIS 6" DAY OF AUGUST
2015.

James M. Haskins, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk



Attachment A

LIMITED WAIVER OF RIGHT TO REQUIRE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS LIMITED WAIVER OF RIGHT TO REQUIRE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT is
made and entered into by the undersigned municipality (“municipality”), at the request of
YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC., a Colorado co-operative corporation
(“YVEA”) and the undersigned Licensee,

WHEREAS, the Municipality and YVEA acknowledge that the Municipality has the
right and option, at its sole election, to require that any entity desiring to place certain lines,
attachments and apparatus on certain poles or in certain conduits of YVEA located within the
streets, alleys, roads, and public rights-of-way and public property within the Municipality, for
the limited purpose of the transmission of communications or signals, must first obtain from the
Municipality a franchise agreement with the Municipality in accordance with its laws or
procedures or contracts or charter; and

WHEREAS, the following-named entity (the “Licensee™) has applied to YVEA to enter
into a Joint Use License Agreement with YVEA (the “License”) to permit the Licensee to place
certain lines, attachments and apparatus on certain poles or in certain conduits owned by YVEA
and located within the streets, alleys, roads, and public rights-of-way and public property within
the Municipality, for the limited purpose of the transmission of communications or signals, as
described in the following generally-described project {the “Project™) and project area (“Project
Area™):

Name/Address of Proposed Licensee

Visionary Communications, Inc.
/dba Mammoth Networks

2799 Douglas Hwy, Suite 201
Gillette, WY 82717

Identification of Project and Project Area

Approximately 1800” of Fiber Optic Line to be run from the Hayden Town Hall facility to the
Hayden School District at 495 W. Jefferson Ave. for the sole purpose of providing the Hayden
School District with broadband connectivity.

WHEREAS, the Licensee does not have a franchise agreement with the Municipality for
the Project or the Project Area; and

WHEREAS, nevertheless YVEA and the Municipality desire the Licensee to complete

the Project within the Project Area without necessity of first obtaining a franchise from the
Municipality.
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Attachment A

NOW, THEREFORE, the Municipality hereby irrevocably and permanently waives and
releases the necessity or requirement for the Licensee to obtain from and enter into with the
Municipality a franchise for completion of the Project within the Project Area as described
herein this Agreement, and agrees that YVEA may enter into a Joint Use License Agreement
with the Licensee for such Project within the Project Area on terms acceptable to YVEA in its
discretion. This waiver and release shall NOT apply to any other Project in any other Project
Area, for which Licensee may be required to obtain a franchise from the Municipality. This
waiver and release shall not affect any existing franchise agreement between the Municipality
and YVEA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Municipality has executed this Limited
Waiver on the date set forth below.

MUNICIPALITY:

Town of Hayden

Date: , 20 By:

(Signature)

(_M"ayor)
REQUESTS FOR LIMITED WAIVER:

YAMPA VALLEY ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC., and the undersigned Licensee do
hereby request that the Municipality approve the above Limited Waiver for only the Project
within the Project Area, acknowledging that this waiver will not apply to any other Project of
Licensee within any other Project Area and will not affect any franchise of YVEA itself. YVEA
agrees to send to Municipality the Joint Use License Agreement with the Licensee for such
Project within the Project Area.

Yampa Valley Electric Association, Inc.,

Date: .20 By:

(Signature)

(Position or Title)

i
]
i



Date;

LICENSEE:

Visionary Communications, Inc.

Attachment A

(Signature)

(Position or Title with Licensee)
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Town Council Agenda Item
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Resolution 2015-19 of the Town Council for Hayden, Colorado
approving a lease with the West Routt Fire Protection District for use
of Town land for the operation of Fire District Training Facilities.

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda

PRESENTED BY: David Torgler and Dal Leck, Fire Chief
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: If needed
BACKGROUND REVIEW:

On May 12, 1998 the Town of Hayden (*Town”) and the West Routt Fire Protection District
(“WRFPD") did enter into a ten year renewable lease agreement for the use of Town owned land
for the operation of Fire District training facilities, The WRFPD has utilized the land in
accordance with the lease agreement. The WRFPD’s attomey has advised that the lease
agreement should be updated and renewed with the Town. Chief Leck and the Town Manager
have reviewed the current lease agreement and updated it in the form presented.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 2015-19.

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:
I concur with the above recommendation.

In 1998 the Town and Fire District entered into a lease agreement that provides land to the local
fire department to host fire training facilities. The leased land is a former landfill of the Town
and is immediately adjacent to the Hayden Speedway, Stokes Gulch MotoX track, County Road
and Bridge facilities and ranch lands. The proposed lease is similar to the current lease only
updated. Per the current and proposed lease agreement any change in use shall be first approved
by the Hayden Town Council,



RESOLUTION 2015-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR HAYDEN, COLORADO APPROVING A
LEASE WITH THE WEST ROUTT FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FOR USE OF TOWN
LAND FOR THE OPERATION OF FIRE DISTRICT TRAINING FACILITIES

RECITALS
1. On May 12, 1998 the Town of Hayden (“Town") and the West Routt Fire Protection District

(“WRFPD”) did enter into a ten year renewable lease agreement for the use of Town owned land for
the operation of Fire District training facilities.

(S

The WRFPD has utilized the land in accordance with the lease agreement.

3. The WRFPD seeks to update and renew the lease agreement with the Town in the form attached
hereto as Attachment 1.

4. The Hayden Town Council believes that it is beneficial for the Town to update and renew the lease
agreement with the WRFPD,

5. The Hayden Home Rule Charter, Article 8, Section 8-2 Contracts, stipulates that except as otherwise
prescribed by the Town Council, the Town Council shall approve all contracts for the Town.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY TIIE HAYDEN TOWN COUNCIL AS FOLLOWS:
Section I.  That the Town Council hereby approves a Lease Agreement with the West Routt Fire
Protection District, which is more particularly described in Attachment I, attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Lease™).
Section 2. The Town Council hereby authorizes the signature of the Mayor on the Lease.

Section 3.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED THIS DAY OF AUGUST 2015.

James M. Hasidns, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk

42



Attachment 1

TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
and
WEST ROUTT FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE made and entered, to be effective the Ist day of June, 2015 by and between the
TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO ("Landlord"), and WEST ROUTT FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT ("Protection District” or "Tenant").

WITNESSETH THAT:

Landlord does hereby lease to Tenant and Tenant does hire and take from Landlord, 8.12 acres of
unimproved land platted and legally described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof
("Leased Premises").

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Leased Premises with all appurtenances thereto for a term of TEN
(10) years commencing on the Ist day of June, 2015 and ending on May 31, 2025, (the "Original
Term") subject to renewal as reflected below and subject to the following terms, covenants and
conditions:

L RENT.

A. Rent. Tenant shall pay to the Landlord at the Hayden Town Hall, 178 West
Jefferson Avenue, Hayden, Colorado, or at such place or places that Landlord
shall designate from time to time in writing, rent for the Leased Premises in an
amount equal to TEN DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($10.00), payable in the
amount of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) per year on the 1st day of June in each year
during the term of this Lease.

B. Taxes. There will be no taxes payable by either party under this Lease. If any
taxes are required to be paid to any governmental authority as a result of
Tenant's use of or sales from the Leased Premises, such taxes shall be paid by
Tenant.

C. Utilities. Landlord shall not furnish any utilities for the Leased Premises.
Tenant shall fumnish its own utilities and shall pay therefor.

II. USE OF LEASED PREMISES.
A. Use of Leased Premises. Tenant shall use the leased Premises for the operation

of fire department training facility and for no other purpose. Tenant's use of the
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Leased Premises shall be subject to such rules and regulations as may be
adopted by Landlord for Tenant's use and occupation of the Leased Premises.
Tenant has constructed a fire training facility on the Premises. At the termination
of this Lease, Tenant shall, at the option of Landlord, remove all improvements
to the Leased Premises, including the training facility, and restore the Leased
Premises to its condition, as it existed at the commencement of the 1998 Lease
(the original lease), ordinary wear and tear excepted.

B. Change of Use of Leased Premises. Any change in or expansion of the use of
the Leased Premises from that use permitted in Paragraph 2(A) above shall be
first approved by the Hayden Town Couneil.

[1lI.  REPAIRS.

A. Tenant Repairs. Tenant shall keep the Leased Premises in good order,
condition and repair, and in a clean, sanitary and safe condition and, in
accordance with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulation of any
governmental authority having jurisdiction, and shall permit no waste, damage
or injury to the Leased Premises.

IV. LANDLORD'S INDEMNITY.

A. Indemnity. Tenant shall indemnify and save Landlord harmless against any and
all claims, demands, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees for
the defense thereof, for injury to person, loss of life or damage to property
occurring during the term of this Lease and arising from the conduct or
management of the business conducted by Tenant on the Leased Premises, or the
occupancy or use thereof, or of Tenant's contractors, agents, servants,
employees, sublessees, invitees, concessionaires, or licensees, and occurring in
or about the Leased Premises. In case of any action or proceeding brought
against Landlord by reason of any such claim, upon notice from Landlord,
Tenant shall defend such action or proceeding by counsel reasonably satisfactory
to Landlord.

B. Liens. Any property kept, stored or maintained on the Leased Premises shall be
so kept, stored or maintained at the sole risk of Tenant. Tenant shall pay and
discharge any mechanic's, materialman's or other lien against the Leased
Premises claimed in respect of any labor, services, materials, supplies or
equipment furnished or alleged to have been furnished to or upon the request of
Tenant; provided that Tenant may contest such lien claim, upon furnishing to
Landlord such indemnification for the final payment and discharge thereof
together with the cost and expense of defending the same, as Landlord may



reasonably require. Should any such lien or notice of lien be filed or recorded
against the Leased Premises, or served by process upon Tenant, Tenant shall
give written notice thereof to Landlord as soon as it has knowledge thereof,

C. Compliance of Laws. Tenant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws
applicable at the Leased Premises with respect to licensing of the activities on
the Leased Premises, workers compensation, unemployment insurance, safety
and health.

V.  TENANT'S LIABILITY INSURANCE.

A. Liability Insurance. Tenant shall procure and maintain a policy or policies of
insurance at its own cost and expense insuring Landlord and Tenant from all
claims, demands or actions arising from any damage or loss to person or
property occurring on the Leased Premises with such limits and coverages as the
Landlord may determine. At the time of execution Tenant shall procure such
insurance with limits not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) property
damage in any one accident and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for
personal injury in any one accident. The policy or policies, or duly executed
certificate or certificates for the same, together with satisfactory evidence of the
payment of the premiums thercon, shall be deposited with Landlord at the
commencement of the term of this Lease and at each renewal period of said
policy or policies.

VI. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.

A. Restrictions. Tenant shall not assign or in any manner transfer this Lease or any
interest therein, nor hypothecate this Lease or Tenant's interest in and to the
Leased Premises, nor permit occupancy by anyone with, through or under it.
Any assignment or transfer without Landlord's consent shall be null and void
and confer no rights on third persons, and shall constitute a default hereunder.
Consent by Landlord to one or more assignments of this Lease or to one or more
sublettings of the Leased Premises shall not operate as a waiver of Landlord's
rights under this Section to any subsequent assignments or subletting, nor release
Tenant or any guarantor of Tenant of any of its obligations under this Lease or
be construed or taken as a waiver of any of Landlord's rights or remedies
hereunder.

VII. ACCESS TO PREMISES.

A. Inspection. Landlord or Landlord's authorized representatives shall have the
right to enter upon the Leased Premises at all reasonable hours for the purpose of
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inspecting the same, or for the purpose of exhibiting the same to prospective
tenants, purchasers or others. Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant in any
manner for such action, nor shall the exercise of such right be deemed an
eviction or disturbance of Tenant's use or possession.

VIII. DEFAULTS.

A. Events of Default. The following shall constitute defaults of the Tenant
hereunder:

1. The failure to pay any installment or rent or other charge or money
obligation herein required to be paid by Tenant within ten (10) days
after the same is due.

2. The failure by Tenant to perform any affirmative obligation of the
Tenant hereunder for a period of ten (10) days after notice of such
failure from Landlord, except when such obligation cannot
reasonably be performed within such period, Tenant shall not be in
default if it shall commence such performance within such period and
shall thereafier prosecute the same with diligence and continuity.

3. Failure of Tenant 10 complete the repairs and maintenance required by
Paragraph III.

4. The making by Tenant of an assignment for the benefit of its
creditors.

5. The doing or permitting to be done by Tenant of any act which
creates a mechanic's lien or claim therefor against the Leased
Premises and the same is not released or otherwise provided by
indemnification satisfactory to Landlord within thirty (30) days
thereafter.

6. Insolvency, dissolution or liquidation of the Tenant.

In case of and such default, Landlord shall have the rights and remedies
hereinafier set forth in this Article VIIl, in addition to all remedies at law,
inequity or by statute, and all such remedies shall be cumulative; said remedies
and all other existing hereunder or at law, in equity or by statute, may be
exercised without prior demand or notice except as required herein, and none of
the following, whether or not exercised by Landlord shall exclude exercise of
any other remedy whether herein set forth or existing at law, in equity or by
Statute.

B. Termination. In case of any such default, Landlord shall have the right to

terminate this Lease by giving Tenant notice in writing and upon the giving of
such notice, this Lease and the term hereof, as well as all the rights, title and
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interest of Tenant hereunder shall wholly cease and expire in the same manner
and with the same force and effect (except as to Tenant's liability) as of the date
fixed by such notice were the expiration of the term herein originally granted.
The right granted to Landlord in this or any other section to terminate this Lease
shall apply during the extension of the term, and the exercise of any such right
by Landlord shall terminate any extension of the term and any right on the part
of Tenant to any further extensions.

C. Right of Landlord to Cure Defaults of Tenant. In the event of any breach
hereunder by Tenant, Landlord may immediately, or at any time thereafter,
without notice, cure any such breach for the account and at the expense of
Tenant. If Landlord, at any time, by reason of such breach is compelled to pay
any sum of money or do any act which will require the payment of any sum of
money, or is compelled to incur any expense including reasonable attorney's
fees, in instituting or prosecuting any action or proceeding to enforce Landlord's
rights hereunder, the sum or sums so paid by Landlord, with interest at the rate
of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month from the date of payment thereof,
shall be deemed to be additional rent hereunder and shall be due from Tenant to
Landlord on the first day of the month following the payment of such respective
SUmS Of eXpenses.

[X. SURRENDER OF POSSESSION.

A. Surrender. At the expiration of the tenancy created hereunder, whether by
lapse of time or otherwise, Tenant shall surrender the Leased Premises in good
condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear or loss by fire or other
unavoidable casualty excepted.

X. GENERAL.

A. Landlord Consent. Whenever, under this Lease, provision is made for tenant
securing the consent or approval by Landlord, such consent or approval shall be
in writing and shall not be unreasonably withheld, save that Landlord's right to
withhold consent or approval to the assignment of this Lease or subletting of the
Leased Premises shall remain unqualified.

B. No Partnership. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed or construed by the
parties hereto, nor by any third party, as creating the relationship of principal

and agent or of partnership or of joint venture between the parties hereto.

C. Gender. Whenever herein the singular number is used, the same shall include
the plural, and words in any gender shall include the other genders.
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D. Waiver. No delay or omission of the right to exercise any power by either party
hereunder shall impair any such right or power, or shall be construed as a waiver
of any default or as acquiescence therein. One or more waivers of any covenant,
term or condition of this Lease by either party shall not be construed by the other
party as a waiver of a subsequent breach of the same covenant, term or
condition. The consent or approval of either party to or of any act by the other
party of a nature requiring consent or approval shall not be deemed to waive or
render unnecessary consent to or approval of any subsequent similar act.

E. Titles. The headings of the several Articles and Sections contained herein are for
convenience only and do not define, limit or construe the contents of such
Articles and Sections.

F. Representations.  All negotiations, considerations, representations and
understandings between the parties are incorporated herein, and may be
modified or altered only by agreement in writing between the two parties.
Landlord has made no representations or promises whatsoever with respect to
the Leased Premises, except those contained herein, and no other person, firm or
corporation has, at any time, had any authority from Landlord to make any
representations or promises on behalf of Landlord, and Tenant expressly agrees
that if any such representations or promises have been made by others, Tenant
waives all right to rely thereon.

G. Force Majeure. Whenever a period of time is herein provided for either
Landlord or Tenant to do or perform any act or thing, such party shall not be
liable or responsible for, and there shall not be excluded from the computation of
such period of time, any delays due to strikes, riots, acts of God, shortages of
labor or malterials, national emergency, acts of a public enemy, governmental
restrictions, laws or regulations, or any other cause or causes, whether similar or
dissimilar to those enumerated, wholly beyond its control. The provisions of this
Section shall not operate to excuse Tenant from the prompt payment of rent or
any other payments required by the terms of this Lease,

H. Compliance with Laws. Tenant and Landlord shall comply with and require
each of their employees, agents and contractors to comply with all federal, state
and local laws, ordinances, regulations and directions relating to the
employment, conditions of employment and hours of labor in connection with
the use of the Leased Premises and any construction, alteration, installation or
repair work done on or about the Leased Premises.

XI. NOTICES.

A. Address. Whenever, under this Lease, a provision is made for notice of any
kind, such notice shall be given in writing and signed by or on behalf of the
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party giving or making same and it shall be deemed sufficient notice and service
thereof if such notice is addressed to Tenant and sent by registered or certified
mail, postage prepaid, to the last post office address of Tenant furnished to
Landlord for such purpose, or to the Leased Premises, and if to Landlord, sent
by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to Landlord at the address
furnished for such purpose, or to the place then fixed for the payment of rent. If
Landlord or Tenant is more than one person, notice need be sent to but one
Tenant or Landlord, as the case may be. For purposes of initial notices,
addresses are as follows:

TO TENANT:  Fire Chief

WEST ROUTT FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, INC.
P.O. Box 1324
Hayden, Colorado 81639-1324

TOLANDLORD: Town Manager

TOWN OF HAYDEN

P.O. Box 190

178 W. Jefferson Avenue
Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190

WITH A COPY TO:  Michael J. Holloran, Esq.

XIL

P.O. Box 773600
141 9th Street
Steamboat Springs, Colorado 80477-3600

SPECIAL PROVISIONS.

A. Use by Landlord. This Lease is expressly subject to all easements, restrictions,

reservations and rights-of way of record.

. Fence Construction. Tenant shall maintain a legal fence, as defined by

Colorado statue, around the perimeter of the Leased Premises and an eight foot
high chain link security fence across the portion of the Leased Premises
bordering RCR 53, with such additional specifications for both fences as may be
determined by Landlord. Tenant shall maintain a gate for use by Landlord on the
Leased Premises. Tenant shall maintain such fence during the term of the Lease.
Tenant, at its option, may install additional fencing and gates within the Leased
Premises and also parallel to the Haul Road provided no fencing encroaches on
the Haul Road or any drainage facilities or any other adjoining property to the
Leased Premises. All fencing and gates shall be removed by Tenant at the
termination of the Lease if required by Landlord.
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C. Absolute Net Lease. This Lease shall be an absolute net lease to Landlord, i.e.,
Landlord shall incur no costs or expenses whatsoever under this Lease. All
expenses incurred or necessary for the Leased Premises during the term of this
Lease shall be incurred and paid by Tenant.

D. Renewal of Lease. Unless otherwise terminated, this Lease shall automatically
renew for four separate, ten-year terms, at the expiration of each ten year term,
totaling fifty (50) years. Any renewal shall only be effective if Tenant is, at the
time of renewal, in possession of the Leased Premises under the Original Term
or a renewal term. Either party may terminate this Lease at the end of any ten
year term by providing notice to the other party in writing, at least six (6)
months prior to the end of any ten year term.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease on the day of August
2015.

LANDLORD:
TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
A Home Rule Municipality

Erﬁes M. Haskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk

TENANT:
WEST ROUTT FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Ross Fralick, President

ATTEST:

David Funk, Secretary
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Town Council Agenda Item
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Resolution 2015-21 Ratifying the Purchase of Interest in Walker
Ditch Association and Water Rights from the Cozzens Family

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda

PRESENTED BY: David Torgler

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: No

BACKGROUND REVIEW:

The heirs of Pete and Emma Cozzens own water rights in the Walker Irrigating Ditch that are
senior to the 1922 Colorado River compact and are willing to sell them to the Town of Hayden.
Water Resources Engineering, a firm used by the Town to review the Town’s water rights, plan
for droughts, and prepare a Plan for Augmentation presently before the District Water Court for
approval, estimated the value of this water right for the Town Council. The heirs of Pete and
Emma Cozzens have agreed to sell their proportional interest in the water right to the Town of
Hayden and have executed Quitclaim Deeds for their rights to the Town. The price for this water
right is within the amount estimated by Water Resource Engineering.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 2015-21.

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:

This purchase is within the parameters previously acceptable to the Town Council and I concur
with the above recommendation.
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RESOLUTION NO. 2015-21

A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF INTEREST IN WALKER DITCH
ASSOCIATION AND WATER RIGHTS FROM THE COZZENS FAMILY

RECITALS
The Town of Hayden, Colorado (the “Town"), is a Colorado home rule municipality, duly

organized and existing under the laws and the Constitution of the State of Colorado and the
Town of Hayden Home Rule Charter (“Charter”).

2

Per the Town of Hayden’s Home Rule Charter, Section 9-7 Town Utilities (a) the Town shall
have and exercise all the authority and powers provided by the Colorado Constitution, state
statutes, and other applicable laws in any matter pertaining to Town-owned utilities,
including water and water rights and acquisitions thereof.

Per the Town of Hayden’s Home Rule Charter, Section 10-4 Water Rights (a) the Town shall
have the right and power to buy, appropriate, adjudicate, sell, condemn, exchange, lease,
own, control and otherwise deal in water rights including the right to compel the dedication
and conveyance of all water rights associated with real property as a condition precedent to
obtaining or maintaining water or other municipal services from the Town.

On December 7, 1953 W.P. Cozzens purchased 1/10™ of 1 cubic foot of water per second of
time out of the Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share in the ditch and water rights
therein, recorded at Reception No. 175240, Book 258, Page 424 of the Routt County
Recorder’s Office.

A Personal Representative’s Deed executed June 4, 1980 by Emma Cozzens as Personal
Representative of the Estate of William P. Cozzens, a/k/a William Porter Cozzens, a’k/a W.P.
Cozzens, @/k/a Pete Cozzens, Deceased, recorded at Reception No. 297301, Book 505, Page
2 of the Routt County Recorder’s Office granted fractional interests in 1/10th of 1 cubic root
of water per second of time out of the Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share in
the ditch and water rights therein to Emma M. Cozzens one-half fractional interest and one-
sixteenth fractional interest to Laura Mae Armett, Tommy James Cozzens, Ruth Marie
Kiggins, Betty June Ball, Carol Joyce Baker, Mary Lois Arnett, Roy Allen Cozzens and
Ruby Lee Ross.

The Quit Claim Deed made September 26, 1982 between Emma M. Cozzens and Laura Mae
Amett, Tommy James Cozzens, Ruth Marie Kiggins, Betty June Ball, Carol Joyce Baker,
Mary Lois Amett, Roy Allen Cozzens and Ruby Lee Ross, recorded at Reception No.
320864, Book 571, Page 367 of the Routt County Recorder’s Office, quit claimed 1/10" of 1
cubic foot of water per second of time out of the Walker Iirigating Ditch and a proportionate
share in the ditch and water rights therein.

Tommy James Cozzens deeded to Richard P. Cozzens, Sherry E. Fithen and William P.
Cozzens one-third of one-eighth interest of 1/10" of 1 cubic foot of water per second of time

53



10.

11

13.

out of the Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share in the ditch and water rights
therein.

Paul Flood, subdivision developer of 12.5 acres of land previously owned by the Cozzens
family and where the 1/10" of 1 cubic foot of water per second time out of the Walker
Irrigating Ditch was historically applied responded to the Hayden Planning Commission on
September 19, 2002 that he did not intend to purchase these water rights in the Walker Ditch.

Water ownership records maintained by the Colorado Division of Water Resources (DWR),
which may not reflect actual ownership, state that the Town of Hayden owns 1 CFS, 2.33%
of 1% 5 Rights, from “Baker”. The DWR records do not show any transactions conveying
these water rights.

A Water Rights Portfolio, completed by Water Resource engineers for the Town of Hayden
in November 2013 do not show the Town has acquired the water rights owned by the heirs of
Pete Cozzens.

. A review of the water rights owned by the heirs of Pete Cozzens by Water Resource

engineers, requested by the Town, estimates the consumptive use credit is between 16.8 AF
to 21.6 AF which the Town can apply to the Water Court to move to the Town’s water
treatment plant intake.

- The water rights owned by the Cozzens heirs in the Walker Ditch were appropriated by the

Walker Irrigating Ditch between 1882 and 1902.

The Town’s Plan for Augmentation, completed in 2014 by Water Resource engineers,
recommend that the Town should keep options open to continue the acquisition of senior
agricultural water rights associated with the future developable lands located within or near
its water service area. Agricultural water rights senior to the 1922 Colorado River compact
call are especially desirable.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE

TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO THAT:

Section 1. The Town Council believes that it is in the best interest of the Town of Hayden to acquire

water rights in the Walker Irrigating Ditch owned by the heirs of Pete Cozzens (**Heirs”).

Section 2. The Town Council hereby agrees to purchase all of the Heirs interest in 1/10 of 1 cubic foot

of water per second of time out of the Walker Lrrigating Ditch and a proportionate share in the
ditch and water rights therein from the following Heirs and Grantors: William P. Cozzens,
Laura May Arnett, Mary Lois Amett, Roy Allen Cozzens, Richard P. Cozzens, Ruby Lee
Ross, Carol Joyce Baker, Betty June Cozzens, Sherry E. Fithen and Ruth Marie Kiggins for
the price of $10,000.

Section 3. The Town Council hereby accepts Quitclaim Deeds, for all of the Heirs interest in 1/10 of 1

cubic foot of water per second of time out of the Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate
share in the ditch and water rights therein from the following Heirs and Grantors; William P.
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Cozzens, Laura May Arnett, Mary Lois Amett, Roy Allen Cozzens, Richard P. Cozzens,
Ruby Lee Ross, Carol Joyce Baker, Betty June Cozzens, Sherry E. Fithen and Ruth Marie
Kiggins.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS DAY OF AUGUST, 2015.

James M. Haskins, Mayor

ATTEST

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk
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QUIT CLAIM DEED
(WATER RIGHTS)

THIS DEED 1s made this .3 1 day of#g‘@, 2015 , between WILLIAM P,

COZZENS, Grantor, 1563 North Ranney #ireet, @raig, CO 81623 for the consideration of FOUR
HUNDRED SEVENTEEN DOLLARS ($417.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE
CONSIDERATION in hand paid. hereby sells and quitclaims to the Town of Hayden. a Colorado home
rule town, Grantee, whose street address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefferson Ave, Hayden, CO
81639, County of __ ROUTT , State of __ COLORADQ, the following real property in the
County of ROUTT , and State of Colorado, to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in 1/10 of 1 cubic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein.,

TOGETIIER with all of its appurtenances,

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written.

2
WILEIAM P. COZ/LEENS
STATE OF COLORADO )

)88,
COUNTY of WDFE®T )

The foregoing Quit Claim Deed was acknowledged before me this Z)l_dn}' of >U !,\,I_
. 2015 by WILLIAM P. CO7ZENS.

LORI GOWDY
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF COLORADO
NOTAKY 1D #20054029870
tiv Commisslon Expires July 29, 2017

Witness my hand and official seal.

My commission expires C
otary Public \(
When recorded return to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190

Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190
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QUIT CLAIM DEED
(WATER RIGHTS)

THIS DEED is made this 20 day of_iu‘(-q 2015 . between LAURA MAF
ARNETT, Grantor, Box 1. Ashmont, Alberta, Canada, TOA 0CO for the consideration of ONE
THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS ($1.230.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION in hand paid. hereby sells and quitclaims to the Town of Hayden, a
Colorado home rule town, Grantee, whose street address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefferson Ave,
Hayden, CO 81639, County of ___ ROUTT , State of ___COLORADO, the following real property
in the County of ROUTT , and State of Colorado, to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in [/10 of 1 cubic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein.,

TOGETHER with all of its appurtenances.

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the usc of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written.

NMotrn sy (2o T

I AURA MAE ARNETT /_/

CANADA )
}ss.
PROVINCE of Nt )

The foregoing Quit Claim Deced was acknowledged before me this 20 day of
Jold . 2015 by L AURA MAE ARNETT.

Witness my hand and official seal.
My commission expires HI 7Y

Notary Public D R. HOLETON
EIA%%F]“ER & SOLKCITOR

When recorded return to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190
Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190
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QUIT CLAIM DEED

(WATER RIGHTS)
THIS DEED is made this 2} day of N4 !”'i 3 2015 , between MARY LOIS
ARNETT, Grantor, Box 32, Ashmont, Alberta, Canada, TOA 0CO for the consideration of ONE

THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLI ARS ($1,250.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION in hand paul, hereby sells and quitclaims to the Town of Hayden, a
Colarado home rule town, Grantee, whose street address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefterson Ave,
Hayden, CO 81639, County of __ROUTT , State of __COLORADQO, the following real property
in the County of ROUTT , and State of Colorado, to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in 1/10 of 1 cubic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein.,

TOGETHER with all of its appurtenances.

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singutar, and the usc of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written,

P, e oo

MARY pAIS ARNLTT

CANADA )
)ss.

PROVINCE of _Qlber¥a )

The foregoing Quit Claim Deed was acknowledged before me this D1 day of

Sk g 2015 by MARY LOIS ARNETT.

Witness my hand and official seal. /
My commission expires A/ /A’ g .

Notary Public TREVOR R. LEE
BARRISTER & SOLICITOR & NOTARY PUBLIC
ANE-FORTHEPROVINGE OP ALBERTS

1AL A

When recorded return to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190
Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190
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QUIT CLAIM DEED
(WATER RIGHTS)

THIS DEED is made ihis_li day of S.LJE"'l 2015 . between ROY ALLEN
COZZENS, Grantor, Box 139, Ashmont, Alberta, Canada, TOA 0CO for the consideration of ONE
THOUSAND TWQO HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS ($1,250.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION in hand paid. hereby sells and quitclaims to the Town of Hayden, a
Colorado home rule town, Grantee, whose street address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefferson Ave,
Hayden, CO 81639, County of ___ROQUTT , State of __ COLORADO, the following real property

in the County of ROUTT . and State of Colorado. to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in 1/10 of 1 cubic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein.,

TOGETHER with all of its appurtenances.

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written,

Qﬂ"'\ OIQQQW C%@A&Q_. §
ROY ALLENXCOZZENS

CANADA )
}ss.
PROVINCE of RCRERTA |

The foregoing Quit Claim Deed was acknowledged before me this 15 day of
Xuttd | 2013 by ROY ALLEN COZZENS.

Witness my hand and official seal.
' My comniission expires [-IIA.

Notary Public

RICHARD R. HOLETOH
BARRISTER & SCLKTOS

When recorded return to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190
Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190
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QUIT CLAIM DEED
(WATER RIGHTS)

THIS DEED 15 made tllisﬁ_ﬁduy of J:ic /'I 2015 , between RICHARD P.
COZZENS, Grantor, 1045 Mancos Way. Fruita. C 81521 for the cansideration of FOUR HUNDRED
SEVENTEEN DOLLARS ($417.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION in
hand paid, hereby sells and quitclaims to the Town of Hayden. a Colorado home rule town, Grantec,
whose street address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefferson Ave, Hayden, CO 81639, County of
ROUTT,, State of __COLORADQO, the following real property in the County of ROUTT , and
State of Colorado, to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in 1/10 of 1 cubic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein,,

TOGETHER with all of its appurtenances.

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written.

RICIIARD P. COZZENS
STATE OF COLORADO )
)ss.

COUNTY of TSR )

The foregoing Quit Claim Deed was acknowledged before me this _L‘S_ day nﬂjﬂl i'
. 2015 by RICHARD P. COZZENS.

PATRICWA OLIVO TELLEZ
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF COLORADO
NOTARY ID 20124068825
Y COMMISSION EXPIRES NOVEMBER 1, 2018

Witness my hand and official seal.

My commission expires [J5L/ O , 20l

Notary Public

When recorded return to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190
Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190
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QUIT CLAIM DEED
(WATER RIGHTS)

THIS DEED 1s made this ay of \ 1ol i 2015 . between RUBY LEE ROSS.
Grantor, 1081 School Street, Craig, CO 8 1625 for the consideration of ONE THOUSAND TWO
HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS ($1250.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE
CONSIDERATION in hand paid. hereby sells and quitclaims to the Town of Hayden, a Colorado home
rule town, Grantee, whose sireet address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefferson Ave, Hayden, CO
81639, County of __ROUTT , State of __ COLORADO, the following real property in the
County of ROUTT , and State of Colorado, to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in 1/10 of 1 cubic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein.,

TOGETHER with all of its appurtenances.

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the usc of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written.

RUBY LEF/ROSS

STATE OF COLORADO )
¥ )ss.
COUNTY ofﬂ %"Tk'/_ )3S

The foregoing Quit Claim Deed was acknowledged before me this / j day of }_,L ’ L’i
, 2015 by RUBY LEE ROSS.

ANGELA C. FREDRICKSON
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF COLORADO
NOTARY ID #20134064824
My Commission Expires October 11, 2017

Witness my l}and angl ofﬁcial seal. \¢ (‘ 3
My commission expires &17[ N{ Z(Jl 7 ‘/{/’\y “é ( -QC'(" é;b ()

Notary Public

When recorded return to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190
Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190
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QUIT CLAIM DEED
(WATER RIGHTS)

THIS DEED is made this___ day of 2015 . between CAROL JOYCE
BAKER. Grantor. P.O. Box 723, Hayden, CO 81639 for the consideration of ONE THOUSAND TWO
HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS ($1.250.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE
CONSIDERATION in hand paid. hereby sells and quitclaims to the Town of Hayden, a Colorado home
rule town, Grantee, whose street address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefferson Ave, Hayden, CO
81639, County of __ ROUTT , State of __ COLORADO, the following real property in the
County of ROUTT . and State of Colorado, to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in 1/10 of | cubic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein.,

TOGETHLER with all of its appurtenances.

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written.

C«CL-‘\-(,\.( ()r‘(«""'lf.*)s- \/')-) ,C}../KQ..L’\

CAROL JOYCE BAKFR
STATE OF COLORADO )
}s5.
COUNTY of )

: jthe foregoing Quit Claim Deed was acknowledged before me mssg dayof
. hj,} L4, 2015 by CAROL JOYCE BAKER,

RUBY WERTENBERGER
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF COLORADO
NOTARY D 20124003191 "

Commission Expires Juné 13,20

Witness my hand and official seal. —

My compmission expires . < g
d’ / %Z:Q DM(' Notary Public

When recorded retumn to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190
Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190
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QUIT CLAIM DEED
(WATER RIGHTS)

THIS DEED is made this z day ofM 2015 , between BETTY JUNE

COZZENS, Grantor, 1568 North Ranne?Street, E':'aig. CO B1625 for the consideration of ONE
THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS ($1,250.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION in hand paid, hereby sells and quitclaims to the Town of Hayden, a
Colorado home rule town, Grantee, whose street address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefferson Ave,
Hayden, CO 81639, County of __ROUTT , State of __COLQRADO, the following real property
in the County of ROUTT , and State of Colorado, to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in 1/10 of 1 cubic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein.,

TOGETHER with all of its appurtenances.

The singular number shall include the plural. the plural the singular, and the use of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written.
)ss.

BETTY JUNE COZZF%S’?__ %
county of 1\ Ael )

The foregoing Quit Claim Deed was acknowledged before me this E day of :,S.g, ‘gf
~—— . 2015 by BETTY JUNI: COZZENS.

STATE OF COLORADO )

Witness my hand and official seal. g B /\//§ f
My commission expires \ / "\_Z//( 7 {Yfﬁﬁfgj 2

Notary Public /

When recorded retumn to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190
Hayden, Colorado §1639-0190

ADRIANA ROBBINS
Notary Public
Stale of Colorado
Notary 1D 20094036938
My Commission Expires Nov 2, 01
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QUIT CLAIM DEED
(WATER RIGHTS)

THIS DEED 15 made tlus_?_ day of XL_@ZQ 2015 . between SHERRY E. FITHEN.
Grantor, C/O Beuy Cozzens , P.O, Box 163, Asl{ﬁmm, Alberta, Canada, TOA 0CO for the consideration of
FOUR HUNDRED SEVENTEEN DOLLARS {5417.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE
CONSIDERATION in hand paid, hereby sells and quitelaims to the Town of Hayden, a Colorado home
rule town, Grantee, whose street address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefferson Ave, Hayden, CO
81639, County of __ ROUTT , State of __COLORADO, the following real property in the
County of ROUTT , and State of Colorado, to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in 1/10 of I cubsic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein.,

TOGETHER with all of its appurtenances.

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written.

A sl
7

SHERRY EAATHEN
C_‘;{Ld 3 4 /fr
emnapn (c\er ccle )

FNRTY Jss.

proviNeEor W {at )

The foregoing Quit Claim Deed was acknowledged before me this day of
, 2015 by SHERRY E. FITHEN.

Notary Public

g
Witness my hand and official sea, / 74;./%/
My commission expires 4 (14 (Lt @fﬁjﬁ“‘ B

When recorded return to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190
Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190

ADRIANA ROBBINS
Notary Public
State of Colorado

Notary ID 20094036938
* *1e Commission Expires Nov 20, 2017




QUIT CLAIM DEED
(WATER RIGHTS)

77!
THIS DEED is made this_%~ day of __ J LY 2015 . between RUTH MARIE
KIGGINS. Grantor. 541 Conner Drive, Craig. CO 81623 for the consideration of ONE THOUSAND TWO
HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS ($1,230.00) AND OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE
CONSIDERATION in hand paid. hereby sells and quitclaims to the Town of Hayden. a Colorado home
rule town, Grantee, whose street address is P.O. Box 190, 178 West Jefferson Ave, Hayden, CO
81639, County of __ ROUTT , State of __ COLORADQ, the following real property in the
County of ROUTT , and State of Colorado, to wit:

All of Grantor’s interest in [/10 of 1 cubic foot of water per second of time out of the
Walker Irrigating Ditch and a proportionate share of the ditch and the water rights therein.,

TOGETHER with all of its appurtenances.

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender
shall be applicable to all genders, signed as of the day and year first above written,

5 | -
/7,/.?_’.' /Htu /f.:'/&_.z

RUTHMARIEKIGGINS 1 77

L]

STATE OF COLORADO )
)ss.

county of_Jy Joof { ot )

The foregoing Quit Claim Deed was acknowledged before me this gé 7{4dny of A,
, 2015 by RUTH MARIE KIGGINS,

A

Witness my hand and official seal.
My commission expires

When recorded return to: Town Clerk
Town of Hayden
P.O. Box 190
Hayden, Colorado 81639-0190

ADRIANA ROBBINS
Notary Public
State of Colorado

] Notary ID 20094036938
My Commission Expires Nov 20, 2017
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Town Council Agenda Item
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Public Hearing and 2™ Reading of Ordinance 666 An Ordinance of
the Town Council of the Town of Hayden, Colorado, permitting,
regulating and licensing the cultivation of retail and medical marijuana
under limited circumstances and making conforming amendments to
subsection 8.08.080.A., to Sections 8.35.010, 8.35.040, 16.03.040.1.3
and 16.03.040.J.3, and to Titles 5 and 16 of the Hayden Municipal
Code.

AGENDA SECTION: Old Business
PRESENTED BY: David Torgler

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: No
BACKGROUND REVIEW:

The Town Council approved 1% Reading of Ordinance 666 at their July 16, 2015 meeting and
scheduled a public hearing of the ordinance for August 6",

At the March 19, 2015 Town Council meeting a local resident interested in having his property
in the Valley View industrial park be used to commercially grow marijuana asked the
Councilmembers to consider amending the Town Codes and allow for this use. Marijuana
cultivation is not currently allowed in the Town of Hayden. At the Council meeting there was no
discussion about selling marijuana, creating edibles or testing; just grow operations.
Councilmembers expressed interest in pursuing the possibility of grow operations and asked the
Planning Commission to review this land use. In response the Planning Commission reviewed
the following issues and developed a draft ordinance:

1. Should marijuana be grown as an agricultural enterprise with the Town limits?

2. How will the cultivation of manijuana affect the image of the Town?

3. Will there be an economic benefit to the Town’s tax base if the cultivation of marijuana is
allowed?

4. Should the Town regulate cooperative marijuana grow operations and limit the number of
plants grown at any facility for private and/or medicinal use?

5. Have other municipalities experienced an increase in local criminal activity when
cultivation operations are allowed?

6. What nuisances are created by marijuana cultivation operations such as odor, noise and
traffic?



7. How do municipalities license marijuana cultivation operations?

8. Within which zoning district(s) should marijuana cultivation be allowed to be
commercially grown?

9. Should the land use be automatically allowed or only through a conditional use permit
process (including public hearings)?

10. Should marijuana cultivation operations be separated by distance from certain other uses
such as schools, churches, daycare facilities, residential zoning districts, senior housing
or other sensitive populations?

11. Should marijuana cultivation facilities be separated by distance from other similar
facilities?

12. Should there be limits on the size of a building devoted to marijuana cultivation?

13. Should there be limits on the number of marijuana cultivation operations within the
Town?

14. How will the marijuana cultivation waste stream be regulated to avoid dumpster diving?

15. How can the visibility of marijuana cultivation operations be limited, including signage?

16. Can the regulations require marijuana cultivation operators to secure their property?

17. Will water usage exceed the Town’s ability to provide water and sewer facilities?

18. What are nearby municipalities doing regarding marijuana businesses?

RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning Commission recommends NOT allowing for the cultivation of marijuana in the
Town of Hayden and recommends approval of Town Code(s) regulating the cultivation of
marijuana to limit private cultivation operations at any property to twelve (12) marijuana plants.

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:

With the assistance of several local officials, the experiences and insights offered by Colorado
municipalities that currently allow for the cultivation of marijuana, and a law firm experienced in
municipal law (including the drafting of marijuana related municipal codes) the attached
ordinance has been prepared. Ordinance 666 addresses the land use, nuisance and licensing
concerns raised by the Planning Commission members and the public during the recent
discussions. Approval of Ordinance 666 will allow for property owners to apply for conditional
use permits, for businesses to apply for a marijuana cultivation licensing and for staff to
effectively enforce local marijuana cultivation operation regulations. Applications for
conditional use permits do require review and recommendations from the Planning Commission
and action by the Town Council as well as public hearings on the application. Licenses for
marijuana cultivation cannot be issued to a business owner without a conditional use permit.
Ordinance 666 does not approve an excise tax on the wholesale of harvested marijuana plants
which will require voter approval. A ballot amendment proposing an excise tax is prepared for
consideration at the August 6™ Town Council meeting.

Per Hayden’s Home Rule Charter, Section 3-3. Procedure for Ordinances, the ordinance shall be
read a second time in a public hearing by title and number. The ordinance may be amended at
2™ Reading provided that any amendments address the same general subject matter addressed at
1" Reading. After 2" Reading the ordinance shall be approved or rejected by a vote of the
Council.
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ORDINANCE NO. 666

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN,
COLORADO, PERMITTING, REGULATING AND LICENSING THE
CULTIVATION OF RETAIL AND MEDICAL MARIJUANA UNDER LIMITED
CIRCUMSTANCES AND MAKING CONFORMING AMENDMENTS TO
SUBSECTION 8.08.080.A., TO SECTIONS 8.35.010, 8.35.040, 16.03.040.1.3 AND
16.03.040.1.3, AND TO TITLES 5 AND 16 OF THE HAYDEN MUNICIPAL
CODE

RECITALS

In the November 2000 general election, the voters of the State of Colorado adopted Amendment 20 to
the Colorado Constitution ("Article XVIII Section 14") which, among other things, authorizes the sale
of medical marijuana for use in the treatment of debilitating medical conditions.

In response, and for those reasons stated in Ordinance No. 632, the Town Council (“Council”) of the
Town of Hayden, Colorado (“Town™) prohibited the location, operation or other establishment of
Medical Marijuana Centers, Optional Premises Cultivation Operations, and Medical Marijuana-
Infused Products Manufacturers in Town.

At the November 2012 general election, the voters of the State of Colorado adopted Amendment 64
to the Colorado Constitution ("Article XVIII, Section 16") which authorizes the use, possession,
growth, transport and transfer of marijuana in limited amounts and under limited circumstances, and
further authorizes the conduct of business to cultivate, produce, test and sell marijuana and marijuana
products.

In response, and for those reasons stated in Ordinance No. 659, the Council prohibited the location,
operation or other establishment of Marijuana Establishments, as that term is defined by Article
XVIII, Section 16, within Town.

Among the stated reasons for the above-referenced prohibitions were: Amendment 64 did not provide
information on how the conduct of business to cultivate and sell marijuana would meet the new State
of Colorado laws, or how the Federal government would react to the State of Colorado’s voter
supported constitutional amendment to cultivate and sell marijuana, or how the Town would pay for
the licensing, permitting and regulation of marijuana cultivation business(s), or what nuisances would
arise from the cultivation of marijuana and how these nuisances would be addressed to minimize the
nuisance impact on neighboring properties, or how the Town might afford to defend itself if local
policies and regulations for the cultivation, sale and taxation of the marijuana business(s) were
challenged; and the Council now finds and determines that other Colorado municipalities have
adopted codes to provide for proper ways to regulate and permit marijuana businesses, that the
Federal government is currently allowing Colorado marijuana cultivation businesses to continue, that
the Town Council can set licensing, permitting and regulatory fees at an amount likely to fully cover
the Town-incurred expenses, that nuisances arising from marijuana cultivation operations are capable
of being mitigated and regulated with proper enforcement, and that by adopting regulations and
permit requirements similar to those successfully adopted and implemented by other Colorado



communities, the Town can mitigate the previously identified concerns and taxpayers can benefit by
the economic opportunities, property development, a broadening of the local job diversity, increased
local tax revenue and local job growth.

6. Based on its observations of the secondary effects of marijuana cultivation activities in other
Jurisdictions, the Council finds that such activity can pose a significant risk to the public health, safety
and welfare if and when the use of pesticides, fertilizers, butane and other combustible materials is
unregulated and when individuals without experience or training in cultivation or extraction methods
begin to experiment with such activity.

7. 'The Council further finds that, while cultivation and extraction activities present a risk if unregulated,
those risks may be mitigated through regulations that limit such activities to certain zone districts,
limit the permissible size and scope of home-based cultivation and require commercial cultivation
operations to obtain a Town license and to meet certain health, safety and welfare standards.

8. The Council now therefore desires to adopt regulations to permit and license, under certain limited
circumstances, the cultivation of both medical and retail marijuana within the Town.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN,
COLORADO, THAT:

Section 1. Findings and Intent. The above and foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by reference
and adopted as findings and determinations of the Town Council of the Town of Hayden,
Colorado.

Scction 2. Title 5 of the Hayden Municipal Code (“Code™), concerning Business Taxes, Licenses and
Regulations, is hereby amended by the addition of a new Chapter 5.22, to read in its entirety

as follows:
Chapter 5.22
MARIJUANA CULTIVATION FACILITIES
Sections:
5.22.010. Purpose, Intent and Other Laws
5.22.020. Definitions
5.22.030. Application
5.22.040. Licensing Authority created
5.22.050. Composition of the Authority
5.22.060. Functions of the Authority
5.22.070. License required; term of license; renewal application
5.22.080. Application requirements; payment of application fee
5.22.090. Denial of application
5.22.100. Persons prohibited as licensees
5.22.110. Requirements related to the premises
5.22.120, Prohibited acts.
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5.22.130, Required books and records

5.22.140. Inspection of licensed premise

5.22.150. Nonrenewal, suspension or revocation of license
5.22.160. Violations and penalties

5.22.170. No Town liability; indemnification; no defense
5.22.010 Purpose, Intent and Other Laws

A. The purpose of this Chapter is to authorize, under limited circumstances and in
limited locations, the cultivation of retail marijuana pursuant to the Colorado Retail
Marijuana Code and the cultivation of medical marijuana pursuant to the Colorado
Medical Marijuana Code, which authorize the licensing and regulation of marijuana
cultivation and affords the Town the option to determine whether or not to allow such
cultivation within its jurisdiction and to adopt licensing requirements that are
supplemental to or more restrictive than the requirements set forth in state law. The
intent of this Chapter is to establish a nondiscriminatory mechanism by which the
Town can control, through appropriate regulation, the location and operation of
marijuana cultivation within the Town. Nothing in this Chapter is intended to
promote or condone the sale, distribution, possession or use of marijuana in violation
of any applicable law. Compliance with the requirements of this Article shall not
provide a defense to criminal prosccution under any applicable law.

B. If the State adopts any stricter regulation governing the cultivation of marijuana than
that set forth in this Chapter, the stricter regulation shall control such activity in the
City. A licensee may be required to demonstrate, upon demand by the local licensing
authority or by law enforcement officers, that the source and quantity of any
marijuana found upon the licensed premises are in full compliance with applicable
state regulation. If the State prohibits the cultivation of marijuana, any license issued
under this Chapter shall be deemed immediately revoked by operation of law, with
no ground for appeal or other redress by the licensee. The issuance of any license
pursuant to this Chapter shall not be deemed to create an exception, defense or
immunity to any person in regard to any potential criminal liability the person may
have for the cultivation, possession, sale, distribution or use of marijuana.

5.22.020. Definitions

The following words and phrases, when used in this Chapter, shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this Section:

Applicant means any person or entity who has submitted an application for a license or
renewal of a license issued pursuant to this Chapter. If the applicant is an entity and not a
natural person, applicant shall include all persons who are members and managers of
such entity.
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Colorado Medical Marijuana Code means Title 12, Article 43.3 of the Colorado Revised
Statutes, as amended from time to time, and any rules or regulations promulgated
thereunder.

Coloradeo Retail Marijuana Code means Title 12, Article 43.4 of the Colorado Revised
Statutes, as amended from time to time, and any rules or regulations promulgated
thereunder.

Consumer means a person who purchases marijuana for his or her own use and not for
resale to others.

Cultivation or cultivate means the process by which a person grows a marijuana plant.

Facility means the defined area in which a cultivation operation may be conducted,
whether the entirety of a building or structure or a unit, suile, leaseable space or other
defined portion thereof, as clearly-delineated on the site plan or other development
approval associated with the conditional use permit issued for the facility and on the
detailed diagram of the proposed licensed premises required to be filed with the Town
pursuant to Section 5.22.080.B.(7) hereof as part of an application for a License under
this Chapter.

Fee schedule means the Town of Hayden Fee Schedule, as adopted and amended by the
Town Council from time to time.

Good cause (for the purpose of refusing or denying a license or license renewal under
this Chapter) means: (1) the licensee has violated, does not meet or has failed to comply
with any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this Chapter, of the Colorado Retail
Marijuana Code, of the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code, of any rule or regulation
promulgated pursuant to such Codes or pursuant to this Chapter, or of the Hayden
Municipal Code; (2) the licensee has failed to comply with any special terms or
conditions that were placed on its license, whether state or local, at the time the license
was issued, or that were placed on its license, whether state or local, in prior disciplinary
proceedings or to which the licensee agreed in the context of potential disciplinary
proceedings; or (3) the licensee's facility has been found to have been operated in a
manner that adversely affects the public health, welfare or safety of the immediate
neighborhood in which the facility is located. Evidence to support such a finding can
include: (i) a continuing pattern of offenses against the public peace; (ii) a continuing
pattern of drug-related criminal conduct within the premises of the facility or in the
immediate area surrounding the facility; or (iii) a continuing pattern of criminal conduct
directly related to or arising from the operation of the facility.

Industrial hemp means the plant of the genus Cannabis and any part of such plant,
whether growing or not, with a Delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration that does not
exceed three-tenths percent (0.03%) on a dry-weight basis.



License means a document issued by the Town officially authorizing an applicant to
operate a marijuana cultivation facility pursuant to this Chapter, or, if required by the
context, means a document issued by the state licensing authority pursuant to the
Colorado Retail Marijuana Code.

Licensed premises means the premises specified in an application for a license under
this Chapter which is owned or in possession of the licensee and within which the
licensee is authorized to cultivate marijuana in accordance with state and local law.

Licensee means the person or entity to whom as license has been issued pursuant to this
Chapter.

Marijuana means all parts of the plant of the genus Cannabis, whether growing or not,
the seeds thereof, the resin extracted from any part of the plant and every compound,
manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture or preparation of the plant, its seeds or its resin,
including marijuana concentrate, but provided, however, that such concentrate must have
been extracted with water-based methods. Water-Based marijuana concentrate is the
only type of marijuana concentrate that a Marijuana cultivation facility is authorized to
produce under a License issued pursuant to this Chapter. Marijuana does not include
industrial hemp, nor does it include fiber produced from the stalks, oil or cake made from
the sceds of the plant, sterilized seed of the plant which is incapable of germination or the
weight of any other ingredicnt combined with marijuana to prepare topical or oral
administrations, food, drink or other product.

Marijuana cultivation facility means an entity licensed to cultivate more than twelve {12)
marijuana plants at any one time, prepare and package the marijuana and either provide
medical marijuana to one or more patients or sell marijuana o marijuana stores, (o
marijuana product manufacturing facilities, to other marijuana cuitivation facilities, to
medical marijuana centers or to medical marijuana-infused products manufacturers, but
not to consumers.

Marijuana product manufacturing facility shall have the same meaning as set forth in the
Colorado Retail Marijuana Code.

Marijuana store shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Colorado Retail
Marijuana Code.

Medical marijuana center shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Colorado
Medical Marijuana Code.

Medical marijuana-infused products manufacturer shall have the same meaning as set
forth in the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code.

State means the State of Colorado.
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State licensing authority shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Colorado Retail
Marijuana Cede, in the context of retail marijuana, and in the Colorado Medical
Marijuana Code, in the context of medical marijuana.

Water-based marijuana concentrate means a specific subset of marijuana that was
produced by extracting cannabinoids from marijuana through the use of only water, ice or
dry ice.

B. In addition to the definitions contained in Subsection (a) above, other terms used in
this Chapter shall have the meaning ascribed to them in Article XVIII, Section 14, of the
Colorado Constitution or in the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code or in the Colorado
Retail Marijuana Code, and such definitions are hereby incorporated into this Chapter by
reference.

5.22.040. Licensing Authority created.

There shall be and is hereby created a Marijuana Licensing Authority, hereafier referred
to in this Chapter as the "Authority.”

5.22.050. Composition of the Authority.
The Authority shall be the Town Clerk.
5.22.060. Functions of the Authority.

A. The Authority shall have the duty and authority pursuant to this Chapter and the
Colorado Medical Marijuana Code and Colorado Retail Marijuana Code to grant or deny
licenses, as well as all powers of a local licensing authority as set forth in said Colorado
Codes.

B. The Authority shall have the power to: (i) promulgate rules and regulations concerning
the procedures for hearings before the Authority; (ii) require any applicant or licensee to
furnish any relevant information required by the Authority; and (iii) administer oaths and
issue subpoenas to require the presence of persons and the production papers, books and
records at any hearing that the Authority is authorized to conduct. Any such subpoena
shall be served in the same manner as a subpoena issued by a district court of the State.

5.22.070. License required; term of license; renewal application.

A. Tt shall be unlawful for any person to establish or operate a marijuana cultivation
facility in the Town without first having obtained from the Town and from the State, if
the State requires licensure of such a facility, a license for each facility to be operated.
Such licenses shall be kept current at all times and shall be conspicuously displayed at all
times in the premises to which they apply. The failure to maintain a current license shall
constitute a violation of this Section.
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B. It shall be unlawful for any person, group of persons or entity to cultivate more than
twelve (12) marijuana plants on any premises without first having obtained the license
required by this Chapter, regardless of whether such plants are grown individually or co-
operatively, for wholesale, personal use or for provision to another, as a commercial
enterprise, as a caregiving enterprise or for purely personal use, and regardless of any
other factor(s) concerning such cultivation.

C. Any license issued by the Authority under this Chapter shall expire one year afier the
date of its issuance.

D. An application for renewal of an existing license shall be made on forms provided by
the Town and the State. At the time of the renewal application, each applicant shall pay a
nonrcfundable fee to the Town, as set forth in in the Fee Schedule, to defray the costs
incurred by the Town for background investigations, review of the application and
inspection of the proposed premises, as well as any other costs associated with the
processing of the application.

5.22.080. Application requirements; payment of application fee.

A. Prior to making an application for a license, the person potentially secking the license
shall first attend at least one pre-application meeting with the Town Manager, Town
Clerk and any other Town official or employee whose presence is requested by the Town
Manager or Clerk. The purpose of the pre-application meeting is to advise the potential
applicant as to the process for applications under this Chapter, to answer preliminary
questions from the potential applicant and to provide an opportunity to identify issues
that might preclude the issuance of a license pursuant to this Chapter. Prior to such pre-
application meeting, the potential applicant shall pay a pre-application fee to the Town,
as set forth in Fee Schedule, to defray the costs incurred by the Town in conducting the
meeting. A person seeking a license shall submit an application to the Town on forms
provided by the State and Town. At the time of application, each applicant shall pay an
application fee to the Town, as set forth in Fee Schedule to defray the costs incurred by
the Town for background investigations, review of the application and inspection of the
proposed premises, as well as any other costs associated with the processing of the
application. In addition, the applicant shall present for recording one (1) of the following
forms of identification:

(1} An identification card issued in accordance with Section 42-2-302, C.R.S.;
(2) A valid state driver's license;

(3) A valid driver's license containing a picture issued by another state;

(4) A United States military identification card;

(5) A valid passport; or
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(6) An alien registration card.

B. The applicant shall also provide the following information on a form approved by,
and acceptable to, the Town, which information shall be required for the applicant and all
persons having a financial interest in the facility that is the subject of the application or, if
the applicant is an entity, having a financial interest in the entity:

(1) Name, address, date of birth and other identifying information as may be
required;

(2) An acknowledgement and consent that the Town may conduct a background
investigation, including a criminal history check, and that the Town will be
entitled to full and complete disclosure of all financial records of the facility,
including but not limited to records of deposits, withdrawals, balances and loans;

(3) If the applicant is a business entity, information regarding the entity,
including without limitation the name and address of the entity, its legal status
and proof of registration with, or a certificate of good standing from, the
Colorado Secretary of State, as applicable;

(4) A copy of the deed reflecting the applicant's ownership of, or a lease
reflecting the right of the applicant to possess, the proposed licensed premises;

(5) If the applicant is not the owner of the proposed licensed premises, a
notarized statement from the owner of such property authorizing the use of the
property for a marijuana cultivation facility;

(6) Evidence of the issuance of a valid Town excise tax license, if required;

(7) A clearly legible "to scale” diagram of the proposed licensed premises, no
smaller than 8.5" x 11" and no larger than 11" x 17", showing, without limitation,
the building layout, all entryways and exits to and from the proposed licensed
premises, all areas in which marijuana will be cultivated and stored, and all
proposed areas of water-based extraction activities;

(8) A comprehensive operation plan for the cultivation facility that contains, at a
minimum, the following:

a. A description of the security provisions and systems meeting the
requirements of Section 5.22.110.E. of this Chapter; and

b. An exterior lighting plan; and
c. A description of the cultivation activities, including without limitation,

the area in which plants will be grown, a description of the ventilation
and odor filtration system for the premises, if required by Section
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5.22.110.D. of this Chapter, and a description of the automatic fire
suppression system, if required by applicable building and fire codes;
and

(9) An area map drawn to scale indicating land uses of other properties within a
500-foot radius of the property upon which the applicant is seeking a license. The
map shall depict the proximity to the property to any school, park or commercial
child care center.

(10) Any additional information that the Authority reasonably determines to be
necessary in connection with the investigation, review and determination of the
application.

C. A license issued pursuant to this Chapter does not eliminate the need for the licensee
to obtain other required permits or licenses related to the operation of the facility,
including, without limitation, any development approvals or building permits required by
this Code.

D. Upon receipt of a complete application, the Authority shall circulate the application to
all affected service areas and departments of the Town to determine whether the
application is in full compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. No
license shall be approved until after the Authority has caused the proposed premiscs to be
inspected to determine compliance of the premises with any applicable requirements of
this Chapter and Code, and with the plans and descriptions submitted as part of the
application. Within thirty (30) days after the completion of the Authority's investigation
of the application, the Authority shall issue a written decision approving or denying the
application for licensure, which decision shall state the reasons for the decision and be
sent via certified mail to the applicant at the address shown in the application. In addition,
the Authority shall promptly notify the State Medical Marijuana Licensing Authority of
any approval of an application for local licensure.

E. After approval of an application, the Authority shall not issue a license or license
certificate until the building in which the business is to be conducted is ready for
occupancy with such furniture, fixtures and equipment in place as are necessary to
comply with the applicable provisions of this Chapter. After approval of an application,
the Authority shall not issue a license or license certificate until the applicant provides
written evidence that the applicant has paid all license application fees due to the State in
connection with the State Licensing Authority's review of the application, where
applicable. Each license certificate issued by the Town pursuant to this Chapter shall
specify the date of issuance, the period of licensure, the name of the licensee and the
premises or optional premises licensed.

5.22.090. Denial of application.

The Authority shall deny any application that does not meet the requirements of this
Chapter and may deny an application that does not meet the requirements of the Colorado
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Medical Marijuana Code. The Authority shall also deny any application that contains any
false, misleading or incomplete information. Denial of an application for a license shall
be subject to review by a court of competent jurisdiction.

5.22.100. Persons prohibited as licensees.
No license shall be issued to, held by or renewed by any of the following:

A. Any applicant who has made a false, misleading or fraudulent statement, or who has
omitted pertinent information, on the application for a license;

B. Any applicant who has failed to pay all required state and local application and/or
license fees, as applicable.

C. Any licensee who is delinquent in or who has failed to file tax returns and other
required financial information, o remit taxes to the Town or the State, or who has
otherwise failed to conduct the facility in compliance with all applicable ordinances,
rules, regulations and laws.

5.22.110. Requirements related to the premises.

A. All cultivation, water-based extraction and related activities shall be conducted
indoors.

B. All product storage shall be indoors. Marijuana shall not be visible from a public
sidewalk or right of way.

C. No marijuana shall be consumed on the licensed premises.

D. The cultivation of marijuana that results in any single marijuana plant of a height
greater than twelve (12) inches is only permitted when the premises are equipped with a
system that removes the odors of the marijuana being cultivated so that the odor is not
detectable from the exterior of the business or from within any adjoining premises.
Approval of the odor removal system by the Building Inspector is required prior to any
cultivation process beginning. The Building Inspector's determination of the adequacy of
any proposed odor-removing system shall be based on his reasonable determination of
the ability of the proposed system to remove odors as required by this Subsection, which
determination shall be based upon the manufacturer’s or an engineer's design
specifications for the system as they relate to the premises in question.

E. Adequate security must be provided on the premises. At a minimum, the security shall
include:

(1) Security surveillance cameras installed and properly maintained to monitor
each entrance along the interior and exterior of the premises to discourage crime
and to facilitate the reporting of criminal acts, as well as nuisance activities;
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security video shall be preserved in the manner and for the period of time set
forth in the Colorado Medical Marijuana Enforcement Division Rules, as
amended from time to time;

(2) Robbery and burglary alarm systems that are professionally monitored and
maintained in good working condition;

(3) Exterior lighting that illuminates the exterior walls of the business during
evening hours and is compliant with the Town Code;

(4) A secure safe that is utilized for the purposes of storing cash and marijuana
that is not then being actively cultivated; and

(3) Locking systems for exterior doors that are designed and installed in such
fashion as to deter unlawful entry and provide safe emergency egress.

5.22.120. Prohibited acts.

A. It shall be unlawful for any licensee to permit the consumption of alcohol beverages,
as defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, on the licensed premises.

B. It shall be unlawful for any licensce to sell, dispense, give or otherwise distribute
marijuana except as permitied by law,

C. After issuance of a license, it shall be unlawful for a licensee to make a physical
change, alteration or modification of the licensed premises that materially or substantially
alters the licensed premises or the usage of the licensed premises from the plans and
specifications submitted at the time of obtaining the original license without obtaining the
prior written approval of the Authority and the State Licensing Authority, when
applicable. For purposes of this Subsection, physical changes, alterations or modification
of the licensed premises, or in the usage of the premises requiring prior written approval,
shall include but not be limited to the following:

(1) Any increase or decrease in the size or physical capacity of the licensed
premises;

(2) The sealing off, creation of or relocation of a common entryway, doorway,
passage or other such means of ingress and/or egress, when such common
entryway, doorway or passage alters or changes the cultivation, wholesale or
distribution of marijuana within the licensed premises;

(3) Any enlargement of a cultivation area; and
{4) Any change in the interior of the premises that would affect the basic

character of the premises or physical structure that existed in the plan on file as
part of the latest prior application.

11
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5.22.130. Required books and records.

A. In addition to any requirements under the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code or
Colorado Retail Marijuana Code, and any rules or regulations promulgated thereunder
requiring licensees to maintain books and records, every facility shall maintain an
accurate and complete record of all marijuana cultivated, all marijuana processed into
usable form, and all marijuana sold, given away, dispensed or otherwise distributed or
removed from the licensed premises. Such records shall include:

(1) The total quantity of marijuana cultivated and the total usable quantity of
marijuana produced from time to time, including the date(s) of cultivation and
the date(s) on which cultivated marijuana was reduced to usable form; and

(2) The date and time at which any marijuana was removed from the licensed
premises, including the amount of marijuana removed, the person who removed
it, the location to which the marijuana was delivered and the date and time of
such delivery.

B. All events and/or transactions that are to be recorded pursuant to this Section shall be
kept in a numerical register in the order in which they occur.

C. All records required to be kept under this Section must be kept in the English language
in a legible manner and must be preserved and made available for inspection by the Town
for a period of three (3) years after the date of the occurrence and/or transaction. The
licensee may redact any information the licensee is required by law to maintain as
confidential prior to providing records to the Town for inspection and shall provide to the
Town, upon request, a citation to the law that requires such non-disclosure or a copy of
any court order or other legal authority to withhold such information.

5.22.140. Inspection of licensed premises.

During all business hours and other times of apparent activity, all licensed premises shall
be subject 1o inspection by the Chief of Police, the Fire Chief, the Building Official or the
authorized representative of any of them, for the purpose of investigating and
determining compliance with the provisions of this Chapter and any other applicable state
or local law or regulation. Such inspection may include, but need not be limited to, the
inspection of books, records and inventory. Where any part of the premises consists of a
locked area, such area shall be made available for inspection, without delay, upon
request.

5.22.150. Nonrenewal, suspension or revocation of license.

A. The Authority may suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a license for any of the
following reasons:
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(1) The applicant or licensee, or his or her agent, manager or employee, have
violated, do not meet or have failed to comply with any of the terms,
requirements, conditions or provisions of this Chapter or with any applicable
state or local law or regulation;

(2) The applicant or licensec, or his or her agent, manager or employee, have
failed to conduct the licensed operations in conformance with the application
pursuant to which the license was issued, or have failed to comply with any
special terms or conditions of its license pursuant to the order of the State or
Local Licensing Authority, including those terms and conditions that were
established at the time of issuance of the license and those imposed as a result of
any disciplinary proceedings held subsequent to the date of issuance of the
license; or

(3) The facility has been operated in a manner that adversely affects the public
health, safety or welfare.

B. The Authority shall not suspend or revoke a license until afier notice and an
opportunity for hearing has been provided to the licensee.

C. The Authority shall not hold a hearing on a license renewal application unless a
complaint has been filed concerning the licensee or there are allegations against the
licensee that, if established, would be grounds for suspension, revocation or nonrenewal
under Subsection A. of this Section.

D. Evidence to support a finding under Paragraph A.(3) of this Section may include,
without limitation, a continuing pattern of disorderly conduct or drug-related criminal
conduct within the premises of the facilily or in the area immediately surrounding the
facility, or a continuing pattern of criminal conduct directly related to or arising from the
operation of the facility.

5.22.160. Violations and penalties.

In addition to the possible denial, suspension, revocation or nonrenewal of a license
under the provisions of this Chapter, any person, including but not limited to any
licensee, manager, agent or employee of a cultivation facility who violates any provision
of this Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable in accordance with Section
1.08 General Penalty of this Code.

5.22.170. No Town liability; indemnification; no defense.

A. By accepting a license issued pursuant to this Chapter, the licensee waives any claim
concerning, and releases the Town, its officers, elected officials, employees, attorneys
and agents from, any liability for injuries or damages of any kind that result from any
arrest or prosecution of facility owners, operators, employees, customers or patients of
the licensee for a violation of state or federal laws, rules or regulations,

13



B.

By accepting a license issued pursuant to this Chapter, all licensees, jointly and

severally if more than one (1), agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Town,
its officers, elected officials, employees, attorneys, agents, insurers and self-insurance
pool against all liability, claims and demands on account of any injury, loss or damage,
including without limitation claims arising from bodily injury, personal injury, sickness,
disease, death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever arising
out of or in any manner connected with the operation of the facility that is the subject of
the license.

C. The issuance of a license pursuant to this Chapter shall not be deemed to create an
exception, defense or immunity for any person in regard to any potential criminal liability
the person may have under state or federal law for the cultivation, possession, sale,
distribution or usc of marijuana.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

Subsection 8.08.080.A, of the Code, concemning Specific Nuisances Declared, is hereby
amended by the addition of a new paragraph 15, to read in its entirety as follows:

15. Regularly occurring or persistent unusual and/or offensive odors, smells,
fragrances, or other olfactory stimulus detectable by any person with a normal sense
of smell upon or within any nearby property or unit.

Subsection 8.35.010.A. of the Code, concerning Findings and Legislative Intent in regards to
the prohibition of marijuana establishments, is hereby amended to read in its entirety as
follows:

E. The Town Council therefore finds and determines that as a matter of the Town's local
land use and zoning authority, and consistent with authorization provided by Article XVTII,
Section 16 of the Constitution, that no suitable location exists within the corporate limits of
the Town for the manufacture and sale of marijuana by the operation of or through marijuana
establishments, marijuana product manufacturing facilities, marijuana testing facilities or
retail marijuana stores.

Section 8.35.040 of the Code, concerning the prohibition of Marijuana Establishments,
Marijuana Cultivation Facilities, Marijuana Product Manufacturing Facilities, Marijuana
Testing Facilities and Retail Marijuana Stores, is hereby amended to read in its entirety as
follows:

It is unlawful for any person or entity to operate, cause to be operated or permit to be issued
to operate a marijuana establishment, marijuana product manufacturing facility, marijuana
testing facility or retail marijuana store which license could otherwise be obtained with the
Town and all such uses and operations are hereby prohibited in any location within the Town
or within any area annexed to the Town.

Title 16 of the Hayden Municipal Code, concerning Land Use, is hereby amended by the
addition of a new Article 14, to read in its entirety as follows:
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ARTICLE 14 - MARIJUANA REGULATIONS

DIVISION1 RESIDENTIAL CULTIVATION RESTRICTIONS

Section 14.010. Legislative powers,

The Town Council hereby finds and declares that it has the power to enact this Article and the regulations
herein pursuant to Article XVIII, Section 16(5)(f) of the Colorado Constitution; C.R.S. § 12-43.4-104(3);
C.R.S. § 12-43.3-106; Article 20 of Title 29, CR.S.; Part 3 of Article 23 of Title 31, C.R.S.; Section 31-
15-103, C.R.S,; and Section 31-15-401, C.R.S.; and Section 31-15-501; Article XX, Section 6 of the
Colorado Constitution, and the Town’s Home Rule Charter.

Section 14.020.
Unlawful Acts.

It shall be unlawful for any person to cultivate marijuana in a residential zone district or in a residential
structure being used for residential purposes in any zone district except as permitted and regulated by this
Article.

Section 14.030 Definitions.
The definitions set forth in Chapter 5.22 of this Code shall apply to this Article.
Section 14.040. Residential Cultivation regulations.

A. The cultivation, production and possession of marijuana in a residential structure is permitted,
subject to the following requirements:

(1) The cultivation, production and or possession of medical marijuana plants must be in full
compliance with all applicable provisions of Article XVIII, Section 14 of the Colorado
Constitution, the Medical Marijuana Program, C.R.S. § 25-1.5-106, including its regulations set
forth in 5 CCR 1006-2; and the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code, if applicable, and all its
implementing rules and regulations; and

(2) The only cultivation activity that may occur as a home occupation is the cultivation by a primary
caregiver of medical marijuana for his or her patient(s), subject to all other applicable
requirements and restrictions, including but not limited to those restrictions set forth in this
Section as well as all home occupation requirements set forth in the Town’s zoning regulations.

(3) The cultivation, production and possession of marijuana for personal use by persons twenly-one
years of age or older must comply with the applicable provisions of Article XVIII of Section 16
of the Colorado Constitution and the requirements set forth in this Article.

(4) Marijuana must be cultivated, produced, processed and possessed within a person’s primary
residence, as defined in Subsection B. below; and
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(5) The cultivation, production, processing and possession of marijuana plants must not be conducted
in an open and public manner meaning it must not be perceptible from the exterior of the primary
residence, and such activity shall not cause or create any of the following:

a. Regularly occurring or persistent unusual odors, smells, fragrances, or other olfactory
stimulus detectable by any person with a normal sense of smell upon or within any
adjacent unit or property;

b. Light pollution, glare, or brightness that unreasonably disturbs others in the use or
enjoyment of their property, or constitutes a nuisance; or

c. Excessive noise.

(6) The residential structure must include ventilation and odor control in the area in which cultivation
occurs that is adequate to effectively eliminate odor from the cultivation travelling to and being
detected by a person with a normal sense of smell at the exterior of the premises, in the
surrounding neighborhood and/or in adjacent units.

(7) Marijuana plants shall not be cultivated, produced, processed or possessed in the common areas of
a multi-family or attached residential development; and

(8) The cultivation, production, processing and possession of marijuana plants shall be limited to the
following maximum permissible number of plants and area restrictions:

a. For a single-family dwelling unit (Group R-3 as defined by the most current intemational
building code adopted by the Town), within a single enclosed locked, defined, contiguous
area containing no more than twelve (12) plants within such person’s primary residence;

b. For a multi-family dwelling unit (Group R-2 as defined by the most current international
building code, adopted by the Town), within a single enclosed locked, defined,
contiguous area containing no more than twelve (12) plants within such person’s primary
residence,

(9) Marijuana plants shall not be cultivated, produced, processed or possessed in any accessory
structure; and

(10) The cultivation, production, processing and possession of marijuana plants shall meet the
requirements of all adopted Town building and life/safety codes; and

(11) The use of any compressed flammable gas as a solvent in the extraction of tetrahydrocannabinols
or other cannabinoids is prohibited; and

(12) The total load for a single branch circuit shall not exceed the ampacity for the entire cultivation
area within a dwelling.
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{13) Marijuana waste shall be rendered unusable prior to leaving the residence by grinding and

incorporating the material with non-consumable solid wastes such as food waste, soil or other
compostable materials through a garbage disposal or any other reasonably available residential
method or through any other method that renders such waste material unrecognizable and
unusable.

For purposes of this section, “primary residence” means the place that a person, by custom and
practice, makes his or her principal domicile and address, and to which the person intends to
return following any temporary absence, such as a vacation. Residence is evidenced by actual
daily physical presence, use, and occupancy of the primary residence, and the use of the
residential address for domestic purposes, such as, but not limited to, sleep, preparation of and
partaking of meals, regular mail delivery, vehicle and voter registration, or credit, water and
utility billing. A person shall have only one primary residence. A primary residence shalt not
include accessory buildings.

For purposes of this section, “enclosed locked” area means a location within the primary
residence accessible only to the person growing the marijuana through one or more doors secured
by a locking mechanism designed to limit access such as with a key or combination lock, and
with walls and roofing that must be constructed of solid materials. Such premises must remain
secure at all times and any windows must be locked to prevent access by children, visitors or a
casual passersby.

Scctions 14.050 - 14.060. Reserved.

DIVISION 2 NON-RESIDENTIAL CULTIVATION RESTRICTIONS.

Scction 14.070. Legislative intent.

A.

Town Council hereby finds and declares that the proliferation of large-scale, non-licensed, and
unregulated marijuana cultivation operations poses a significant threat to the health, safety, and
security of all citizens of the town. The Town Council finds that such operations can result in
increased violations of criminal laws along with violations of building, electrical, and fire codes
in these large cultivation operations. It is, therefore, the intent of the Town Council to place
reasonable and necessary restrictions upon such cultivations.

Section 14.080. Non-Residential Cultivation Restrictions.

A

B.

It shall be unlawful for any person, alone or in concert with other persons, to possess or cultivate
more than twelve (12) marijuana plans on any premises or within any structure in any zone
district in the Town without an approved Conditional Use Permit and without the license
required for such a cultivation facility under Chapter 5.22 of this Code .

It shall be unlawful for any person who owns, manages, operates or otherwise controls the use of
any premises to allow more than twelve (12) marijuana plants to be possessed or cultivated on the
premises without approval of a Conditional Use Permit and without the license required for such
a cultivation facility under Chapter 5.22 of this Code.
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C. It shall be unlawful for any person, alone or in concert with other persons, to cultivate marijuana
outside of a completely enclosed locked structure.

1. Nothing in this section shall be construed to allow the cultivation of marijuana in any
number, manner, or location that is in conflict with the cultivation restrictions imposed in this
Article within single family and multi-family residential dwelling units.

3

For purposes of this section:

a. “Completely enclosed locked structure™ means a structure as defined by the zoning code
accessible only to the persons cultivating the marijuana through one or more doors
secured by a locking mechanism designed to limit access such as with a key or
combination lock, and with walls and roofing that must be constructed of solid materials.
Such structure must remain secure at all times and any windows must be locked to
prevent access children, visitors or a casual passerby.

b. “Cultivate” means the planting, growing, harvesting, storing, drying, trimming, or
processing of marijuana plants.

D. The marijuana plants must be cultivated, produced, processed and possessed within the building
approved as part of any Conditional Use Permit process; and

E. The cultivation, production, processing and possession of marijuana plants must not be conducted
in an open and public manner meaning it must not be perceptible from the exterior of the building
on the subject site, and such activity shall not cause or create any of the following:

1. Regularly occurring or persistent unusual odors, smells, fragrances, or other olfactory
stimulus detectable by any person with a normal sense of smell upon or within any adjacent
unit or property;

[

Light pollution, glare, or brightness that unreasonably disturbs others in the use or enjoyment
of their property, or constitutes a nuisance; or

3. Excessive noise.

F. All marijuana cultivation facilities must employ and maintain ventilation and odor control that is
adequate for the size of the facility to effectively eliminate odor from the facility escaping the
facility so as to be detected by a person with a normal sense of smell at the exterior of the
premises, in the surrounding neighborhood or in adjacent units.

G. Marijuana plants shall not be cultivated, produced, processed or possessed in any accessory
structure.

H. The cultivation, production, processing or possession of marijuana plants shall meet the
requirements of all adopted Town building and life/safety codes.
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I. The use of any compressed flammable gas as a solvent in the extraction of tetrahydrocannabinols
or other cannabinoids is prohibited.

J. The total load for a single branch circuit shall not exceed the ampacity for the entire cultivation
area within the building.

K. Marijuana waste shall be rendered unusable prior to leaving the facility by grinding and
incorporating the material with non-consumable solid wastes such as food waste, soil or other
compostable materials.

L. Cultivation facilities shall not be located within 500 feet of any public or parochial school or the
principal campus of any college, university, or seminary; any public park; or any commercial
child care center. Distances described in this paragraph shall be calculated by measuring the
distance from the nearest property line of the school, park or commercial child care center to the
building in which the medical marijuana center is located.

M. Retail marijuana cultivation uses shall not operate in a manner that adversely affects the public
health, safety, and welflare of the immediate neighborhood in which the retail marijuana
cultivation use is located.

Section 14.090. Control of Emissions.

In accordance with Town of Hayden Code Title 8. Health and Safety Section 8.08 Nuisances, sufficient
measures and means of preventing smoke, odors, debris, dust, fluids, and other substances from exiting a
cultivation facility must be provided at all times. In the event that any odors, debris, dust fluids or other
substances exit a cultivation facility, the owner of the subject premises and the licensee shall be jointly
and severally liable for such conditions and shall be responsible for immediate, full clean-up and
correction of such condition. The licensee shall properly dispose of all such materials, items and other
substances in a safe, sanitary and secure manner and in accordance with al] applicable federal, state, and
local laws and regulations.

All cultivation facilities must employ and maintain ventilation and odor control that is adequate for the
size of the facility to effectively eliminate the pungent odor from the operation so that the odor does not
migrate in and around the marijuana cultivation site and is not detected by a person with a normal sense
of smell at the exterior of the premises, in the surrounding neighborhood and/or in adjacent units.

Section 7.  Section 16.03.040.1.3 of the Hayden Municipal Code shall be amended to include the
addition of a new conditional use, cc. Marijuana Cultivation.

Scction 8.  Section 16.03.040.).3 of the Hayden Municipal Code shall be amended to include the
addition of a new conditional use, z. Marijuana Cultivation.

Section 9.  Affirmation and Restatement of Prohibition of all Marijuana-Related Businesses. Enterprises
and Activities Not Expressly Permitted by this Ordinance. Pursuant to the authority granted
by Article XVIII, Section 16(5)(f) of the Colorado Constitution; C.R.S. § 12-43.4-104(3);
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Section 10.

Section 11.

Section 12.

Section 13.

Section 14.

Section 15.

C.R.S. § 12-43.3-106; Article 20 of Title 29, C.R.S.; Part 3 of Article 23 of Title 31, C.R.S.;
Section 31-15-103, C.R.S.; Section 31-15-401, C.R.S.; and Section 31-15-501; the Council
hereby affirms and restates the prohibition of all marijuana-related businesses, enterprises
and activities adopted by Ordinances No. 632 and 659 excepting only those businesses,
enterprises and activities that are expressly permitted by this Ordinance.

If any article, section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is held to be
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such decision shall not affcct the validity or
constitutionality of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Town Council hereby
declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each part or parts hereof irrespective of
the fact that any one part or parts be declared unconstitutional or invalid.

All other ordinances or portions thereof inconsistent or conflicting with this ordinance or
any portion hereof is hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict.

The repeal or modification of any provision of the Municipal Code of the Town of Hayden
by this ordinance shall not release, extinguish, alter, modify or change in whole or in parl
any penalty, forfeiture or liability, either civil or criminal, which shall have been incurred
under such provision. Each provision shall be treated and held as still remaining in force for
the purpose of sustaining any and all proper actions, suits, proceedings and proseculions for
enforcement of the penalty, forfeiture or liability, as well as for the purpose of sustaining
any judgment, decree or order which can or may be rendered, entered or made in such
actions, suits, proceedings or prosecutions.

This ordinance is deemed necessary for the preservation of the public property, health,
welfare, peace and safety.

Violations of this ordinance shall be punishable in accordance with the provisions of the
Hayden Municipal Code.

EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance, immediately on final passing and adoption, shall be published by the Town Clerk in
accordance with Section 3-3h of the Home Rule Charter and recorded in the Town Book of Ordinances
kept for that purpose, authenticated by the signatures of the Mayor and Town Clerk. This Ordinance shall
be in force and take effect fifteen (15) days after second publication in accordance with Section 3-3h of
the Hayden Home Rule Charter.

Section 16.

PUBLIC HEARING.

A public hearing on this Ordinance will be held on the 6th day of August 2015, at or about 7:30 p.m. at
the Hayden Town Hall, 178 West Jefferson Ave, Hayden, Colorado.
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INTRODUCED, READ, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-3 (d) OF THE
HAYDEN HOME RULE CHARTER, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN,
COLORADO, UPON A MOTION DULY MADE, SECONDED AND PASSED AT ITS REGULAR
MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, ON THE 16" DAY OF JULY 2015.

James M. Haskins, Mayor

ATTEST

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk

FINALLY ADOPTED, PASSED, APPROVED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 3-3 (h) OF THE HAYDEN HOME RULE CHARTER, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO, UPON A MOTION DULY MADE, SECONDED AND PASSED
AT ITS REGULAR MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, ON THE ____DAYOF

2015.

James M. Haskins, Mayor

ATTEST

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk
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Town Council Agenda Item
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Public Hearing and Second Reading of Ordinance 669 An Ordinance
amending Chapter 10.04 “Model Traffic Code” for the regulation of
traffic by the Town of Hayden, Colorado and providing penalties for
the violation thereof; and, setting a public hearing time.

AGENDA SECTION: Old Business

PRESENTED BY: Chief Tuliszewski

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: Yes, but not recommended.
BACKGROUND REVIEW:

In 2012 the Town of Hayden updated the Model Traffic Code with various schedules delineating
speeds, traffic control devices and school zones. In reviewing these schedules it is the desire of
staff to update various portions of the Model Traffic Code specifically Schedule 11.

The area around the Hayden Elementary Schoo!l has a posted speed limit of 15 mph with no
signage that designates this as a school zone area. In conducting a visual traffic study on 3"
Street and Poplar Street it was determined that the average speed on 3™ Street was 21 mph and
on Poplar Street by the school and Fire House was 26 mph. (Traffic study was informal,
conducted on three different afternoons, with speeds verified by radar in a marked patrol unit.)
Currently there are only standard 15 mph speed control signs posted.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is recommending that standard recognizable 20 mph speed school zone signs be adopted
and used within the area of the school zones and that the amended Schedule II be adopted
reflecting these changes in speeds and school speed zone designation.

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:

I agree with Chief Tuliszewski’s recommendation. If the Town Council approves 2™ Reading a
public notice of adoption should be scheduled for August 16" Steamboat Pilot Today. If these
changes are approved by the Town Council it will allow for these school zone signs to be
installed by Public Works prior to the start of the new school year.



ORDINANCE NO. 669

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10.04 “MODEL TRAFFIC CODE” FOR
THE REGULATION OF TRAFFIC BY THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO AND
PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF.

RECITALS

1. The Town of Hayden has previously adopted and amended traffic codes for the regulation of
traffic within the Town limits.

2

The Town Council believes that the Town Codes currently regulating speed limits need to be
updated.

3. The Town Council states that Town Code revisions herein and this adopting Ordinance are in
the best interest of the citizens of Hayden, Colorado.

4. Article 3, Section 3-1 of the Hayden Home Rule Charter requires that action must be taken
by ordinance when repealing a prior ordinance and when establishing any rule or regulation
for the violation of which a penalty is imposed.

5. These changes have been reviewed and discussed during public meetings and hearings.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF HAYDEN, COLORADO:

SECTION 1. REPEAL

The Appendix to Chapter 10.04, Schedule [I-Sec. 1102, Decrease and Increase Speed Limits is
repealed in its entirety; except that this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or
punishment of any person for any act done or committed in violation of any ordinance hereby
repealed prior to the taking effect of this ordinance.

SECTION 2. ADOPTION

The Appendix to Chapter 10.04, Schedule I1-Sec. 1102, Decrease and Increase Speed Limits is
adopted as stated herein below.

Schedule II-Sec. 1102 Decrcase and Increase Speeds

In accordance with the provisions of Section 1102 of the Model Traffic Code, and when official
signs are erected giving notice thereof, drivers of vehicles shall not exceed the posted speed limit
as designated by such signs: Drivers are still responsible to drive with due care and safety in
regards to road conditions.
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NAME OF STREET

OR INTERSECTION

Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave
Jefferson Ave
Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave

Jefferson Ave
Jefferson Ave
Jefferson Ave

Washington Ave

PORTION AFFECTED
(TERMINAL LIMITS)

East Town limit to approximately
1/10 mile East of R/R Crossing
Hayden Gulch Terminal

Approximately 1/10 mile East of
R/R Crossing. Hayden Gulch Terminal

To approximately 20 fi. West of Shelton Ln

Approximately 20 ft West of Shelton Ln
To approximately 4 ft West of Spruce St

Approximately 4 ft West of Spruce Street
To approximately 1/10 mile West of 8" St
Except when school beacon is flashing

Approximately 185 ft West of Poplar St
to 24 ft West of 3™ St

Approximately 1/10 mile West of 8" St
To 4/10 mile East of Mile Marker 106

Approximately 4/10 mile East of Mile
Marker 106 to West Town limits

From West Town limits to approximately
4/10 mile East of Mile Marker 106

Approximately 4/10 mile East of Mile
Marker 106 to approximately 1-2 tenths
Mile West of mile marker 107

Approximately 1-2 tenths mile West of
Mile Marker 107 to approximately
220 ft East of 8" Street

Approximately 220 ft East of 8" Street

To approximately 110 ft East of Oak Street

Except when school beacon flashing

Approximately 20 ft West of 4™ Street to
Approximately 320 ft West of Poplar St

Approximately 110 ft East of Oak Street

To approximately 250 ft East of Shelton Ln

Approximately 190 ft East of Shelton Ln
To approx. 250 ft East of Hawthorne St

Approx. 250 ft East of Hawthorne St
To East Town limits

Approximately 105 ft East of Pine St
To Walnut Street

a1

SPEED LIMITS
{MILES PER HOUR)

55 mph Westbound

45 mph Westbound

35 mph Westbound

30 mph Westbound

25 mph Westbound
when school beacon
flashing

55 mph Westbound
65 mph Westbound
65 mph Eastbound

55 mph Eastbound

45 mph Eastbound

30 mph Eastbound

25 mph Eastbound
when school beacon
flashing

35 mph Eastbound

45 mph Eastbound
65 mph Eastbound

15 mph Westbound



Washington Ave

Hawthorne Street

Hawthorne Street

Walnut Street

Walnut Street
Poplar Street

(RCR #53)

Poplar Street
(RCR #53)

Poplar Street
(RCR #53)

Poplar Street
(RCR #53)

Poplar Strect

Poplar Street

3" Street

3™ Street

Lake View Road

Lake View Road

All Streets

Approximately 90 ft East of Walnut Stto 15 mph Eastbound
25 mph sign approximately 105 fi East
of Pine Street

Approximately 360 ft South of Jefferson 35 mph Southbound
Ave to south Town limits

Approximately 100 ft North of Hayden 35 mph Northbound
Parkway to Jefferson Ave.

Approximately 25 ft South of Washington 15 mph Southbound
Street to Spruce Street

Approximately 100 ft West of Spruce St 15 mph Northbound
On Jackson Ave to Washington St

Approximately 230 ft South of South 40 mph Southbound
Entrance of Harvest Dr to South Town limits

South Town limits to approximately 320 ft 40 mph Northbound
South of South entrance of Harvest Dr

Approximately 320 ft South of South 30 mph Northbound
Entrance of Harvest Dr to approximately

175 ft South of West entrance of Harvest Dr.

Approximately 175 ft South of West 25 mph Northbound

Entrance of Harvest Dr to the end of
Poplar Street

Approximately 1/4 mile north of Shady Lane 20mph Northbound
(Just north of bridge/curve in road) School Zone
Designation

Approximately 1/4 mile south of 1™ 20mph Northbound
School Zone

Designation

Approximately 60 ft South of Jefferson 20 mph Southbound
Ave to Breeze Basin Blvd School Zone
designation

Approximately 220 feet North of Breeze 20 mph Northbound
Basin Blvd. to Jefferson Ave School Zone
Designation

Approximately 75 ft South of the South 15 mph Northbound
Entrance of Little Bend Circle to 75 ft

North of the North entrance of Little Bend

Circle

From the intersection with Starlight Ln 15 mph Eastbound
To 75 ft South of Little Bend Road and Southbound

Meadow Village Trailer Park 15 mph
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Breeze Basin Blvd. Approximately 75 ft West of Poplar Ave 20 mph Westbound
To approximately 2/10 mile West of

Poplar Ave School Zone Designation

Breeze Basin Blvd Approximately 2/10 mile West of Poplar 20 mph Eastbound
Ave to Poplar Ave School Zone Designation

RCR #51a Approximately 1/10 mile South of North 35 mph Southbound
Town limits to RCR #51 and Eastbound

RCR #51 From East end of RCR # 51a to approx 35 mph Northbound
1/10 mile South North of Town limits

RCR #51 Approximately 1/10 mile South of North 45 mph Northbound
Town Limits to Town limits

RCR #51 North Town Limits to approximately 300 45 mph Southbound
Feet South of North Town Limits

RCR #51 Approximately 300 ft South of North 35 mph Southbound
Town Limits to RCR #51a

RCR #51a Approximately 300 ft West of RCR #51 35 mph Westbound
To Hwy #40 and Northbound

All Streets Yampa Valley Regional Airport 15 mph

RCR = Routt County Road

SECTION 3. VALIDITY

If any parts of this ordinance are for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect
the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Town Council hereby declares that it
would have passed this ordinance and each part or parts thereof, irrespective of the fact that any
one part or parts be declared invalid.

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to
be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance, immediately on final passing and adoption, shall be published in accordance
with Section 3-3h of the Home Rule Charter and recorded in the Town Book of Ordinances kept
for that purpose, authenticated by the signatures of the Mayor and Town Clerk. This Ordinance
shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its publication in accordance with Section 3-3h
of the Hayden Home Rule Charter.
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SECTION 6. PUBLIC HEARING

A public hearing on this Ordinance will be held on the 6" day of August 2015, at or about 7:30
p.m. at the Hayden Town Hall, 178 West Jefferson Ave, Hayden, Colorado.

INTRODUCED, READ, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-3 (d)
OF THE HAYDEN HOME RULE CHARTER, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF HAYDEN, COLORADQO, UPON A MOTION DULY MADE, SECONDED AND PASSED
AT ITS REGULAR MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, ON THE 16" DAY OF
JULY 2015.

James M. Haskins, Mayor

ATTEST

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk

FINALLY ADOPTED, PASSED, APPROVED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 3-3 (h) OF THE HAYDEN HOME RULE CHARTER, BY THE TOWN
COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADQO, UPON A MOTION DULY MADE,
SECONDED AND PASSED AT ITS REGULAR MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN OF
HAYDEN,ON THE DAY OF AUGUST 2015.

James M. Haskins, Mayor

ATTEST

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk
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Town Council Agenda Item
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Ordinance 668 1" Reading and setting a Public Hearing time for
submitting to the registered electors voting in the coordinated special
election to be held November 3, 2015, a ballot issue concerning the
imposition of an excise tax of five percent (5%) on the wholesale of
marijuana and, contingent upon elector approval, amending the
Hayden Municipal Code to provide for the same.

AGENDA SECTION: New Business
PRESENTED BY: David Torgler

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: No
BACKGROUND REVIEW:

If the Town Council approves the cultivation of marijuana as an allowed land use the previous
direction of the Councilmembers is that the voters should consider the adoption of a local five
percent (5%) excise tax on the wholesale of the marijuana. Ordinance 668 adopts this excise tax,
subject to voter approval, with an effective date of January 1, 2016, and directs the presentation
of this tax to the voters at the November 3, 2015 coordinated election. The ballot language
provides an estimate of the tax revenue to be produced in the first year as required by state law,
and for the collection of whatever amount is generated by the excise tax thereafter. If approved
by the voters this Ordinance also amends the Hayden Municipal Code implementing the five
percent excise tax effective January 1, 2016.

RECOMMENDATION:

If the Town Council has approved the cultivation of marijuana as an allowed land use then the
Council should approve Ordinance 668, set a public hearing time, and direct the presentation of
this tax proposal to the voters.

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:

I concur with the above recommendation.
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ORDINANCE NO. 668

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO SUBMITTING TO THE
REGISTERED ELECTORS VOTING IN THE COORDINATED SPECIAL ELECTION
TO BE HELD NOVEMBER 3, 2015, A BALLOT ISSUE CONCERNING THE
IMPOSITION OF AN EXCISE TAX OF FIVE PERCENT (5%) ON THE WHOLESALE
OF MARIJUANA AND, CONTINGENT UPON ELECTOR APPROVAL, AMENDING
THE HAYDEN MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROVIDE FOR THE SAME.

RECITALS

1. The Town of Hayden, Colorado (“Town™) is a municipal corporation duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Colorado.

(L]

The members of the Town Council (“Council”) have been duly elected and qualified.

3. Pursuant to Article XX, Section 6 of the Colorado Constitution, the Town has adopted the
2009 Town of Hayden Home Rule Charter and has the full right of self-government in both
local and municipal matters, including the authority to impose local excise taxes, with voter
approval.

4. Article X, Section 20, of the Colorado Constitution (“TABOR") authorizes the Town to
submit ballot issues proposing new taxes to its eligible electors at an election to be held on

the first Tuesday of November of odd-numbered years, which next occurs on November 3,
2015.

5. The Council hereby determines that both the Town’s interest and the public interest and
necessity require that the Town impose an excise tax at the rate of five percent (5.0%) on the
average market ratc of unprocessed marijuana that is sold or transferred from a marijuana
cultivation facility.

6. The Council has determined and hereby determines and declares that the interest of the Town
and the public interest and necessity require that the Town be allowed to collect, retain and
spend all revenues generated from such excise tax, if such tax is approved, regardless of the
provisions and restrictions set forth in Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution.

7. It is appropriate for voters to approve collection, retention and expenditure of the full amount
collected from the tax proposed by the ballot issue described below.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Hayden,
Colorado:

Section 1. Excise Tax Imposed. Subject to voter approval as provided in Section 4 of
this Ordinance, there is hereby imposed an excise tax of five percent (5.0%) on the average
market rate of unprocessed marijuana that is sold or transferred from a marijuana cultivation
facility. For purposes of this Ordinance, the term “marijuana” has the same meaning set forth
under Section 5.22.020 of the Hayden Municipal Code (“Code”) and expressly includes both
medical marijuana and retail marijuana, as those terms are defined and addressed by state law,
including but not limited to the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code, Article 43.3, Title 12, C.R.S.,
and the Colorado Retail Marijuana Code, Article 43.4, Title 12, C.R.S. For purposes of this
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Ordinance, the term “marijuana cultivation facility” shall have the same meaning as set forth
under Section 5.22.020 of the Code.

Section 2. Use of Revenues. The revenues derived from the excise tax shall be used
for uses determined reasonable and necessary by the Town Council.

Section 3. Duration. The excise tax shall commence for collection purposes
beginning January 1, 2016 and continue until repealed by ordinance.

Section 4. Election. Before the tax provided in this Ordinance shall become
effective, it shall be submitted to and receive the approval of a majority of the eligible electors of
the Town voting thereon at the coordinated election to be held on Tuesday, November 3, 2015.

(a) Conduct of Election. The election shall be held and conducted in
accordance with Section 29-2-102, C.R.S., and in accordance with Article X, Section 20 of the
Colorado Constitution. The Town Council hereby approves and authorizes the Town Manager
and Town Clerk to execute and enter into such agreements or amendments to agreements, on
behalf of the Town, with Routt County, Colorado, regarding the conduct of the election. The
Town Council hereby designates the Town Clerk as the Designated Election Official for the
conduct of the election on behalf of the Town, with the authority and direction to proceed with
any action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Ordinance and all
constitutional and statutory provisions governing the conduct of this election.

(b) Ballot Title. The ballot title for the excise tax shall be in substantially the
following form:

SHALL THE TOWN OF HAYDEN'S TAXES BE INCREASED BY ONE HUNDRED FORTY
THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($143,500) IN FISCAL
YEAR 2016 (FIRST FULL FISCAL YEAR DOLLAR INCREASE) AND BY WHATEVER
ADDITIONAL AMOUNTS ARE RAISED ANNUALLY THEREAFTER THROUGH THE
IMPOSITION OF AN EXCISE TAX IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE PERCENT (5.0%) ON THE
SALE OR TRANSFER OF MARIJUANA (BOTH MEDICAL AND RETAIL) BY A
MARUUANA CULTIVATION FACILITY AT THE AVERAGE MARKET RATE AT THE
POINT OF SALE OR TRANSFER FROM THE CULTIVATION FACILITY, COMMENCING
ON JANUARY 1, 2016;

AND IN CONNECTION THEREWITH,

SHALL THE FULL PROCEEDS OF SUCH TAX AT SUCH RATE AND ANY EARNINGS
THEREON BE COLLECTED, RETAINED, AND SPENT, AS A VOTER-APPROVED
REVENUE CHANGE WITHOUT LIMITATION OR CONDITION, AND WITHOUT
LIMITING THE COLLECTION, RETENTION, OR SPENDING OF ANY OTHER
REVENUES OR FUNDS BY THE TOWN OF HAYDEN UNDER ARTICLE X SECTION 20
OF THE COLORADO CONSTITUTION OR ANY OTHER LAW?

YES

NO
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Section 5. Codification. In the event a majority of Town electors voting on the ballot
issue referred by Section 4 of this Ordinance vote in favor of the issue, as determined and
certified by the election results, the Hayden Municipal Code shall be amended as of January 1,
2016, to implement the approved tax through the adoption of the provisions of Exhibit A,
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. It is the express intent of the Council
that, in the event a majority of Town electors voting on the ballot issue established and referred
by this Ordinance vote against the issue, the Code amendment set forth in Exhibit A shall not
take effect and shall be null and void.

Section 6. Authorization. The officers of the Town are authorized and directed to
take all action necessary and appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 7. Severability. If any portion of this Ordinance, the ballot title or Exhibit A
is found to be void or ineffective, it shall be deemed severed from this Ordinance and the
remaining provisions shall remain valid and in full force and effect.

Section 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective and be in force
immediately upon final passage at second reading, and the tax provided for herein shall be
effective January 1, 2016, contingent upon approval by the eligible electors at the November 3,
2015 election.

Section 9. Public hearing. A public hearing on this Ordinance shall be held on the
__ day of August, 2015, at 7:30 p.m. at the Hayden Town Hall, 178 West Jefferson Ave,
Hayden, Colorado.

INTRODUCED, READ, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED PURSUANT TOQ SECTION 3-3 (d)
OF THE HAYDEN HOME RULE CHARTER, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF HAYDEN, COLORADO, UPON A MOTION DULY MADE, SECONDED AND PASSED
AT ITS REGULAR MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, ON THE DAY OF
JULY, 2015.

James M. Haskins, Mayor
ATTEST

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk

FINALLY ADOPTED, PASSED, APPROVED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 3-3 (h) OF THE HAYDEN HOME RULE CHARTER, BY THE TOWN
COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO, UPON A MOTION DULY MADE,
SECONDED AND PASSED AT ITS REGULAR MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN OF
HAYDEN, ON THE __ DAY OF AUGUST, 2015.
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James M. Haskins, Mayor
ATTEST

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk



EXHIBIT A
TITLE 3 - REVENUE AND FINANCE
CHAPTER 3.16
EXCISE TAX
Sec. 3.16.010 Title and Intent.

This Chapter shall be known and referred to as the Town of Hayden Excise Tax. The legislative
intent of the Town Council is that an excise tax be imposed on the first sale or transfer of
marijuana by a marijuana cultivation facility, as that term is defined by Section 5.22.020 of this
Code, within the Town. The purpose of this tax is to increase the revenue base for the Town for
uses determined reasonable and necessary by the Town Council. Revenues from the tax shall be
deposited in the general fund and shall be available to pay for the general expenses of
government.

See. 3.16.020 Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Chapter, shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning.

(A)  “Average market rate” means thc amount determined by the State of Colorado
pursuant to § 39-28.8-101(1) C.R.S. or such alternate amount as may be determined by the Town
Manager as the average price of unprocessed retail marijuana that is sold or transferred from
retail marijuana cultivation facilities to other retail marijuana establishments, and the average
price of unprocessed medical marijuana that is sold or transferred from medical marijuana
cultivation facilities to other medical marijuana establishments and individuals.

(B)  “Person” means a corporation, firm, other body corporate, partnership, association
or individual, including an agent, subsidiary corporation, executor, administrator, trustee or
receiver or other representative acting in a representative capacity.

(C)  “Vendor” means a marijuana cultivation facility, as that term is defined by
Section 5.22.020 of this Code.

Sec. 3.16.030 Imposition and Rate of Tax

On and after January 1, 2016, there is levied and shall be paid and collected an excise tax
of five percent on the average market rate of unprocessed marijuana that is sold by or transferred
from a Vendor.

Sec. 3.16.040 Vendor Liability for Collecting the Tax

(A)  Each Vendor shall pay the tax imposed in Section 3.16.030 on every sale or
transfer of marijuana from the Vendor.
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(B)  The burden of proving that any transaction is not subject to the tax imposed by
this Chapter is upon the person upon whom the duty to collect the tax is imposed.

(C)  All sums of money paid as the excise tax imposed by this Chapter are public
monies that are the property of the Town. The person required to collect and remit the excise tax
shall hold such monies in trust for the sole use and benefit of the Town until paying them to the
Town.

Sec. 3.16.050 Sales Tax License Required

No Vendor within the Town shall engage in business beginning January 1, 2016, without
first obtaining a Town sales tax license.

Sec. 3.16.060 Collection and Reporting

Every Vendor with a duty to collect the excise tax shall collect the tax on behalf of the
Town and shall act as a trustee therefore. The tax shall be collected from purchasers and
remitted to the Town Clerk on or before the twentieth day of the month succeeding the month in
which the tax has been paid and collected. Every vendor shall make a monthly report which
shall be submitted at the same time the collected tax is remitted. A return must be filed even if
no sales or transfers were made or if no tax is due for the period. Returns with a “zero” tax must
be filed to avoid non-filer notices and penalty assessments. Such reports shall be upon such
forms as may be provided by the Town Clerk.

Sec. 3.16.070 Duty of Vendors to Keep Records

Vendors shall maintain adequate records at the Vendor’s place of business within the
Town and such records shall be open to inspection by the Town Clerk during reasonable
business hours. All such records shall be maintained by Vendors for a period of not less than
three (3) years.

Sec. 3.16.080 Failure to Pay or Make Return; Remedial Action by Town

(A) If any Vendor makes a return as required by this Chapter without paying the
excise tax due, or neglects or refuses to make a return and pay the excise tax, such vendor shall
be liable to the Town for the tax and a penalty in addition to such tax in the amount of ten
percent {10%) of the tax due. The penalty imposed in this section shall become immediately due
and payable and the Town shall give the delinquent Vendor written notice of the estimated tax
and penalty, which notice shall be served personally upon the Vendor or mailed to the Vendor by
certified mail at the address reflected on the Vendor’s sales tax license application.

(B}  If any Vendor fails to produce records suitable in the reasonable judgment of the
Town Clerk to determine the amount of excise tax due, the Town Clerk shall make an estimate of
the amount of the excise tax due, based upon an examination of the Vendor’s books and records,
or upon any other information within the possession of the Town Clerk. Promptly thereafter, the
Town Clerk shall fumnish the delinquent Vendor with written notice of such estimated tax and
penalty, which notice shall be served personally upon the Vendor or mailed to the Vendor by
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certified mail at the address of the taxable premises as reflected on the sales tax license
application for such premises.

(C)  If payments are not made by the Vendor within fifteen (15) days after the
furnishing of written notice, the Town Clerk shall cause action to be taken for collection of all
excise tax due including, without limitation, any and all penalties assessed thereon, interest on
the unpaid tax at a rate of five percent (5%) per month, the cost of collection and reasonable
attorneys' fees incurred in connection therewith. The Vendor’s sales tax license may also be
revoked.

Sec. 3.16.090 Administration
Administrative duties under this article shall be the responsibility of the Town Clerk.
Sec. 3.16.100 Town Employee Conflicts of Interest Prohibited

No deputy, agent, clerk, or other officer or employee of the Town engaged in any activity
governed by this Chapter shall engage in the business or profession of tax accounting or accept
employment with or without compensation from any person holding a sales tax license from the
Town for the purpose, directly or indirectly, of preparing tax returns or reports required by the
Town, the State of Colorado, its political subdivisions, any other state or the United States, or
accept any employment for the purpose of advising, preparing materials or data or auditing
books or records to be used in an effort to defeat or cancel any tax or part thereof that has been
assessed by the Town, the State of Colorado, its political subdivisions, any other state, its
political subdivisions or the United States.

Sec. 3.16.110 Use of Revenues

All revenues derived from the excise tax, less costs of collection and administration, shall
be accounted for separately from other Town revenues. Excise tax revenues may be
appropriated and expended upon authorization by the Town Council for uses determined
reasonable and necessary by the Town Council.

Sec. 13.16.120 Right to Amend Article

The Town Council shall have the right to amend or repeal the provisions of this Chapter,
including all provisions regarding collection, administration, use and enforcement of the excise
tax, except that the amount of the tax and events subject to the tax as approved by the voters on
November 3, 2015 shall not be increased, expanded or broadened without additional voter
approval.

A-3
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Town Council Agenda Item
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Resolution 2015-20 calling a Special Town Election on November 3,
2015, to be conducted as a coordinated election, for the purpose of
voting upon the marijuana excise tax referred to Town voters by
Ordinance No. 668, designating the Town Clerk as the designated

election official, and approving an Intergovernmental Agreement
concerning participation in the coordinated election.

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

PRESENTED BY: David Torgler

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: No

BACKGROUND REVIEW:

If the Town Council has approved Ordinance 668 submitting to the voters a ballot issue
concerning the imposition of an excise tax of five percent (5%) on the wholesale of marijuana
then the Town Charter, Section 5-3 requires a special Town election to be called by Resolution
adopted at least sixty (60) days prior to the November 3, 2015 special election.

RECOMMENDATION:

If the Town Council has approved Ordinance 668 then approval of Resolution 2015-20 is
required by the Town Charter calling for a special Town election.

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:

I concur with the above recommendation.

1n3



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-20

A RESOLUTION CALLING A SPECIAL TOWN ELECTION ON NOVEMBER 3, 2015,

8]

TO BE CONDUCTED AS A COORDINATED ELECTION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF
VOTING UPON THE MARIJUANA EXCISE TAX REFERRED TO TOWN VOTERS
BY ORDINANCE NO. 668 AND DESIGNATING THE TOWN CLERK AS THE
DESIGNATED ELECTION OFFICIAL

RECITALS

. The Town of Hayden, Colorado (the “Town™), is a Colorado home rule municipality, duly

organized and existing under the laws and the Constitution of the State of Colorado and the
Town of Hayden Home Rule Charter (“Charter”).

Under the authority granted by Article XVII1, Section 16(5)(f) of the Colorado Constitution;
C.R.S. § 12-43.4-104(3); C.R.S. § 12-43.3-106; Article 20 of Title 29, C.R.S.; Part 3 of
Article 23 of Title 31, C.R.S.; Section 31-15-103, C.R.S.; Section 31-15-401, C.R.S.: and
Section 31-15-501, the Hayden Town Council (the “Council”), by the passage of Ordinance
No. 666, recently adopted regulations governing the permissible cultivation of marijuana
within Town limits.

. Pursuant to its authority under Section 6, Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and C.R.S.

§ 31-15-501(1)(c), the Town possesses the authority to impose taxes upon all lawful business
enterprises and activities occurring within the Town.

For those reasons set forth in Ordinance No. 668 and through the adoption of said ordinance,
the Town Council has referred to the Town electors the question of the imposition of an
excise tax on the wholesale transfer of marijuana in Town, under certain circumstances, such
question to be decided by the voters at a special election to be conducted on November 3,
2015.

The new proposed excise tax is a matter requiring voter approval pursuant to Section 20,
Article XX of the Colorado Constitution (TABOR) and November 3, 2015 is an election date
upon which TABOR questions may be decided.

Charter Section 5-3 requires a special Town election to be called by Resolution adopted at
least sixty (60) days prior to the special election.

The Council finds that it is necessary and desirable to adopt a Resolution calling a special
Town election on November 3, 2015, to permit the Town voters to decide the marijuana
excise tax question referred by Ordinance No. 668 and to address other logistic issues and
details required by such a special election.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE

TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO THAT:
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Section 1. Calling of Special Election. Pursuant to Hayden Home Rule Charter Section
5-3 and C.R.S. § 31-10-108, there is hereby called a special Town election, to be conducted on
November 3, 2015, as a coordinated election in accordance with the provisions of Title 1, C.R.S,,
for the purpose of a vote on the ballot issue concerning a marijuana excise tax referred to Town
electors by Ordinance No. 668.

Section 2. Designation of Town Clerk. The Town Clerk is hereby authorized to act as
the designated election official (DEO) for the Town for all purposes conceming the November 3,
2015 coordinated special election, as permitted or required by state statute or the state
Constitution and as agreed upon by the Town and Routt County in accordance with the relevant
intergovernmental agreement.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS DAY OF AUGUST, 2015.

James M. Haskins, Mayor

ATTEST

Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk

1ing



Town Council Agenda Item
MEETING DATE: August 6, 2015
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Accept the 2014 Annual Audit Report and 2014 Single Audit Report
AGENDA SECTION: New Business
PRESENTED BY: David Torgler
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: No
BACKGROUND REVIEW:

Each year, per Colorado statutes, the Town has an audit conducted to identify that the Town is
following GASB requirements which are sound accounting practices by governmental bodies.
Additionally in accordance with the Federal Single Audit Act of 1984 all non-Federal entities
that expend $500,000 or more of Federal awards in a year the Town auditors conducted a Single
Audit Act Report. In 2014 the Town Council hired the accounting firm of Hinton Burdick,
PLLC to replace Chris Catterson, the Town’s auditor for the 12 prior years. Representing Hinton
Burdick, PLLC was Mike Spilker, a certified public accountant with over 25-years auditing
experience. The completed 2014 Audit Report and the 2014 Single Audit Act Report are
attached and have been submitted to the State per statutory requirement.

RECOMMENDATION:

Motion to accept the Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 and the
Single Audit Act Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2014,

MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:
I concur with the recommendation.

The auditor did make some recommendations and findings during the audit and most of these
recommendations are being addressed by the hiring of CliftonLarsonAllen, CPA’s, by dividing
the responsibilities for accounts payable, accounts receivable. Hinton Burdick noted in their
review that many of their recommendations from the 2013 Audit have either been addressed
completely or that improvements in the financial systems were made. Town staff and CLA will
continue working together to address each of Hinton Burdick’s recommendations.
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MEMBERS

CHap B. Amunscn, CPA STEVEN D PAVER, CPA
™ H B Kris J. BRAUNBERGER, CPA MorRis J PEACOCK, CPA
‘!_.I l N TO N u R D l C K Dean R, Burpick, CPA PHILLIF 5. PEINE, CPA
Rosert S Cox, CPA MICHAEL K. SPILKER, CPA
C PA S & A D v ] S 0 R S Tooo B. FELTNER, CPA Kevin L. STEPHENS, CPA
K. Mark FrosT, CPA MaRrk E. TiIcCHENOR, CPA

July 8, 2015

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Board
Town of Hayden, Colorado

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Hayden, Colorado for the year ended December 31,
2014. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-
133}, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated
such information in our engagement letter to you dated February 4, 2015. Professional standards also require that
we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Cualitative Aspects of Accounting Practice

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Town of Hayden, Colorado are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No
new accounting policies were adopted that had any significant effect on the financial statements and the
application of existing policies was not changed during 2014. We noted no transactions entered into by the Town
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management’s estimate of the useful lives of capital assets is based on reasonable expectations of the
remaining lives of the organizations capital assets.

Management estimated that inventory was not material to the financial statements and thus, no
inventory has been recorded in the financial statements. This estimate was based on observation of
inventory and a tour of physical facilities.

The Town does not currently record any allowance for doubtful accounts and deems all receivables as
collectable.

Management’s estimate of the TABOR reserve requirement is based on various calculations and
information provided by the County and published indexes.

While the procedures used by management to estimate these items appear reasonable, there may be
differences between the Town's estimates and actual results, and these differences may be material.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
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Disclosures in the financial statements should be neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

Due to changes in staffing associated with the Town’s independent CPA and complications related to recording
activity associated with the Seneca Hill project activity, we encountered some delays in completing the audit for
2014.  Otherwise, we did not encounter any difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit,

Corrected and Uncorvected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. Some of the misstatements detected as a result of audit
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion
unit’s financial statements laken as a whole. A list of audit adjustments has been provided to management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representation

We have requesied certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated July 8, 2015.

Muanagement Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the Town's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with
us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations
with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

Professional standards require that we communicate, in writing, deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that are considered significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that are identified during the audit of
the financial statements. The findings and recommendations letter dated July 8, 2015, includes the findings that we
are required to communicate to you in writing.

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Town’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
relention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison
information, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.
Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL

We were engaged to report on the non-major fund combining schedules, budget and actual reports, loan covenants
and requirements and the Local Highway Finance Report which accompany the financial statements but are not
RSL. With respect this supplementary information, we made certain inquires of management and evaluated the
form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with
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accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Members of the Board and management of the Town of
Hayden, Colorado and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties,

Very truly yours,
HintonBurdick, PLLC

2&@@?@,

Michael K. Spilker, CPA
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Findings and Recommendations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

The Honorable Mayor and
Town Council
Hayden, Colorado

Professional standards require that we communicate, in writing, deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that are considered significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that are identified
during the audit of the financial statements. We wish to commend the Town for their administrative
achievements and oversight of the Town’s accounting and budget system. During our audit of the funds
of the Town of Hayden for the year ended December 31, 2014 we noted a few arcas that may need
corrective action in order for the Town to be in compliance with laws and regulations and we found a few
circumstances that, if improved, would strengthen the Town’s accounting system and control over its
assets. These items are discussed below for your consideration.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:
Material Weaknesses:
None noted.

Significant Deficiencies:

2013-01. Adjustiments and Reconciliations Reworded, Reissued
Finding

Statement on Auditing Standards number 115 requires us to consider and report significant audit
adjustments as a material weakness or significant deficiency. During our audit we made
recommendations for various journal entries that were necessary to record year-end accruals,
capital asset activity, various reclassifications and other miscellaneous adjustments. This finding
has been reduced from a material weakness to a significant deficiency since management
discussed some of the entries with us at the start of the audit and was expecting us to make some
of the adjustments and we proposed fewer adjustments in 2014 than the previous year and we
noted that management had made improvements with reconciliations of various general ledger
accounts throughout the year.

Recommendation
We recommend that management continue established procedures to reconcile various control

accounts each month such as accounts payable. We also recommend that management continue
efforts to reduce the number of audit adjustments each year.

CEDAR CITY FLAGSTAFF +  HURRICANE MESQUITE PHOENIX RICHFIELD 5T. GEORGE

www hintonburdick com
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Management has reviewed the audit journal entries and has discussed them with us in order to
ensure they understand and are in agreement with the entries and that they understand the purpose
and underlying accounting principles associated with each entry. We have provided an audited
trial balance which should be reconciled to the Town’s general ledger trial balance afier posting
the audit adjustments.

2013-02. Segregation of Duties - Reworded. Reissued
Finding

The Town has made significant improvements with controls and segregation of duties since the
2013 audit. However, the cash receipts and disbursements cycles lack a complete segregation of
duties. The same individual, who receives cash from customers, prepares the deposits for the
bank and records receipts in the accounting system. Also, there does not appear to be any
oversight or review process to document the authorization of accounts receivable write offs. The
same individual who enters invoices and prepares checks can sign checks; however, as of July 1,
2014, the Town’s independent CPA began entering invoices to the accounting system for
payment. Other controls such as two signature requirements, bank reconciliation preparation by
the Town’s independent CPA and budget to actual report reviews by the Council mitigate these
weaknesses such that they are not deemed to be a material weakness. We choose to mention
proper segregation in order to remind management of its importance until such time as the Town
can fully segregate custody of assets and recording functions. For example, those who have
access to cash should be segregated from recording cash receipts. Proper segregation of duties
and documentation of approval of write offs provide important safeguards and controls to ensure
the proper accounting, deposit and disposition of the Town's funds.

Recommendation

The Town Council and management should consider ways that segregation of duties can be
improved within the accounting and administrative functions as the Town continues to grow and
additional staff are considered necessary. We anticipate that continued involvement from the
Town's independent CPA will further mitigate any segregation issues. We also recommend that
management esfablish procedures for documenting approval and review for utility accounts
receivable write offs.

2013-03. Capital Asset Management

Finding

Apparently the Town did not perform a capital asset inventory at the close of the calendar year.
A capital asset inventory along with tagging of selected capital assets will provide more control
over safeguarding the Town’s capital assets and will ensure that the capital asset records are
accurate. We also noted that the Town did not maintain capital asset records or depreciation
schedules throughout the year.

Recommendations

We recommend that the Town perform a physical capital asset inventory at least every two to
three years and that, when practical, assets be tagged with an inventory tag and number. We also
recommend that the Town maintain capital asset or depreciation schedules and that additions and
deletions are tracked on an annual basis.

(%]



COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS:

Compliance;

2013-04. Budgetary Compliance
Findin

Appropriations are made by fund or spending agency (e.g., department) within a fund at the
discretion of the governing body. (Section 29-1-108(2), C.R.S.) The Town's Budgets are set at
the fund level and not the department level. No spending agency may expend or contract to
expend any money in excess of the amount appropriated in the resolution/ordinance, The 2014
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget-and-Actual report
for the Heritage Center and Hayden Public Library funds reports that the Town over expended the
budget for these two funds for 2014; however, these two funds are blended component units of
the Town.

State law requires a Lease Purchase Schedule to be attached and submitted with the budget. We
noted that the Town had net attached the required schedule with the 2014 budget submitted to the
State.

Recommendation

We recommend that management consider all expenditures, including the blended component
units when preparing the budget in order to prepare a meaningful and accurate budget for all
activities reported by the Town, We also rccommend that the Town attach the required lease
purchase schedule with budgets submitted to the State.

Other Matters:

None noted.
Please respond to the above Findings and Recommendations in letter form.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town Council, management, and various
federal and state agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.
It has been a pleasure to be of service to the Town this past year. We would like to express special thanks
to all those who assisted us so efficiently in this year's audit. We invite you to ask questions of us

throughout the year as you feel necessary. We look forward to a continued professional relationship.

Sincerely,

it ity PULC

HintonBurdick, PLLC
St. George, Ulah
July 8, 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and QOther Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Mayor and
Town Council
Hayden, Colorado

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Hayden, Colorado (the Town), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated July 8, 2015,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town’s internal contro)
over financial reporting (internal control} to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s intenal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemnance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in intemal control which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and recommendations that we consider to be significant
deficiencies in internal control.

2013-01 Adjustments and Reconciliations
2013-02 Segregation of Duties
2013-03 Capital Asset Management



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free of inaterial
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governntent Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Jluile oty PLLC

HintonBurdick, PLLC
St. George, Utah
July 8, 2015

=]
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Federal
CFDA Grantor's
Grantor Agency Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of the Interior:
Passed through Colorado Department of Local Affairs:
Distribution of Receipts to State and Local Governments 15.227 F14MLG7420 3 501,283
Distribution of Receipts to State and Local Governments 15.227 F14MLG7439 14,249
Total U.S. Department of the Interior 515,532
Envirenmental Protection Agency:
Passed through Colorado Water Resources & Power
Development Authority:
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving
Funds 66.468 D14F330 189,883
Total Environmental Protection Agency 189,883
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 705415



TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Reporting Entity:

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity or expenditure of all
federal awards programs of the Town of Hayden, Colorado for the year ended December 31, 2014, The
Town’s reporting entity is defined in Note | of the basic financial statements. All expenditure of federal
awards received directly from federal agencies as well as federal awards passed through other government
agencies are included in the schedule.

Basis of Accounting:

This accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of

OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

Relationship to Basic Financial Statements:

Expenditures of federal awards have all been reported and capitalized in the Water-Sewer-Refuse
Enterprise fund.

Subrecipients:

There are no subrecipients,
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for
Each Major Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

The Honorable Mayor and
Town Council
Hayden, Colorado

Report on Compliance for Each Major Program

We have audited Town of Hayden, Colorado’s (the Town) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circulur A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Town’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31,2014, The Town's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Town's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Praofit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Town of Hayden, Colorado, complied, in all material respects, with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2014.



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Town of Hayden, Colorado (the Town), is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Town’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
detennine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over compliance.

A dcficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencics. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated July 8, 2015, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the resulis of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

it Tty P2 LC
HintonBurdick, PLLC

St. George, Utah
July 23, 2015
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statemenis

Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

* Material weakness (es) identified?
e Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:

o  Material weakness (es) identified?

e Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance

Unmeodified

yes X no

X yes ___ none reported

yes X no

yes X no

yes _X none reported

for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-133? __yes X no
Identification of major programs.
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Prosram or Cluster

15.227 Distribution of Receipts to State and Local Governments
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type
A and type B programs: $ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

1733

yes X no



TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

Professional standards require that we communicate, in writing, deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that are considered significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that are identified during the
audit of the {inancial statements. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Town
of Hayden, Colorado (the Town) for the year ended December 31, 2014, we noted some of the prior year
findings have been corrected in the Town'’s system of controls over compliance and accounting procedures.
However, we noted the following circumstances that, if improved, would strengthen theTown’s accounting
sysiem and control over its assets and compliance.

Material Weaknesses:
None noted.

Significant Deficiencies:

2013-01. Adjustments and Reconciliations -~ Reworded, Reissued
Finding

Statement on Audiling Standards number 115 requires us to consider and report significant audit
adjustments as a material weakness or significant deficiency. During our audit we made
recommendations for various journal entries that were necessary to record year-end accruals, capital
asset activity, various reclassifications and other miscellaneous adjustments. This finding has been
reduced from a material weakness to a significant deficiency since management discussed some of
the entries with us at the start of the audit and was expecting us to make some of the adjustments and
we proposed fewer adjustments in 2014 than the previous year and we noted that management had
made improvements with reconciliations of various general ledger accounts throughout the year.

Recommendation

We recommend that management continue established procedures to reconcile various control
accounts each month such as accounts payable. We also recommend that management continue
efforts to reduce the number of audit adjusiments each year.

Management has reviewed the audit journal entries and has discussed them with us in order to ensure
they understand and are in agreement with the entries and that they understand the purpose and
underlying accounting principles associated with each entry. We have provided an audited trial
balance which should be reconciled to the Town’s general ledger trial balance afier posting the audit
adjustments,

10
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Section II - Financial Statement Findings, Continued

2013-02, Scagregation of Duties — Reworded, Reissued
Finding

The Town has made significant improvements with controls and segregation of duties since the 2013
audit. However, the cash receipts and disbursements cycles lack a complete segregation of duties,
The same individual, who receives cash from customers, prepares the deposits for the bank and
records receipts in the accounting system. Also, there does not appear to be any oversight or review
process to document the authorization of accounts receivable write offs. The same individual who
enters invoices and prepares checks can sign checks; however, as of July 1, 2014, the Town’s
independent CPA began entering invoices to the accounting system for payment. Other controls such
as two signature requirements, bank reconciliation preparation by the Town's independent CPA and
budget to actual report reviews by the Council mitigate these weaknesses such that they are not
deemed to be a material weakness. We choose to mention proper segregation in order to remind
management of its importance until such time as the Town can fully segregate custody of assets and
recording functions. For example, those who have access to cash should be segregated from
recording cash receipts. Proper segregation of duties and documentation of approval of write offs
provide important safeguards and controls to ensure the proper accounting, deposit and disposition of
the Town’s funds,

Recommendation

The Town Council and management should consider ways that segregation of duties can be improved
within the accounting and administrative functions as the Town continues to grow and additional
staff are considered necessary. We anticipate that continued involvement from the Town's
independent CPA will further mitigate any segregation issues. We also recommend that management
establish procedures for documenting approval and review for utility accounts receivable write offs.

2013-03. Capital Asset Management

Finding

Apparently the Town did not perform a capital asset inventory at the close of the calendar year. A
capital asset inventory along with tagging of selected capital assets will provide more control over
safeguarding the Town’s capital assets and will ensure that the capital asset records are accurate. We
also noted that the Town did not maintain capital asset records or depreciation schedules throughout
the year.

Recommendations
We recommend that the Town perform a physical capital asset inventory at least every two to three
years and that, when practical, assets be tagged with an inventory tag and number. We also

recommend that the Town maintain capital asset or depreciation schedules and that additions and
deletions are tracked on an annual basis,
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Section LI - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No significant matters were noted.

Section IV — Summary of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs

No significant matters were noted.
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Independent Auditers’ Report

The Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Hayden, Colorado

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Hayden,
Colorado, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also inciudes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Hayden, Colorado, as of December 31,
2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
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thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other-Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the General Fund budgetary comparison information be presented to
supplement the basic financial stalements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence 1o express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Hayden, Colorado’s basic financial statements, The combining nonmajor fund
financial statcments, the nonmajor fund and enterprise fund budgetary comparison schedules and the loan
requirement disclosures are presented for additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The Local Highway Finance Report is presented for additional analysis as required
by the State of Colorado and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements, the nonmajor fund and enterprise fund budgetary
comparison schedules, the loan requirement disclosures and the Local Highway Finance Report are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In
our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements, the nonmajor fund and enterprise fund
budgetary comparison schedules, the loan requirement disclosures and the Local Highway Finance Report
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July R, 2015, on
our consideration of the Town of Hayden, Colorado’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Hayden,
Colorado’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

it b, PLLC

HintonBurdick, PLLC
St. George, Utah
July 8, 2015
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

As management of the Town of Hayden (Town), we offer readers of the Town's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the year ended December 31,
2014, Pleasc read it in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Governmental net position decreased from $13.26 million to $13.01 million during 2014.
Business-type net position increased by $548 thousand to $7.26 million during 2014.
The combined net investment in capital assets is $18.47 million.
The unrestricted net position for both governmental and business-type activities that may be used to
meet the Town’s future capital and operating expenses is $1.63 million.
* Total revenues in the General fund increased from $2 million to $2.04 million.
» Property tax revenues decreased significantly from 2013 to 2014 decreasing from $514,789 in
2013 to $472,962 in 2014.
¢ Local sales tax collections of $841,161 increased by 0.62% or $5,175 from the previous fiscal
year,
e Car rental tax collections of $112,205 decreased by 2.71% or $3,040 from the previous fiscal
year,
» The general fund unassigned fund balance at the end of 2014 was $846,603 which is 43.3% of total
General fund expenditures,

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The three components of the financial
statements are: (1) Government-wide financial statements which include the Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activitics. These statements provide information about the activities of the Town as
a whole. (2) Fund financial statements tell how these services were financed in the short tenm as well as
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the Town’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the Town’s most significant
funds. {3) Notes to the financial statements.

Reporting the Town as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (Government-wide)

A frequently asked question regarding the Town's financial health is whether the year’s activities
contributed positively to the overall financial well-being. The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities report information about the Town as a whole and about its activities in a way that
helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current
year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.
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These two statements report the Town’'s net position and changes in net position. Net position, the
difference between assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the Town’s financial health, or financial
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets are an indicator of whether the financial health is
improving or deteriorating. However, it is important to consider other non-financial factors such as
changes in the condition of the Town’s roads to accurately assess the overall health of the Town.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, present information about the following:

s Govemment activities — All of the Town’s basic services are considered to be governmental activities,
including general government, public safety, public works/streets, parks and recreation, economic
development and interest on long-term debt. Sales taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes, vehicle
rental taxes, intergovernmental revenues and charges for services finance most of these activities.

e Proprietary activities/Business type activities — The Town charges a fee to water, sewer and trash
customers to cover most of the cost of the services provided.

Reporting the Town’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds—not the
Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants.
However, management establishes many other funds which aid in the management of money for
particular purposes or meet legal responsibilities associated with the usage of certain taxes, grants, and
other money. The Town’s two major kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different
accounting approaches as explained below.

» Governmental funds - Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in governmental funds.
Governmental funds focus on how resources flow in and out with the balances remaining at year-end
that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called the
modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of
the Town’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Government fund
information shows whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the Town’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds in a reconciliation included with the Basic Financial Statements and in footnote
2.

» Proprietary funds - When the Town charges customers for the services it provides, i.e. water, sanitary
sewer and trash, these services are generally reported in proprietary (aka. enterprise) funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reporied in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a uscful indicator of the Town’s financial position. The Town's
combined assets exceed liabilities by $20.28 million as of December 31, 2014 as shown in the following
condensed statement of net position. Of this amount, $1.63 million is unrestricted and available to meet
the Town’s ongoing financial obligations.

By far the largest portion of net position is the investment in capital assets (net of related debt) of $17.22
million (84.9% of total net position). This amount reflects the investment in all capital assets (e.g.
infrastructure, land, buildings, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are
still outstanding. These capital assets are used to provide services to citizens: consequently, these asscts
are not available for future spending. Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of deb, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The Town has chosen to account for its water, sewer and refuse operations in a single enterprise fund
which is shown as Business Activities.

The following table summarizes the Town’s governmental and business-type net assets as of December
31, 2014 and 2013:

TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Statement of Net Position

Governmental Business-type
activities activitics Combined Total
12:31:2044 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2013 12312014 12/31/2013

Current and other pssets § 2047236 $ 1999867 $ 1983819 § 1,279453 $ 4036055 § 3279320

Capital assets 12,789,652 13,207.421 7.613.816 6.885.603 20,403,468 20,093,024

Total assets 14,836,888 15,207,288 9.602.635 8.165.056 24,439,523 23,372,344

Leng-term liabilities outstanding 1,142,685 1,204,737 2,106,111 1,305,652 3,248,796 2,510,389

Other liabilities 209,003 221,376 233.401 144,809 442 406 366,185

Total liabilities 1.351.690 1.426.113 2,339,512 1.450,461 3.691,202 2,876,574

Deferred inflows of resources 468.239 518.980 - - 468.2319 518.980
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 11.699,664 12,043,745 6,774,652 6,177,635 18474 316 18,221,380

Restricted 177,936 178,251 - - 177,936 178,251

Unrestricted 1,139,359 1,040,199 488.471 536,960 1,627,830 1,577,159

Total net pasition $ 13.016959 $ 13,262,195 $ 7263123 § 6,714,595 $ 20,280,082 § 19,976,790

An additional portion of net position, $177,936, represents resources that are subject to extemal
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets, $1,627,830
(8.03% of total net position), may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.
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Governmental Activities

The cost of all Governmental activities this year was $2,334,848. As shown in the Changes in Net
Position statement below. $72,608 of this cost was paid for by those who directly benefited from the
programs. $136,782 was subsidized by grants received from other governmental organizations for both
capital and operating activities. Overall governmental program revenues, including intergovernmental aid
and fees for services were $209,390. General taxes and investment earnings totaled $1,861,032.

The Town’s programs include; General Government, Public Safety, Public Works/Streets, Parks &
Recreation, and Economic Development. Each program’s revenues and expenses are presented below.

Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions
Capital grants and
contributions

General revenues:

Taxes
Investment earnings
Other revenue

Total revenucs

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works/Streets
Parks and recreation
Economic development
Interest on long-term deht
Water
Sewer
Refuse

Total expenses

Increase (Decrease) in net asscts
before transfers
Transfers
Net position, beginning
Prior period adjustment
Net position, ending

TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO

Governmental

Changes in Net Position

Businuss-type

activities activities Combined Total
12/312014 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2013 12/31:2014 12/31/2013
72,608 § 95,227 5 L115184 § 1,131,448 $ 187,792 § 1,226,675
136,782 129,356 - - 136,782 129,356
- - 529,932 97,070 529,932 97.070
1,816,087 1,791,052 - - 1,816,087 1,791,052
5,780 2646 - - 5,780 2,646
39.165 71.172 - - 39,165 71,172
2.070,422 2.089.453 1,645,116 1.228.518 3,715,538 3.317.971
496,095 414,219 - - 496,093 414,219
642,613 575,705 - - 642,613 575,705
863,797 782,052 - - 863,797 782,052
253,724 197,212 - - 353,724 197,212

9,050 13,012
69,569 73,200 - - 69,569 73,200
- - 703,768 758,553 703,768 758,553
319,055 355,687

- - 131.993 127,251 131,993 127,251
2,334,848 2.055.400 1.154,816 1.241.491 3,161,559 2,928,192
{264,426) 34,053 490,300 (12,973) 225874 21,080
(47,600) (13,473) 47,600 13,473 - -
13,262,195 13,306,983 6,714,595 6,714,095 19,976,790 20,021,078
66,790 {65.368) 10.628 77418 {65.368)
$ 13016959 § 13,262,195 $ 7.263,123 % 6,714.595 $ 20,280,082 § 19,976,790

Total resources available during the year to finance governmental operations were $15.3 million
consisting of Net position at January 1, 2014 of $13.32 million (as adjusted), program revenues of
$209,390 and General Revenues of $1,861,032. Total Governmental Activity expenses, including
depreciation of $441,232, were $2,334,848; thus Governmental Net Position was decreased by $312,026

to $13.01 million.



The following graph compares program expenses to program revenues (charges for services and grants):

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activitics
(in Thousands)
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Revenues reported above include charges for services and grant revenues directly related to the respective
programs. As noted in the chart below, these revenues make up 3.5% and 6.6% of the Town’s total
govemnmental revenues for the current year. Shortfalls are made up by taxes and other revenues.
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Business Type Activities

Net position of the Business Type activities at December 31, 2014, as reflected in the Statement of Net
Position was $7.26 million. The cost of providing all Proprietary (Business Type) activities this year was
$1,154,816. As shown in the statement of Changes in Net Position, the amounts paid by users of the
system were $1,115,185 and there was $529,932 subsidized by capital grants and contributions. There
were no investment earmnings and other revenues. The Net Position increased by $548,528.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business- type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements,

Governmental funds: The focus of the Town’s govemnmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Town’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a govemnment’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $1,379,326 an increase of $110,068 in comparison with the prior year. Unassigned fund
balance of $839,371 ($846,603 less Heritage Center deficit of $7,232), which is available for spending at
the government’s discretion is approximately 61% of the total fund balance. The remainder of fund
balance is restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been set
aside to pay for parks and recreation services and capital investment $93,875, and emergency reserves
(TABOR) 384,061, and committed to provide for library services $244,016 and development fees
$£118,003,

The Town has one major governmental fund, the General Fund, which is the primary operating fund for
the Town, At December 31, 2014, unassigned fund balance in the General fund was $846,603. As a
measure of the General fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Total unassigned fund balance represents 60.8% and total
fund balance represents 71% of total General fund expenditures. The fund balance of the Town's General
fund increased by $111,938 for the year ended December 31, 2014, General fund revenues increased by
$34,225 compared to the prior year. The increase was mainly due to an increase in severance tax of
$74 877 net of a significant decrease in property taxes.

Proprietary funds: The Town’s proprictary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Net position and changes in net position for the
year-ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 for the Town'’s enterprise fund (Water-Sewer-Refuse) are as
follows:

2014 2013
Unrestricted net position § 488471 § 536,960
Total net position 7,263,123 6,714,595
Change in net position 537,900 500

The main reasons for the increase in net income/loss were due to the fact that capital contributions and
transfers in were $563,132 in 2014 and $88,943 in 2013.

Budgetary Highlights

General fund revenues of $2,047,399 were more than budgeted revenues of $2,026,671 by $20,728. The
most significant factors contributing to this difference is related building permits of $17,650, severance
tax of $66,901 and miscellaneous revenue of $17,864 net of a shortfall in grant revenue of $98,691.

Actual expenditures were $152,957 less than budgeted expenditures mainly due to the Streets department
sidewalk-CDOT project and professional services costs which will not be incurred until 2015.
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The General fund unassigned balance at December 31, 2014 equals 45.5% of the annual operating
expenses. Subtracting the budgeted expenditures for the sidewalk-CDOT project the adjusted unassigned
balance at year end equals 33% of the general fund’s annual operating expenses.

The proprietary fund unrestricted balance at December 31, 2014 equals 43.8% of the annual operating
expenses.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The capital assets of the Town are those assets that arc used in performance of Town functions including
infrastructure assets. Capital Assets include equipment, buildings, land, system improvements, park
facilities and roads. At the end of 2014, net capital assets of the govemnment activities totaled $12.78
million and the net capital assets of the business-type activities totaled $7.58 million. The most significant
governmental capital addition was the crack sealer machine of $8,000. The most significant business-
type capital addition was the water distribution and tank line construction in progress of $994,658.
Depreciation on capital assets for both government activities and business-type activities is recognized in
the Government-Wide financial statements. (See note 6 to the financial statements.)

Debt

At year-end, the Town had 51,089,987 in governmental type debt, and $2,086,935 in proprictary debt.
During 2014, the Town’s total debt increased by $730,464 as a result of a new drinking water loan and
regularly scheduled debt service payments. Debt per capita based on an estimated population of 1,801 is
51,764

NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS

In considering the Town budget for fiscal year 2015, the Town Council and management were cautious as
to the growth of revenues and expenditures due to an uncertain economy. Towan officials primary goals in
2015 included employee retention, building cash reserves, finding ways to fund identified water system
capital improvements, conducting an engineering analysis to repair certain local streets and keeping costs
affordable for local taxpayers. Fiscal challenges to these goals included a significant loss of sales tax
revenue, projected because of Rouit County’s notice the airport would be closed for eight weeks while
runway maintenance and repair work was underway; and, a significant drop in property valuation would
trigger TABOR’s property tax reduction to the Town’s 2015 tax revenue. These impacts to the Town’s
greatest general fund revenue sources required Town officials to consider alternative funding sources, e.g.
grants and loans, to fund part of the capital expenses for street and water capital projects. The desire to
retain valuable employees being a high priority for Town officials and recognition that Town wages were
generally less than those in comparable jobs placed a budgetary priority to increase employee wages and
to maintain employee benefits in 2015. Overall in 2015 the Town's operating expenditures were
budgeted to maintain the 2014 level of service without increasing taxes or fees.

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Town Manager or Town Clerk, P.O. Box 190, Hayden, Colorado 81639 or call (970) 276-3741.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO

Statement of Net Position

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables (net of allowance)

Temporarily restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Land

Construction in progress
Buildings

[mprovements

System improvements

Fumiture, equipment & vehicles

Infrastructure/Roads
Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Interest payable
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than onc year

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred revenue - property taxes

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Emergencies

Parks and recreation
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

December 31, 2014
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Tota)

5 1419720 % 143,926 1,563,646
627,516 309,475 936,991
- 1,535,318 1,535,318
2,100,992 340,274 2,441,266
10,873 1,215,016 1,225,889
2,436,483 - 2,436,483
- 5,995,130 5,995,130
481,072 63,396 544,468
7,760,232 - 7,760,232
14,836,888 9,602,635 24,439,523
182,663 226,130 408,793
9,334 7,271 16,605
17,008 - 17,008
129,242 139,001 268,243
1,013,443 1,967,110 2,980,553
1,351,690 2,339,512 3,691,202
468,239 - 468,239
11,699,664 6,774,652 18,474,316
84,061 - 84,061
03,875 - 93,875
1,139,359 488,471 1,627,830
$ 13016959 § 7,263,123 20,280,082
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Statement of Activitics
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Functions/Programs

Program Reventes

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental activitivs:
General government
Public safety
Public works Streers
Parks amd recreation
Economic development
Interest on bopg-erm debi

Total governmental activilies
Busincss-type activilies:
Water
Sewer
Refuse
Total business-type activitics

Toetal Primary Government

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants & Grants & Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Countributivns Contributions Activities Activities Tuatal
s 496.095 s 29,010 5 - s 5 (466.985) 8 - s (466.985)
642,613 23414 64,134 (555.065) - (555.065)
863.797 - 68,648 (795.149) - (795.149)
253,724 201084 4.000 - {229,640} - {229.640)
4.050 - - - (9.050) - (9.050)
69.569 - - (69.569) - (69.569)
2,334,848 72.608 136.782 - 12,125,458} - (2.125.458)
T03.768 665,741 - 525,132 - SHT. 105 487.105
39,055 319.068 4.800 - 4,813 4813
131,993 1300.375 - {}.618) {1.618)
1.154.816 ).115.184 529.932 390300 490.300
3.489.664 1.187.792 136.782 539,932 {2.125.438) 490.300 (1.635.158)
General Revenues:
Taxes.
Property tax 473962 - 472,962
Sales tax 841161 - B41.161
Other taxes 444,764 - 444,764
Franchise tax 57.200 - 57.200
Unrestricted investment earmings 5,780 - 5,780
Miscellaneous 39,165 . 39,165
Transfers 147.600) 47,6k} -
Total general revenues & tronslers 1.813.432 47.600 1.861.032
Change in net position (312.026) 537.900 225874
Net positian - beginning 13.362,195 6,714,595 19,976,790
Prior period adjustment 66790 10.628 77.418
Net position - ending $ 13016959 5§ 7263123 § 20280082

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

December 31, 2014
Other Total
General Governmental Govemmental
Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 963,826 $ 455,894 $ 1419720
Receivables, net:
Property taxes receivable 491,627 - 491,627
Accounts receivable 23,763 - 23,763
Intergovernmental 112,126 - 112,126
Due from other funds 6,943 - 6,943
Total assets $ 1,598,285 $ 455,894 § 2,054,179
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 52,075 $ 289 h) 52,364
Accrued wages 70,590 - 70,590
Accrued liabilities 59,709 - 59,709
Due to other funds - 6,943 6,943
Uneamed revenue 17,008 - 17,008
Total liabilities 199,382 7,232 206,614
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 468,239 - 468,239
Total deferred inflows of resources 468,239 - 468,239
Fund Balances
Restricted for:
Parks and recreation - 93,875 93,875
Emergencies 84,061 - 84,061
Comunitted to:
General government (library) - 244016 244 016
Economic development - 118,003 118,003
Unassigned 846,603 (7,232} 839,371
Total fund balances 930,664 448,662 1,379,326
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 1,598,285 $ 455894 $ 2,054,179

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Gevernmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 1,379,326

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds.
(Governmental capital assets 18,173,762
Accumulated depreciation (5,384,111)

12,789,651

Long-term liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Capital leases {1,089,987)
Interest payable (9,334)
Compensated absences {52,697)
(1,152,018)
Total net position - governmental activities $ 13,016,959

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADOQ

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Interest revenue
Other revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works/streets
Parks and recreation
Economic development

Capital outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers out
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Prior period adjustment

Fund balances, end of year

Other Total
General Govemmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
$1,505,994 3 $ 1,505,994
26,716 - 26,716
425,670 17,204 442 874
23414 - 23,414
5,029 634 5,663
60,576 5,185 65,761
2,047,399 23,023 2,070,422
456,810 6,039 462,849
579,027 - 579,027
562,628 - 562,628
203,466 - 203,466
9,050 - 9,050
- 18,854 18,854
73,688 - 73,688
69,982 - 69,982
1,954,651 24,893 1,979,544
92 748 (1,870) 90,878
(47,600) - (47,600)
{47,600) - {47.600)
45,148 (1.870) 43,278
818,726 450,532 1,269,258
66,790 - 66,790
$ 930,664 $ 443,662 3 1,379,326

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3 43,278

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the costs of thase assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the difference between
depreciation expense and capital outlays in the current period.

Capital outlay 23,463
Depreciation expense (441,232)
{417,769)
Repayment of long tenn debt principat is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 73,688
Accrued Interest for Long-term debt is not reported as an expenditure for the
current period while it is recorded in the statement of activilies. 413
Compensated absences expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. (11,636)
Change in net position of governmental acttvities b (312,026)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2014

Asscts
Current Assets:
Cash
Receivables (net of allowance)
Due from other governments
Prepaids
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments
Land
Construction in progress
Utility systems and improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued ligbilities
Customer deposits
Interest payable
Loans payable - current
Compensated absences - current

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-tenm debt (net of current portion):
Loans payable
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Water-Sewer-
Refuse

) 143,926
36,302
223,173

100

453,501

1,535,318
340,274
1,215,016
14,258,366
352,878
(8,552,718)

9,149,134

5 122,761
26,286

77,083

7,271

119,825
19,176

372,402

1,967,110

1967110
2,339,512

6,774,652
488,471

$ 7,263,123

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Statement Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Water-Sewer-

Refuse
Operating Revenues
Charges for services:
Water h) 654,683
Sewer 310,461
Refuse 130,375
Other revenues 19,665
Total operating revenues 1,115,184
Operating Expenses
Water 400,256
Sewer 249,606
Refuse 131,993
Depreciation 333,501
Total operating expenses 1,115,356
Operating income (loss) (172)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest expense and fiscal charges (39,460)
Connection and tap fees 14,400
Total non-operating revenue (expense) (25,060)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (25,232)
Contributions and Transfers:
Capital contributions and grants 515,532
Transfers in 47,600
Change in net position 537,900
Net position, beginning of year 6,714,595
Prior period adjustment 10,628
Net position, end of year $ 7,263,123

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers, service fees
Cash received from customers, other
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers from/(to) other funds

Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Purchase of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid

Debt proceeds

Capital grants

Connection and tap fees

Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest on investments

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year (as adjusted)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of operating income 1o net cash provided
by operating activities:
Net operating income/(loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation/amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepaids
Increase/{decrease) in payables
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities & deposits

Net cash flows from operating activities

Water-Sewer-
Refuse

3§ 1,109,110
19,665
(523,537)
(173,520)

431.718

47.600
47.600

(1,061,713)

(110,847)

(39,460)
915,000
355,277
14,400

72,657

551,975

$ 1,679,245

$ (172)

333,501

13,591
(100)

55,932

28.966

S 43178

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange
transactions, arve reported separately from business-nvpe acrivities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges to external customers for support. Likewise, when applicable, the priman government is
reported separately from centain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable,

Reporting Entity

The Town of Hayden, Colorado (the Town) was incorporated in March 1906 in Routt County. On July
21, 2009, the citizens voted to become a Home Rule Municipality in accordance with Anticle XX of the
Colorado Constitution and the Municipal Home Rule Act of 1971. The Town is governed by a Town
Council consisting of six council members and one mayor elected at-large.

The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units are, in
substance, part of the primary government’s operations, even though they are legally separate entities.
Thus, blended component units are appropriately presented as funds of the primary government. Each
discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the govemment-wide financial
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government.

The following is a brief review of the component units included in defining the Town’s reporting entity.
There are no discretely presented component units and two blended component units,

Blended component units included within the reporting entity and reported as special revenue funds with
the governmental fund financial statements:

The Hayden Heritage Center provides museum services to all citizens of the Town and is
governed by a board of directors that are appointed by the Town Council.

The Hayden Public Library accounts for donations and other revenues committed for library
services and is governed by a board of directors that are appointed by the Town Council.

Basis of Presentation — Government-Wide Financial Statements
While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. The
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds while business-type activities

incorporate data from the government’s enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are provided for
governmental funds and proprietary funds.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Nuotes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.

Basis of Presentation — Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the government's funds. Separate statements for
each fund category—governmental and proprictary—are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column, All
remaining govemmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements,

The Town reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the Town'’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Town reports the following major enterprise fund;

The Water-Sewer-Refuse Fund accounts for the activities related to the Town's water wells,
treatment facilities and distribution operations, sewer collection and treatment operations and
refuse collection services.

During the course of operations the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from
other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made
in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the
funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column,

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund
financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers infout. While reported in
fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so
that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly,
balances between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount
is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current
Sinancial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or
events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the econontic resources measurement focus
and the accrual busis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The govemmental fund financial statements are reported using the cwrrent financial resowrces
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end
of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences, and claims and judgments, arc recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, other taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met,
including any time requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability
period for this revenue source (within 60 days of yearend). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as
revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have
been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue
source (within 60 days of yearend). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the government.

The proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance
Cashl and cash equivalents

The Town pools cash resources of its various funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. The
Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash-on-hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition for purposes of
this note and the statement of cash flows.

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year arc referred 1o as *due to” or “due from other funds. All trade accounts receivable in the
enterprise funds are normally shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. However, due to the
nature of the accounts receivable in both the enterprise funds and governmental funds, management does
not consider an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable nccessary or material. Therefore, no
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is presented.

Inventories

The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than
when consumed. Inventories for business type activities consist of various parts and supplies and are
valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. However, the total cost of inventory on hand is
deemed immaterial and has not been recorded in the financial statements,

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include; property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activity
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets
with an individual cost of more than $2,500 and an estimated useful life of one year or more. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not
capitalized. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed,

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Building and improvements 15 to 40 years

Utility systems and improvements 10 to 40 years

Fumiture, equipment and vehicles 3 to 10 years

Infrastructure - Streets and sidewalks 10 to 50 years
27
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Deferved outflows/inflows of resources

[n addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies 1o a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The Town has no items that qualify for
reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town has one item, which arises under a modified
accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item,
unavailable revenue - property taxes, is reported in both the govemmental funds balance sheet and the
statement of net position. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available,

Net position flow assumption

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond
or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources, In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net
position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements,
a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is
the Town’s policy to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net
position is applied,

Fund balance flow assumptions

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental
fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the Town’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted
before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first,
followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

Fund balance policies
Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The govemment itself can establish

limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an
assignment (assigned fund balance).
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

The commitied fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority.
The Town Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Town that can, by adoption of
an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limilation
imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another
ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the Town for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Town Manager is authorized to
assign amounts to a specific purpose in accordance with the Town's budget policy. The Town Council
may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between
estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments,
assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not nonmally have
to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is
essential to either remove or revise a commitment.

Revenues and expenditures/expenses

Program revennes

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants whe purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific
purposes, and other intemmally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues,

Property Taxes

Property tax revenues are recognized as revenues in the year collected or if collected within 60 days
thereafter unless they are prepaid. Property taxes levied in the current year and not collected within 60
days of year-end arc not deemed available 1o pay current liabilitics and therefore the receivable is
recorded as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds. Property taxes for the current year are levied
by the County and attach as a lien on property the following January 1. They are payable in full by April
30 or in two equal installments due February 28 and June 15. The County also levies various personal
property taxes during the year.

Compensated Absences

It is the Town’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation time,
compensatory time, and sick leave, Accumulated vacation is maximized at 240 hours, accumulated
compensatory time is maximized at 80 hours, and accumulated sick leave is maximized at 480 hours.

Afier five years of service and upon termination, sick leave may be converted at a rate of 8 hours for
every 24 hours accumulated with a2 maximum of 80 hours.

29

158



TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

For governmental funds, amounts of vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave that are not expected
to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as liabilities in the
government-wide statement of net position and as expenses in the govemment-wide statement of
activities. No expenditures are reported for these amounts in the fund financial statements, Vested or
accumulated vacation and sick leave in the proprietary fund are recorded as an expense and a liability of
that fund as the benefits accrue to the employees and are thus recorded in both the government-wide
financial statements and the individual fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operaring revenues and expenses from nonoperating items,  Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the water-sewer-refuse fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The govemnmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total governmental fund balances
and the net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of nets
position. These differences primarily result from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net
position versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets. The details
of these differences are reported in the reconciliation on page 18.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net position
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. These differences
are the result of converting from the current resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis for
governmental fund statements to the economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis used
for government-wide statements. The details of these differences are reported in the reconciliation on
page 20.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Stewardship, compliance, and accountability are key concepts in defining the responsibilities of the
Town, The use of budgets and monitoring of equity status facilitate the Town's compliance with legal
requirements.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with US GAAP for all governmental funds. The
enterprise fund adopts a budget on a non-US GAAP basis wherein depreciation is not budgeted; capital
expenditures and principal payments on capital debt are budgeted and recorded as expenditures.

The Town confirms to the following procedures, in compliance with CRS, Title 29, Article 1, in
establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

® Prior to October 15, the Finance Director submits to the Town Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

* The budget provides a complete financial plan of all Town funds and activities for the ensuing
fiscal year indicating anticipated revenues, proposed operating and capital expenditures, a
provision for contingencies, and anticipated net surplus or deficit for the ensuing fiscal year.

* A public hearing on the proposed budget is held by the Council to obtain taxpayer comments,
¢ Prior to December 31, the budget is adopted by formal resolution.

* Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level. Revisions that alter the total
budgeted expenditures must be approved by the Town Council. At any time during the fiscal year
the Finance Director may transfer part of all of any unencumbered appropriation balance within a
depariment.

¢ Budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each year.

Budget amounts included in the financial statements report both the original and final amended budget.
The Town did not adopt any supplemental appropriations during the year and there were no revisions
made to the original budget during the year.

Expenditures over Appropriations

Per C.R.S. 29-1-108(2), appropriations are made by fund or spending agency (e.g. department) within a
fund at the discretion of the Town Council. The Council by Resolution has made appropriations at the
fund level and thus, expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. The
individual Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
reports as listed in the table of contents are reported on pages 47 to 50 and 54 to 59. There were two non-
major funds which incurred an excess of expenditures/expenses over appropriations for the year ended
December 31, 2014.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability, Continued

Tax, Spending and Debt Limitations

Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, which has several
limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities, and other specific requirements of state and
local govemments, excluding “enterprises.” The TABOR Amendment requires, with certain exceptions,
advance voter approval for any new tax, tax rate increase, mil levy above that for the prior year, extension
of any expiring tax, or tax policy change directly causing a net tax revenue gain to any local government.

Future spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior year’s fiscal year spending adjusted
for allowable increases based upon inflation and local growth. Fiscal year spending is generally defined as
expenditures plus reserve increases with certain exceptions. Revenue in excess of the fiscal year spending
limit must be refunded unless the voters approve retention of such revenue. Except for refinancing bonded
debt at a lower interest rate or adding new employees to existing pension plans, TABOR requires advance
voter approval for the creation of any multiple-fiscal year debt or other financial obligation unless
adequate present cash reserves are pledged irrevocably and held for payments in all future fiscal years.

The Amendment requires that an emergency reserve be maintained at three percent of fiscal year
spending (excluding bonded debt service). A portion of the General Fund’s fund balance is classified as
restricted for emergencies as required by the Amendment. The Town is not allowed to use the emergency
reserves to compensate for economic conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or benefit increases. The
Town has reserved $84,061 of the December 31, 2014 fund balance in the General fund for this purpose.

The Town’s voters passed a ballot question on November 7, 1995, authorizing the Town to collect and
retain the full proceeds of the Town’s fees, taxes, reduction in debt service, state and federal grants and
intergovernmental revenues, generated in 1995 and subsequent years, The ballot question allowed the
Town to expend such proceeds for debt service, municipal operations, capital projects such as recreation
and street paving and any other municipal purpose, notwithstanding state restrictions on fiscal year
revenues and spending, including without limitation the restriction of TABOR.

The Town's management believes it is in compliance with the financial provisions of TABOR. However,
TABOR is complex and subject to judicial interpretation.

Debt Covenants

See supplementary information on page 60 for compliance with debt covenants.

Deficit Fund Balance

The Heritage Center special revenue fund reported a deficit fund balance of $7,232 at December 31,

2014. It is the intention of management to eliminate this deficit in future years with anticipated revenues
and/or a supplement from the General fund.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Notc 4. Deposits and Investments

A summary of cash and investments as shown on the statement of net position follows:

Cash on hand $ 200
Cash in bank 1,805,376
Colorado Trust 8,480
CWRPDA Project loan accounts 1,247,771
Certificates of deposit 37.137

Total cash and investments $ 3,098,964
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,563,646
Restricted cash 1,535,318

S3.08.964_

Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk

For deposits this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposit may not be
returned to it. The Town does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk; however, the Colorado
Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government deposit cash in eligible
public depositories; eligibility is determined by state regulators. Amounis on deposit in excess of federal
insurance levels must be collateralized. The eligible collateral is determined by the PDPA. The PDPA
allows the institution to create a single collateral pool for all public funds. The pool is to be maintained by
another institution or held in trust for all the uninsured public deposits as a group. The market value of the
collateral must be equal to or exceed 102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits. Collateral in the pool is
considered to be equal to depository insurance pursuant to definitions listed in GASB Statement No. 40.
At December 31, 2014 cash on hand was $200 and the carrying amount of the Town’s deposits was
$1,805,376. As of December 31, 2014 the bank balance of the Town’s deposits was $1,961,530 of which
$275,000 was insured by federal depository insurance and $1,686,530 was uninsured but collateralized by
the PDPA as noted above.

Investments

Colorado statutes specify investment instrumenis meeting defined rating and risk criteria in which local
government entities may invest. Authorized investments include obligations of the United States and
certain U.S. government agency securities; certain international agency securities; general obligation and
revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities; bankers’ acceptances of certain banks; commercial
paper; local govemment investment pools; written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain
authorized securities; certain money market funds; and, guaranteed invesiment contracts. The Town’s
investment policy follows Colorado statutes. At December 31, 2014 the Town’s investments included
certificates of deposit and funds held in the Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust {COLOTRUST).
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 4. Deposits and Investments, Continued

The COLOTRUST is an investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado to pool
surplus funds. COLOTRUST operates similarly to a money market fund and each share is equal in value
to $1.00. Investments of COLOTRUST consist of U.S. Treasury bills, notes and note strips and
repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities.

A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository services to COLOTRUST in connection
with direct investment and withdrawal functions of COLOTRUST. Substantially all securities owned by
COLOTRUST are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for the custodial bank.

The custodian’s internal records identify the investments owned by COLOTRUST. These pools are not
required to and are not registered with the SEC.

As of December 31, 2014 the Town had $8,480 invested in the COLOTRUST with a fair market value of
$8,480 and maturities of less than one year. The COLOTRUST s funds are rated AAAm by Standard and
Poor’s, Fitch's and Moody’s rating services.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The Town’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing
interest rates is to comply with the provisions of the Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA)
which requires that the Town’s investment portfolio maturities do not exceed five years from the time of
purchase.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The Town's policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with the provisions of the
Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) which limits investment in commercial paper and

corporate bonds to the top ratings issued by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investor Services.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 5. Restricted Asseis

A summary of temporarily restricted assets of the Town at December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Loan reserves § 210,464
CWRPDA Project accounts 1,247,771
Customer deposits 77,083

51535318

Loan reserves:

The Town has set aside funds for the Operation and Maintenance Reserve Fund as required by the
Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority Loan Agreement. The reserve at year-end
is equal to three months of operation and maintenance expenses, excluding depreciation, of the system as
set forth in the Town’s annual budget,

CWRPDA Project accounts:

The Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority (CWRPDA) created a Project loan
account in its Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund in 2012 and a similar account in 2014 for the
water treatment plan project loan. CWRPDA loan proceeds were deposited into these accounts to be used
to pay the costs of the outflow project and the water treatment plan project. The balance reflected above
i1s the unexpended funds restricted for use on the projects at December 31, 2014.

Customer deposits:

The Town collects deposits from utility customers. These deposits are temporarily restricted or

unavailable for current expenditure. The amount reflected above is the amount of deposits on hand at
December 31, 2014.

This section intentionally lefi blank
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

Note 6. Capital Assets

The following table summarizes the changes to capital assets for governmental activities during the year.

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings
Fumiture, equipment & vehicles
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Furniture, equipment & vehicles
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance

12/31/2013 Additions Deletions 12/31/2014
2,100,992 $ - $ - $ 2,100,992

- 10,873 - 10,873

2,100,992 10,873 - 2,111,865
3,167,163 - 3,167,163
1,646,645 12,590 1,659,235
11,235,499 - - 11,235,499
16,049,307 12,590 - 16,061,897
(651,500} (79,181) - (730,681)
(1,074,654) (103,509) (1,178,163)
(3,216,725) {258,542) - (3,475,267)
(4,942,879) {441,232) - (5,384,111)
11,106,428 {428.642) - 10,677,786

$ 13,207,420 $ (417,769) 5 - $12,789,651

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works/streets
Parks & recreation

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Nuotes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 6. Capital Assets, Continued

The following table summarizes the changes to capital assets for business-type activities during the year.

Business Type Activities: Balance Balance
12/31/2013 Additions Deletions 12/31/2014

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and water nights § 340,274 3 - h - ¥ 340,274

Construction in progress 177,321 1,037,695 - 1,215,016
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 517,595 1,037,695 - 1,555,290

Capital assets being depreciated:

Utility system and improvements 14,253,136 5,230 - 14,258,366

Equipment & vehicles 334,090 18,788 - 352,878
Total capital assets, being depreciated 14,587,226 24,018 - 14,611,244

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Utility system and improvements (7,952,758) (310478) - (8,263,236)

Equipment & vehicles (266,459) (23,023 - {289,482)

Total accumulated depreciation (8,219,217) (333,501) - (8,552,718)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 6,368,009 {309,483) - 6,058,526
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 6,885,604 $ 728212 $ - $ 7.613,816

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the City as follows:

Business-Type Activities:
Water
Sewer
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

Note 7. Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Governmental Activities:

Lease Purchase-Alpine Bank
Lease Purchase-Caterpillar
Compensated absences
Total Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities

Business-Type Activities:

CWRPDA (2012)
CWRPDA (2002)
State of Colorado (2002)
State of Colorado (2005)
State of Colorado (2007)
Drinking water loan
Compensated absences
Total Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities

Balance Balance Current
12/31/2013 Additions Retirements 12/31/2014 Portion
$ 1,107,000 $ - 3 47,000) $ 1,060,000 $ 49,000

56,676 - (26,689) 29,987 27,545
41,061 11,636 - 52,697 52,697

$ 1,204,737 5 11,636 $ (73,689) $1.,142,684 $129,242
$ 603,300 $ - $ (22,792) % 580,508 $ 25,392
500,464 - (47,213) 453,251 49,120
114,070 - (10,345) 103,725 10,862
14,492 - (14,492) - -
50,456 . (16,005) 34,451 16,805

- 915,000 - 915,000 17,646

22,870 (3,694) 19,176 19,176

$ 1,305,652 § 915,000 $(114,541) §2,106,111 $139,001

This section intentionally lefi blank
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statcments
December 31, 2014

Note 7. Long-Term Debt, Continued

The following is a listing of Loans and Notes Payable outstanding as of December 31, 2014:

Loans and Notes Payable:

Business-Type Activities:

Loan payable to Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority,

secured by net system revenue, bearing interest at 2.0%, due in semi-annual principal

installments of $18,438, maturing November 1, 2033. This loan was approved in

November 2012 with a maximum principal balance of $603,300 for wastewater

improvements. $ 580,508

Loan payable to Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority,

secured by net system revenue, bearing interest at 4.0%, due in semi-annual principal

installments of $33,382, maturing November 1, 2022. This loan was approved in April

2002 with a maximum principal balance of $1,000,000 for water ireatment plant

improvements. 453,251

L.oan payable to the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs, bearing interest at

5.0%, due in annual installments of $16,049, maturing September 1, 2022, This loan

was approved in August 2002 with a maximum principal balance of $200,000 for water

treatment plant improvements, 103,725

Loan payable to the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs, bearing interest at
5.0%, due in annual installments of $18,528, maturing September 1, 2016. This loan
was approved in March 2007 with a maximumn principal balance of $148,000 for water

line replacements. 34,451
Total Loans and Notes Payable $1,171,935
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 7. Long-Term Debt, Continued

Note payable debt service maturities are as follows:

Business-Type Activities

Years ending June 30: Principal Interest
2015 b 102,179 $ 36,037
2016 106,058 32,157
2017 91,567 28,122
2018 04,845 24,843
2019 98,251 21,437
2020 101,788 17,899
2021 105,465 14,233
2022 109,288 10,401
2023 29,774 7,102
2024 30,372 6,503
2025 30,983 5,893
2026 31,606 5,270
2027 32,241 4,635
2028 32,889 3,987
2029 33,550 3,326
2030 34,224 2,651
2031 34912 1,963
2032 35,614 1,262
2033 36,330 546

$ 1,171,935 $ 228256

Obligations under Capital Leases

The Town entered into a $1,300,000 lease-purchase agreement with Alpine Bank dated September 1,
2008. The lease requires semi-annual installments of varying amounts on May 10 and November 10
including interest at 6.25% through maturity on November 19, 2028 subject to annual appropriation by
the Town. Proceeds of the lease were used for construction of a new police station. The lease is secured
by an interest in the land on which the police station was constructed.

The Town also entered into a $129,561 lease-purchase agreement with Caterpillar Financial Services
Corporation dated February 4, 2011. The lease requires 59 monthly payments of $2,350, including
interest at 3.50%, and one payment of $§1 upon maturity in January 2016. The lease was used to purchase
a new wheel loader. The lease is secured by an interest in the equipment.

The lease payments are reported as debt service in the General fund.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADOQ
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 7. Long-Term Debt, Continued

The future minimum lease obligations and the present value of the minimum lease payments as of
December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Govemmental
December 31, Aclivities
2015 § 142,701
2016 117,826
2017 114,031
2018 114,531
2019-2023 573,374
2024-2028 459,375
Total remaining lease payments $ 1,521,838
l.ess: Amount representing interest 431,851
Present value of net remaining minimum lease
payments $ 1,089,987

A summary of assets acquired through capital leases follows:

Governimental

Activities
Vehicles and equipment 5 129,561
Accumulated depreciation {51,824)
Buildings 1,300,000
Accumulated depreciation {162,500)
Net total $ 1,215,237
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 8, Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

Interfund receivable and payable balances as shown in the fund financial statements consisted of the
following:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
General fund b 6,943 3 -
Other governmental - Heritage Center fund - 6,943
5 6,943 ) 6,943

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1)
interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are
recorded in the accounting system, and {(3) payments between funds are made. All of the above interfund
amounts are the result of short-term deficit pooled cash balances. There are no specified terms for

repayment of the balances at year-end.
interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2014 are shown in the following table:

Transfers In

Water-Sewer-
Transfers Qut: Refuse Total

General Fund § 47,600 § 47600
$ 47,600 $ 47,600

Transfers were used to move unrestricted general fund revenues to the Water-Sewer-Refuse fund based

upon the Town’s adopted budgetary policies and via Town Council resolutions.



TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 9. Retirement and Pension Plans

Town employees may voluntarily contribute to a deferred compensation plan. The defined contribution
plan is administered by [CMA Retirement Corporation and was created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457B. The plan, available to all full-time permanent employees of the Town at
their option, penmits participants 1o defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforesecable
emergency. Plan assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participating employees and are not
accessible by the Town or tis creditors.

The Town’s contribution for each employee and investment earnings allocated to the employee’s account
are fully vested. The Town contributes up o 7% of eligible employee’s wages. The Town’s contributions
to the plan were $30,484 during the year ended December 31, 2014,

Note 10. Risk Management

Public Entity Risk Pool

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. Claims have not exceeded coverage in
any of the last three fiscal years.

The Town is insured by Workers Compensation for potential worker related accidents.

The Town is a member of the Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (CIRSA), a separate and
independent governmental and legal entity formed by an intergovernmental agreement by member
municipalities pursuant to the provision of 24-10-1155, Colorado Revised Statutes (1982 Replacement
Volume) and the Colorado Constitution, Article XIV, Section 18(2).

The purposes of CIRSA are to provide members defined liability and property coverage’s and to assist
members to prevent and reduce losses and injuries to municipal property and to persons or property which
might result in claims being made against members of CIRSA, their employees or officers.

The general objectives of the Agency are to provide member municipalities defined liability and property
coverage through joint self-insurance and to assists members in loss prevention measures, Any member
may withdraw from the Agency by giving written notice to the Board of Directors of the prospective
effective date of its withdrawal,

CIRSA is financed by annual contributions and interest eamings on the contributions. The contributions
are used, in part, to establish loss funds from which member claims and associated costs are paid. Excess
reinsurance coverage is also purchased. Certain surplus funds are used to the benefit of members and may
include reductions in future contributions. Although none have occurred to date, additional member
contributions may be required if necessary. The Town'’s contribution to CIRSA for insurance coverage is
reported as an expenditure in the General fund. The Town is unaware of any excess losses which may
have been incurred by CIRSA and there have been no settled claims which exceed insurance coverage in
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 10. Risk Management , Continued

any of the last three years. The Town's share of surplus contributions held by CIRSA at December 31,
2012 was $65,295. The Town's share of the surplus as of December 31, 2014 was not available.

CIRSA is a separate legal entity and the Town does not approve budgets nor does it have the ability to
significantly affect the operations of CIRSA. The Board of Directors of the Agency is composed of seven
directors elected by the members at the annual meeting to be scheduled in December each year.

Health Reimbursement Arrangement Plan

In order to control increasing health care costs, effective January 1, 2011, the Town established a Health
Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) Plan that reimburses employees for group medical health insurance
plan deductible and actual eligible medical expenses incurred (as defined under Internal Revenue Code
Section 213(d). The plan year is from March 1 through February 28. At the end of a plan year, any unused
claim liability in an HRA Plan account is returned to the Town.

Note 11, Contingencies and Commitments

Litigation

The Town is involved with various matters of litigation from year to year. It is the opinion of Town
officials that any potential cases wilt either be handled by the Town’s insurance coverage or that they will
not have a material effect on the Town'’s financial condition.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time, although the Town does not anticipate any such amounts.

Yamcolo Reservoir Storage Agreement

The Town entered into an extension and amendment agreement with the Upper Yampa Water
Conservancy District (UYWCD) effective July 15, 2011 for 300 acre feet of storage water in the Yamcolo
Reservoir for thirty years terminating July 15, 2041. The purchase price for the storage water was $68.38
per acre foot in 2011 and is subject to an annual CPI increase thereafter.

Stagecoach Reservoir Water Allotment Contract

The Town entered into a water allotment contract with UYWCD in 1986 for 200 acre feet of storage

water in the Stagecoach Reservoir for thirty years terminating 2018. The purchase price for the storage
water was $35.00 per acre foot due annually on July 15"
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 12, Prior Period Adjustments

The Town failed to report a February 2014 sales tax revenue receipt as revenue in 2013, A prior period
adjustment was recorded to correct the prior year amount due from other governments and move the
revenue back to 2013 in order to report revenues on the modified accrual basis in accordance with GAAP.
This resulted in an $80,827 increase in fund balance for the General fund.

During the current year, the Town identified that it had incorrectly reported cash allocations for the
General fund and the Water-Sewer-Refuse fund in previous years. A prior period adjustment was

recorded to properly allocate cash within the funds which resulted in a $14,037 decrease in the General
fund balance and a $10,628 increase in the Water-Sewer-Refuse fund balance.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

FOR THE FOLLOWING MAJOR FUND:

General Fund — Detail Budget and Actual

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with
government which are not required legally or by sound financial management to
be accounted for in another fund.

46



TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Genceral Fund - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES:

Taxes:
Sales tax
Property tax
Car rental tax
Other taxes
Franchise tax
Total Taxes

Licenses, Permits and Fees:
Licenses, permiis and fees
Building permits
Total Licenses, Permits and Fees

Intergovernmental:
Highway users tax
Severance tax
Other
Grant revenues
Total Intergovernmental

Fines and Forfeitures:
Fines and forfeitures
Total Fines and Forfeitures

Interesi:
Interest revenue
Total Interest

Other Revenues:
Charges for Services
Recreation programs and events
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Other Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
$ 841,685 5 841,685 § B4l,161 ) (524)
472,296 472,296 472,962 666
118,535 118,535 112,205 (6,330)
14,200 14,200 22,466 8,266
54,135 54,135 57,200 3.065
1,500,851 1,500,851 1,505,994 5,143
6,300 6,300 6,066 (234)
3,000 3,000 20,650 17,650
9,300 9,300 26,716 17.416
62,450 62,450 68,648 6,198
151,875 151,875 218,776 66,901
93,820 93,820 74,112 (19,708)
162,825 162,825 64,134 (98.691)
470,970 470,970 425,670 {45,300)
12,000 12,000 23,414 11,414
12,000 12,000 23,414 11,414
1,490 1,490 5,029 3,539
1,490 1,490 5,029 3,539
7,050 7,050 6,394 (656)
20,000 20,000 31,308 11,308
5,010 5,010 22,874 17,864
32,060 32,060 60,576 28,516
$ 2,026,671 $ 2,026,671 5 2047.399 b 20,728
{continued)
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
General Fund - Budget and Actual (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

EXPENDITURES

General Government:

Administrative:
Wages and benefits
Insurance
Contributions
Professional services
General operating and supplies
Other
Total administration

Legislative:
Wages and benefits
Treasurer fees
Professional services
Other

Total legislation

Building department:
Utilities
Insurance
Maintenance and repairs
Other

Total building department

Data processing department
Judicial department
Planning department
Executive department

Total General Government

Public Safety:

Wages and benefits
Insurance
General operating and supplies
Vehicles
Utilities
Other
Total Public Safety

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
§ 213,856 § 213,856 3 214,255 $ (399)
8,035 8,035 9,444 (1,409)
13,050 13,050 14,292 (1,242)
16,000 16,000 72,039 (56,039)
11,700 11,700 17,736 (6,056)
12,550 12,550 17,546 {4,996)
275,191 275,191 345,332 (70.141)
8,340 8,340 8,324 16
16,000 16,000 14,616 1,384
11,000 11,000 10,500 500
6,355 6,355 3,463 2,892
41,695 41,695 36,903 4,792
3,634 3,634 6,453 (2,819)
6,010 6,010 5,377 633
5,100 5,100 2312 2,788
2,400 2,400 2,435 (39
17,144 17,144 16,577 567
30,855 30,855 27,220 3,635
9,150 9.150 10,229 (1,079)
4,500 4,500 18,486 {13,986)
2,235 2,235 2,063 172
380,770 380,770 456,810 (76,040)
495,791 495,791 467,936 27,855
10,270 10,270 11,462 (1,192)
25,250 25,250 26,123 (873)
13,000 13,000 32,512 (19,512)
12,945 12,945 15,191 (2,246)
15,500 15,500 25,803 {10,303)
3 572,756 5 572756 $ 579,027 3 (6.271)
(continued)
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund - Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Public Works:

Streets department:
Wages and benefits
Utilities
Snow removal

Street cleaning and maintenance

General operating and supplies
Vehicles
Insurance
Other
Total streets department

Mosquito control:
General operating and supplies
Chemicals
Other

Total mosquito control

Total Public Works

Parks and Recreation:
Recreation:
Wages and benefits
Programs
Special Events
Other
Total recreation

Parks:
Wages and benefits
Utilities
General operating and supplies
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Other

Total Parks

Total Parks & Recreation

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
$ 258,040 258,040 $ 212,027 5 46,013
31,500 31,500 34,400 (2,900)
25,000 25,000 21,453 3,547
215,000 215,000 238,396 (23,396)
13,450 13,450 14,518 (1,068)
16,000 16,000 15,724 276
4,465 4,465 4,533 (68)
238,980 238,980 9,188 229,792
802,435 802,435 550,239 252,196
5,460 5,460 5911 451)
5,460 5,460 5,619 (159)
850 850 859 (9)
11,770 11,770 12,389 (619)
814,205 814,205 562,628 251,577
22,342 22,342 22,695 (353)
12,000 12,000 20,896 (8,896)
10,500 10,500 12,076 (1,576)
42,950 42,950 5,106 37,844
87,792 87,792 60,773 27,019
49,020 49,020 87,408 {38,388)
12,000 12,000 15,988 (3,988)
3,000 3,000 5,342 (2,342)
4,465 4,465 4,481 (16)
18,500 18,500 19,129 {629)
8,000 8,000 10,345 {(2,345)
94,985 94,985 142,693 (47,708)
5 182,777 182,777 5 203,466 $ {20,689)
{continued)
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund - Budget and Actual (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Economic Development:

Projects
Other
Total Economic Development

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Debt Service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess of Revenues Over
{(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Prior period adjustment

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
i) 13,500 $ 13,500 hY 8,300 h 5,200
2,600 2,600 750 1,850

16,100 16,100 9,050 7,050
141,000 141,000 73,688 67,312
- - 69,982 (69,982)
141,000 141,000 143,670 (2,670)
2,107,608 2,107,608 1,954,651 152,957
(80,9371 (80,937) 92,748 173,685
(47,600) (47,600) (47,600) -
(47,600) (47,600) (47,600) -
(128,537) (128,537) 45,148 173,685
818,726 818,726 818,726 -

. - 66,790 66,790

$ 690,189 $§ 690,189 5 930,664 $ 240,475
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMBINING STATEMENTS
AND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

FOR THE FOLLOWING FUNDS:

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for a particular purpose.

* The Conservation Trust Fund is used to account for State of Colorado lottery funds to
be used for parks and recreation services and capital improvement.

* The Heritage Center Fund accounts for revenues committed for community
development.

¢ The Development Fees Fund accounts for development fees committed for subdivision
improvements.

¢ The Hayden Public Library Fund accounts for donations and other revenues committed
for the library.

Major Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent is that the costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges. The budgets for the enterprise funds have been prepared and presented on a
modified accrual basis which is an accounting basis other than GAAP for enterprise funds.

= The Water-Sewer-Refuse Fund is used to account for the Town's water wells, treatment
facilities and distribution system, Town’s sewer collection and treatment services, and
refuse collection services.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

December 31, 2014
Conservation Heritage Development Hayden
Trust Center Fees Public
Fund Fund Fund Library Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 93,875 b - % 118,003 § 244016 455,894
Total Assets § 93,875 3 - $ 118,003 § 244016 455,894
LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 - 3 289 § - 5 - 289
Due to other funds - 6,943 - - 6,943
Total Liabilities - 7.232 - - 7.232
Fund Balance:
Restricted for:
Parks and recreation 93875 - - - 93,875
Committed to:
General government (library) - - - 244 016 244,016
Economic development - - 118,003 - 118,003
Unassigned - (7.232) - - (7,232)
Total fund balances (deficit) 93,875 (7.232) 118.003 244,016 448,662
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 93,875 5 - $ 118,003 § 244016 455,894




TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Interest revenue
Other revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

General government
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund balances (deficit),
beginning of year

Fund balances (deficit), end of year

Conservation Heritage Development Hayden
Trust Center Fees Public
Fund Fund Fund Library Total
b 17,204 L - 5 - - 5 17,204
- - - 634 634
117 - - 5,068 5,185
17.321 - - 5,702 23,023
- 2,167 - 3.872 6,039
18.854 - - - 18,854
18.854 2.167 - 3.872 24,893
(1.533) {2.167) - 1,830 (1.870)
95408 {5,065) 118,003 242.186 450,532
3 93,875 5 (7.232) § 118.003 244016 § 448,662
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Conservation Trust Special Revenue Fund
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenue:
State lottery % 17,145 $ 17,145 17,204 b 59
Grant revenue 25,000 25,000 - (25,000)
Interest income 220 220 117 {103)
Total revenue 42 365 42,365 17,321 (25,044)
EXPENDITURES:
Parks and recreation:
Capital outlay 30,000 30,000 18,854 11,146
Total Expenditures 30,000 30,000 18,854 11,146
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 12,365 12,365 (1,533) {13,898)
Fund balance, beginning of year 95,408 95.408 95,408 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 107,773 $ 107,773 5 93,875 5  (13,898)
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Heritage Center Special Revenue Fund

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenue
Totai revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Wages and benefits
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance (deficit), end of year

Budgcted Amounts

Variance with

184

Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ - $ - $ - b -
- - 2,167 (2,167)
. . 2,167 (2,167)
- - (2,167) (2,167)
{5,065) {5,065) {5.065) -
$ (5065 $ (5065 § (7.231) 3 (2,167)
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Development Fees Special Revenue Fund

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES:
Development fees

Total revenue
EXPENDITURES:
General government

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

3 - $ - $ - B -
118,003 118,003 118,003 -

$ 118,003 5 118,003 § 118,003 5 -
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Hayden Public Library Special Revenue Fund

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES:

Interest mcome
Other revenues

Total Revenue
EXPENDITURES:
Services, supplies, and other

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue and Other Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeted Amounis Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
- - 5 634 634

- 3,068 5,068

- - 5,702 5,702

- 3.872 (3,872)

- - 3,872 (3.872)

- 1,830 1,830

242,186 242,186 242,186 -
242,186 242,186 § 244,016 1,830
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Water-Sewer-Refuse Fund

Budget and Actual with Reconciliation to US GAAP Basis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Revenues
Charges for services:
Water
Sewer
Refuse
Other revenues

Total Revenues

Expenses

Water:
Operating water
Walter treatment plant
Golden meadows
Hospital hill
Meters
Water rights
Water distribution
Administration water

Sewer:
Operating sewer
Sewer treatment plant
Washington street
Sewer collection system
Lift stations
Administration sewer

Refuse Collection

Total Expenses
Operating Income excluding depreciation
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest income
Connection and tap fees

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expense)

Income before contributions, transfers
and capital and related financing activities

Budgeted Amounts Varance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
3 697,020 3 697,020 5 654,682 ) {42,338)
313,815 313,815 310,461 (3,354)
127,250 127,250 130,375 3,125
23,694 23,694 19.665 (4,029)
1.161.779 1,161,779 1,115,183 (46,596)
213,966 213,966 181,247 32,719
93,460 93,460 96,688 (3,228)
24,850 24,850 20,403 4,447
35,885 35,885 11,248 24,637
25,830 25,830 17,167 8,663
59,020 59,020 26421 32,599
26,000 26,000 15,763 10,237
1,029,786 1,029,786 31,319 998,467
161,811 161,811 128,761 33,050
81,570 81,570 69,604 11,966
2,750 2,750 1,792 958
106,000 106,000 9,292 96,708
15,420 15,420 9,205 6,215
35,509 35,509 30,952 4,557
127,250 127,250 131,993 (4.743)
2,039,107 2,039,107 781,855 1,257,252
(877.328) {877.328) 333,328 1.210,656
229 229 - (229)
7.200 7.200 14,400 7,200
7429 7,429 14,400 6,971
$ (869899) § (869.89%) § 347.728 $ 1.217.627
{continued)

58



TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Water-Sewer-Refuse Fund (Continued)

Budget and Actual with Reconciliation to US GAAP Basis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Contributions, Transfers and Capital
and Related Financing Activities:

Capital outlay $ (1,045300) 3 (1,045300) $ (1,061,713 % (16,413)
Debt service (201,160) (2011,160) (150,306) 50,854
Capital contributions and grants 1,763,300 1,763,300 515,532 (1,247,768)
Transfers in 47,600 47,600 47,600 -
Total Contributions, transfers and capital
and related financing activities 564.440 564.440 (648,887) (1.213,327)
Excess (defeciency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures (305,459) {305,459) {301,159 4,300
Reconciliation to net income:
Depreciation (333,501)
Capital outlay 1,061,713
Debt principal payments 110,847
US GAAP basis net income (loss) 537,900
Net position, beginning of year 6,714,595
Prior period adpustment 10.628
Net position, end of year $ 7.263,123
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COLORADO WATER RESOURCES AND
POWER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
LOAN COVENANTS AND REQUIREMENTS

The Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority Loan Agreement sets forth certain
covenants and restrictions. As of December 31, 2014, the Town appears to be in compliance with all
covenants and restrictions as set forth in Exhibit A and Exhibit F, Additional Covenants and
Requirements. See footnote 7 for details on the loan. The following are additional disclosures required by
the loan agreement.

* Rate Covenant: The Town shall establish and collect such rates, fees, and charges for the use or
the sale of the products and services of the System as, together with other moneys available
therefore, are expected to produce Gross revenue for each calendar year that will be at least
sufficient for such calendar year o pay the sum of estimated operation and maintenance
expenses, 110% of the debt service coming due on the bond during the calendar year and other
debt service requirements. Gross revenue as defined in Para (3) of Exhibit A to the Loan
Agreement is all income and revenues directly or indirectly derived by the government agency for
the operation and use of the system, including investment income, but excluding, property taxes
and granis received for capital improvements.

Summary of 2014 Gross Revenue Requirement

Total Gross Revenue requirement $ 992,163
Total water fund revenues, exluding capital grants 5 999211
Excess (deficiency) of gross revenues $ 7,048
2014 Actual coverage ratio of CWRPDA debt service 117%

e Operations and Maintenance Reserve Fund Covenant: The Town has set aside sufficient
funds to meet the Reserve Fund covenant. See footnote 5 for more details regarding the reserve
fund amount.
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TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

Section 43-2-132 of the Colorado Revised Statutes requires municipalities receiv ing Highway User Tax

Funds to include a schedule of highway receipts and expenditures with the audit report. The said report is
presented on the following two pages.
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LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

City or County:
Town of Hayden
YEAR ENDING :
December 2014

Prepared By: Carrie Bartow

Phone: 303-779-5710

. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAI

LABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE

A.  Local B. Local C. Reccipts from D. Receipts from
ITEM Motor-Fuel Motor-Vehicle State Highway- Federal Highway
Taxes Taxes User Taxes Administration

L. Total receipts available
2. Minus amount used for collection expenses

3. Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes

4. Minus amount used for mass transit

5. Remainder used for highway purposes

IIl. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES IlII. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD
AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM ] AMOUNT ITEM AMOUNT
A. Receipts from Jocal sources: A. Local highway disbursements: _
I. Local highway-user taxes I._Capital outlay (from page 2) 0
a. Motor Fuel (from ltem LA 5.) 2. Maintenance: 480,298
b. Motor Vehicle {from Item 1.B.5.) 3. Road and street services:
¢. Total (a.+h.) a. Traffic control operations 34,326
2. General fund appropriations 528,731 b. Snow and ice removal 41,656
3. Other local imposts ( from page 2) 20,554 c. Other 0
4. Miscellaneous focal receipts {from page 2) 30,902 d. Total (a. throughc.) 76,982
5. Transfers from toll facilities 4. General administration & miscellaneous 42,541
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes: 3. Highway law enforcement and safety 66.250
a. Bonds - Original Issues 6. Tomal {1 through 5) 666,113
b. Bonds - Refunding kssues B. Dcbt service on local obligations:
c. Notes 1. Bonds:
d. Total{a.+b. +¢.) 0 a. Interest
7. Total (1 through 6) 589,187 b. Redemption
B. Private Contributions c. Total (a. + b.) 0
C. Receipts from State povernment 2. Notes:
(from page 2) 76,926 a. Interest
D. Reccipts from Federal Government b. Redemption
{from page 2) 0 ¢. Total {a. +b.) 0
E. Tolal receipts (A7 + B+ C + D) 666,113 | 3. Total (1.c+Xc) 0
C. Payments to State for highways
D. Payments to toll facilitics
- Total disbursements (A6 +B.3 +C + D) 666,113
IV, LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
{Show all entries at par)
— Opening Debt Amount Issued Redemptions Closing Debt
A. Bonds (Total) [}
t. Bonds (Refunding Portion) _ _
B. Notes (Total) 0
V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE
A. Beginning Balance| B. Total Receipts _|C. Total Disbursementy  D. Ending Balance E. Reconciliation
666,113 666,113 | (0)
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LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

[FTATE:

Colorado

YEAR ENDING {mm/yy}:
December 2014

ll. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

ITEM AMOUNT

A.3. Other local imposts:

ITEM AMOUNT
A.d. Miscellancous local receipts:

a. Property Taxes and Assessments

a. Interest on investments

b. Other local imposts:

b. Traffic Fines & Penalities 23.064

i. Sales Taxes c. Parking Garage Fees
2. Infrastructure & Impact Fees d. Parking Meter Fees
3. Liens e. Sale of Surplus Property
4. Licenses f. Charges for Services
5. Specific Ownership &/or Other 29,554 g. Other Misc. Receipis
6. Total (1. through 5.} 29,554 h. Other - Road and Bridge 7.838
c. Total(a.+b.) 29,554 i. Total {a. through h.) 30,902
{Carry forward to page 1) (Carry forwant to page 1)
ITEM AMOUNT ITEM AMOUNT
C. Recceipts from State Government D. Reccipts from Federal Goverament
Highway-user taxes 68,648 | 1. FHWA {from ltem 1.D.5.}

I.
2. Staie general funds

2. Other Federal agencies:

3, Qther State funds:

. Forest Service

a. State bond proceeds

FEMA

b. Project Match

HUD

¢. Motor Vehicle Registrations 8,278

. Federal Transit Admin

d. Other (Specify) -

U.S. Corps of Engineers

|0 |e]olo]s

1Il. DESBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND ST

¢, Other (Specify)- . Other Federal
f. Total (a. through e.) 8,278 . Tatal {a. through [) 0
4. Total (1. +2. +3.0) 76,926 | 3. Total (1. + 2.g)

(Carry forward 1o page 1)

REET PURPOSES - DETAIL

A.l. Capital outlay:
a. Right-Of-Way Costs

ON NATIONAL OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY HIGHWAY TOTAL
SYSTEM SYSTEM

(2) (b) {c)

b. Engineering Costs
¢. Construction:
(1). New Facilities

L] =]

{2}, Capacity Improvements

(3). System Preservation

(4). System Enhancement & Operation

(5). Total Construction (1) + {2} +(3) +{4)

[
[=] ][] f] fw] Fm)

d. Total Capital Qutlay (Lines 1.a. + Lb. + 1.¢.5)

Eqﬂi[!! and Comments:

|Carry forward 1o page 1)
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Independent Auditors® Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Hayden, Colorado

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standardy issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Hayden, Colorado, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated July 8, 2015,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Hayden,
Colorado’s intemal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Hayden, Colorado’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Hayden,
Colorado’s internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control which are described in the findings
and recommendations letter dated July 8, 2015 that we consider to be significant deficiencies:

2013-01 Adjustments and Reconciliations
2013-02 Segregation of Duties
2013-03 Capital Asset Management
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable {or any other purpose.

J il Gty PULLC

HintonBurdick, PLLC
St. George, Utah
July 8, 2015
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